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PART 1

Item 1. Business

Magellan Petroleum Corporation (the “Company” or “MPC” or “Magellan”) is engaged in the sale of oil and gas and the exploration
for and development of oil and gas reserves. At June 30, 2009, MPC’s principal asset was a 100.00% equity interest in its subsidiary,
Magellan Petroleum Australia Limited (“MPAL”).

MPAL’s major assets are two petroleum production leases covering the Mereenie oil and gas field (35% working interest), one
petroleum production lease covering the Palm Valley gas field (52% working interest), five petroleum production leases covering the
Nockatunga oil fields (41% working interest) and eighteen licenses in the United Kingdom, five of which are operated by MPAL. Both the
Mereenie and Palm Valley fields are located in the Amadeus Basin in the Northern Territory of Australia. The Nockatunga fields are
located in the Cooper Basin in South West Queensland, Australia. Santos Ltd. (“Santos”), a publicly owned Australian company, owns a
65% interest in the Mereenie field, a 48% interest in the Palm Valley field and a 59% interest in the Nockatunga fields. Santos is the
operator of the Mereenie and Nockatunga fields.

MPC has a direct 2.67% carried interest in the Kotaneelee gas field in the Yukon Territory of Canada. The following chart illustrates
the various relationships between MPC and the various companies discussed above.

The following is a tabular presentation of the omitted material:

MPC — MPAL RELATIONSHIPS CHART

MPC owns 100% of MPAL.

MPC owns 2.67% of the Kotaneelee Field, Canada.
MPAL owns 52% of the Palm Valley Field, Australia.
MPAL owns 35% of the Mereenie Field, Australia.
MPAL owns 41% of the Nockatunga Fields, Australia.
SANTOS owns 48% of the Palm Valley Field, Australia.
SANTOS owns 65% of the Mereenie Field, Australia.
SANTOS owns 59% of the Nockatunga Fields, Australia.

(a) General Development of Business.
Operational Developments Since the Beginning of the Last Fiscal Year:

The following is a summary of oil and gas properties that the Company has an interest in. The Company is committed to certain
exploration and development expenditures, some of which may be farmed out to third parties.

AUSTRALIA
Mereenie Oil and Gas Field

MPAL (35%) and Santos (65%), the operator (together known as the Mereenie Producers), own the Mereenie field which is located in
the Amadeus Basin of the Northern Territory. MPAL’s share of the Mereenie field proved developed oil reserves and gas reserves based
upon contracted amounts (net of royalties) was approximately 685,000 barrels and 0.8 billion cubic feet (Bcf) of gas at June 30, 2009.
During fiscal 2009, MPAL’s share of oil sales was 105,000 barrels and 4.6 Bcef of gas, which is subject to net overriding royalties
aggregating 4.0625% and the statutory government royalty of 10%. Prior to early June 2009, the oil was transported by means of a 167-
mile eight-inch oil pipeline from the field to an industrial park near Alice Springs.
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The oil was then shipped south approximately 950 miles by road to the Port Bonython Export Terminal at Whyalla, South Australia for
sale. Since early June 2009, the oil is transported by road directly from the field to Port Bonython Export Terminal. The cost of
transporting the oil to the terminal is borne by the Mereenie Producers. The oil pipeline has been placed in care and maintenance because
of environmental concerns by the operator over its integrity. The petroleum leases covering the Mereenie field expire in November 2023.

The Mereenie Producers are contracted to provide Mereenie gas in the Northern Territory to the Power and Water Corporation
(“PWC”) for use in Darwin and other Northern Territory centers. See “Gas Supply Contracts” below.

Palm Valley Gas Field

MPAL has a 52.023% interest in, and is the operator of, the Palm Valley gas field which is also located in the Amadeus Basin of the
Northern Territory. Santos, the operator of the Mereenie field, owns the remaining 47.977% interest in the Palm Valley field which
provides gas to meet the Alice Springs and Darwin supply contracts with PWC. See “Gas Supply Contracts” below. MPAL’s share of the
Palm Valley proved developed reserves (net of royalties) was 2.5 Bef at June 30, 2009 and is based upon gas contract amounts. During
fiscal 2009, MPAL’s share of gas sales was 1.4 Bcf which is subject to a 10% statutory government royalty and net overriding royalties
aggregating 7.3125%. The producers and PWC installed additional compression equipment in the field in 2006 that will assist field
deliverability during the remaining Darwin gas contract period. PWC funds the cost of additions and modifications to the gas delivery
system under the gas supply agreement. The petroleum lease covering the Palm Valley field expires in November 2024.

Gas Supply Contracts

In 1983, the MPAL and Santos (“Palm Valley Producers”) commenced the sale of gas to Alice Springs under a 1981 agreement. That
agreement terminated in June 2008. In 1985, the Palm Valley Producers and Mereenie Producers signed agreements for the sale of gas to
PWC, through its wholly-owned company Gasgo Pty. Ltd. (“Gasgo”), for use in PWC’s Darwin electricity generating station and at a
number of other generating stations in the Northern Territory. The price of gas under the Palm Valley and Mereenie gas contracts is
adjusted quarterly to reflect changes in the Australian Consumer Price Index. The gas is being delivered via the 922-mile Amadeus Basin
gas pipeline which was built by an Australian consortium. Since 1985, there have been several additional contracts for the sale of Mereenie
gas, the latest being in June 2006 for the supply of an additional 4.4 Bcf of gas to be supplied prior to December 31, 2008. The Palm Valley
Darwin contract expires in the year 2012 and the principal Mereenie contracts expired in January and June 2009. Supply obligations under
the Mereenie contracts ceased in June 2009, however, there is a reasonable endeavor obligation to supply certain of PWC’s requirements
through to December 31, 2010, unless amended or extended.

MPAL’s major customer, PWC, has contracted with Eni Australia for the supply of PWC’s Northern Territory gas demand
requirement for twenty five years. Eni Australia, initially expected to commence sales in January 2009, is to supply the gas from its
Blacktip field offshore of the Northern Territory. The Blacktip development has encountered delay but is expected to commence partial
production in the near term. The follow-on production schedule and timing is not yet available to us. The Mereenie Producers will continue
to supply PWC’s gas demand on a reasonable endeavors basis to supplement Blacktip gas sales as required until December 31, 2010, unless
amended or extended. All prices for those sales now fall under the higher-priced Mereenie Sales Agreement 4 (“Backstop Agreement”).
MPAL is actively pursuing gas sales contracts for the remaining uncontracted reserves. While gas marketing efforts to date have identified
several potential customers, the majority have a gas requirement commencing in the 2010-2013 timeframe. When Blacktip gas becomes
available, there will be strong competition within the market and MPAL may not be able to contract for the sale of the remaining
uncontracted reserves in the short term, but may be able to do so in the longer term with increasing demand from new mining developments
and industrial users in the Northern Territory and the adjacent areas of neighboring states. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas,
including reasonable
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endeavors gas not taken by PWC, its revenues will begin to decline substantially in 2010. Mereenie gas sales were approximately
$12.4 million (net of royalties) or 85% of total gas sales for the year ended June 30, 2009 and $15.5 million (net of royalties) or 85% of
total sales for the year ended June 30, 2008.

At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s commitment to supply gas under the above agreements was as follows:

Period Bef
Less than one year 2.22
Between 1-5 years 1.77
Greater than 5 years 0.00
Total 3.99

Nockatunga Oil Fields

MPAL purchased its 40.936% working interest (38.703% net revenue interest) in the Nockatunga oil fields in the Cooper Basin in
southwest Queensland effective from July 2003. Santos is operator of the fields and holds the remaining interest. The assets are comprised
of eleven producing oil fields (Currambar, Kamel, Dilkera, Dilkera North, Koora, Maxwell, Maxwell South, Muthero, Nockatunga,
Thungo and Winna) in Petroleum Leases 33, 50, 51, 244 and 245, together with exploration acreage in the adjacent Authority to Prospect
for Petroleum (“ATP”) No. 267P. The fields are currently producing about 425 barrels of oil per day (MPAL’s share is approximately 165
barrels of oil per day). During fiscal 2009, MPAL’s share of oil sales was 70,000 barrels which is subject to a 10% statutory government
royalty and net overriding royalties aggregating 3.0%. MPAL’s share of the Nockatunga fields’ proved developed oil reserves (net of
royalties) was approximately 92,000 barrels at June 30, 2009. Petroleum Lease 33 was renewed for a further 21 years and will expire in
April 2028. Petroleum Leases 50 and 51 expire in June 2011. Petroleum Leases 244 and 245 were granted with effect on December 1, 2008
and will expire in November 2029. ATP 267P was renewed for a further four year term and will expire in November 2011. A 99 square
mile 3D seismic survey was conducted over Petroleum Leases 51 and 245 and parts of ATP 267P in early 2009. No drilling was undertaken
during fiscal 2009.

Dingo Gas Field

MPAL has a 34.3365% interest in the Dingo gas field which is held under Retention License 2 in the Amadeus Basin in the Northern
Territory. No market has emerged for the gas volumes that have been discovered in the Dingo gas field. MPAL’s share of potential
production from this permit area is subject to a 10% statutory government royalty and overriding royalties aggregating 4.8125%. The
license was renewed for a further five year term and expires in February 2014.

Maryborough Basin

MPAL holds a 100% interest in exploration permit ATP 613P in the Maryborough Basin in Queensland, Australia. MPAL
(100%) also has applications pending for permits ATP 674P and ATP 733P which are adjacent to ATP 613P. In May 2006, MPAL entered
into a farm-out agreement in relation to a portion of ATP 613P, ATPA 674P and ATPA 733P with Eureka Petroleum, under which that
company funded the drilling of two exploration wells in 2007 to test the coal seam gas potential of the Burrum Coal Measures near the city
of Maryborough. The Burrum-1 and Burrum-2 farm-out wells drilled in early 2007 intersected multiple thin coal seams and evaluation of
the gas potential is continuing. The grant of ATPA 674P and ATP 733P is subject to agreement of the native title claimants to the area.

Eureka Petroleum has agreed to undertake a staged evaluation of the farm-out area to earn a 75% interest in any petroleum lease
granted in the area. MPAL retains a 25% interest and is carried by Eureka Petroleum through any development to the grant of a petroleum
lease. Eureka Petroleum operates the joint venture. At June 30,
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2009, the work obligations of the ATP 613P permit were fully committed by Eureka Petroleum under the farm-out arrangement. ATP 613P
was renewed in March 2008 for a further 12-year term ending in March 2019.

Cooper/Eromanga Basin (See Executive Summary in Part II, [tem 7-Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation for discussion of potential sale of Cooper Basin assets.)

PEL 94, PEL 95 & PPL 210

During fiscal year 1999, MPAL (50%) and its partner Beach Petroleum were successful in bidding for two exploration blocks,
Petroleum Exploration License (“PEL”) 94 and PEL 95, in South Australia’s Cooper Basin. The Aldinga-1 exploration well was drilled and
completed in September 2002 and began producing in May 2003 at about 80 barrels of oil per day. Petroleum Production License (“PPL”)
210 was granted over the Aldinga field in December 2004. By June 2009, production had declined to about 10 barrels of oil per day. No
further development is planned for the field.

Black Rock Petroleum contributed to the cost of drilling the Myponga-1 well in June 2004 to earn a 15% interest in the PEL 94
permit. MPAL’s interest in PEL 94 was reduced to 35%. Black Rock Petroleum subsequently assigned its interest in PEL 94 to Victoria
Petroleum. At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s share of the work obligations of PEL 94 totaled $622,000 of which $28,000 was committed and in
PEL 95 totaled $929,000 of which $81,000 was committed. PEL 94 expires in May 2012 and PEL 95 expires in October 2011.

PEL 106, PEL 107 & PPL 212

During fiscal year 2005, MPAL entered into a farm-in arrangement with Great Artesian Oil and Gas to drill explorations wells in
petroleum exploration permits PEL 106 and PEL 107 in the Cooper Basin of South Australia. The Kiana-1 well was drilled in PEL 107 in
2005 and was completed for production as an oil producer. PPL 212 was granted over the Kiana field in January 2006. MPAL earned a
30% interest in PPL 212 by contributing to the drilling cost of the Kiana-1 well. During fiscal 2009, MPAL’s share of oil sales was
approximately 1,900 barrels which is subject to a 10% statutory government royalty and net overriding royalties aggregating 4.0%.
MPAL’s share of the Kiana field’s proved developed oil reserves was approximately 11,000 barrels at June 30, 2009. Beach Petroleum is
operator of the joint venture.

MPAL exercised its option to participate in a further two wells in PEL 107 under the farm-in arrangement with Great Artesian Oil and
Gas to earn a 30% interest in any discoveries and a 20% interest in the PEL 107 permit. The Keeley-1 and Cabbots-1 farm-in wells were
drilled in late 2006. Both wells were dry holes. PEL 107 was renewed for a further five year term and expires in December 2013. At
June 30, 2009, the work obligations of PEL 107 totaled $525,000, of which $40,000 was committed.

The Udacha-1 gas discovery well was drilled in February 2006 in the farm-in area with Great Artesian Oil and Gas, covering portion
of PEL 106 and the adjacent PEL 91 permit. A production test was carried out in late 2006 which indicated that the discovery is potentially
commercially viable. If the discovery is commercial, MPC will earn a 30% interest in any petroleum production license granted over the
Udacha field. Beach Petroleum is operator of the joint venture and the participants are seeking a gas sales arrangement for the Udacha gas.
The operator has recommenced applying for a retention license with the view to moving to a petroleum production license by the end of
2009. The intention is to commence gas production and sales in January 2010.

PEL 110

During fiscal year 2001, MPAL (50%) and its partner Beach Petroleum were successful in bidding for exploration block PEL 110 in
the Cooper Basin. PEL 110 was granted in February 2003. During July 2005, Cooper Energy contributed to the cost of the Yanerbie-1 well
to earn a 25% interest in PEL 110 which reduced MPAL’s interest in PEL 110 to 37.5%. PEL 110 was renewed for a further five year term
and expires in
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November 2013. Beach Petroleum withdrew from the license and joint venture with effect at the end of the first five year term, and
MPAL’s interest increased proportionally to 60%. At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s share of the work obligations of PEL 110 totaled $1,231,000,
of which $68,000 was committed.

UNITED KINGDOM
PEDL 098, PEDL 099 & PEDL 256

During fiscal year 2001, MPAL acquired an interest in two exploration licenses in southern England in the Weald-Wessex basin. The
two licenses, Petroleum Exploration and Development License (“PEDL”) 098 (22.5%) in the Isle of Wight and PEDL 099 (40%) in the
Portsdown area of Hampshire, were each granted for a period of six years. The Sandhills-2 well, drilled in the PEDL 098 permit during
2005, encountered a heavily biodegraded remnant oil column and was plugged and abandoned. At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s share of the
work obligations of the PEDL 098 license totaled $55,000 of which $18,000 was committed. PEDL 098 expires in September 2011. PEDL
099 expired in September 2008.

The former PEDL 099 licensees made an out-of-round application for a license over the northeast portion of the former PEDL 099
area which is adjacent to the Havant Prospect in PEDL 155. PEDL 256 was granted to MPAL (40% interest) and its joint venturers for a
period of six years with effect from May 2009 with a drill or drop obligation at the end of the term. PEDL 256 expires in May 2015. At
June 30, 2009, MPAL’s share of the work obligations of the PEDL 256 license totaled $2,180,000, of which $40,000 was committed.

PEDL 125 & PEDL 126

Effective July 1, 2003, MPAL acquired two exploration licenses, PEDL 125 (40%) in Hampshire and PEDL 126 (40%) in West
Sussex, in the Weald Basin of southern England; each granted for a period of six years. The drilling plans for the Markwells Wood-1 well in
PEDL 126 are in progress and have received all necessary approvals. However, due to certain delays and the availability of suitable rigs to
perform the drilling work, the spudding of this well is expected in the early part of the first quarter of 2010. Plans for drilling Hedge End-2
later in 2010 are in progress. The U.K, company Encore Oil (formerly known as Oil Quest Resources) will fund part of MPAL’s share of
the cost of drilling the two wells to acquire a 10% interest in each of the licenses. Both PEDLs were extended by the Government for a
further one year term and the licenses expire in June 2010. At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s share of the work obligations of the two licenses
totaled $3,150,000 which was committed.

PEDL 135, PEDL 136 & PEDL 137

Effective October 1, 2004, MPAL was granted 100% interest in PEDL 135, PEDL 136 and PEDL 137 in the Weald Basin in southern
England for a term of six years. Each has a drill or drop obligation at the end of the term. MPAL has undertaken a program of seismic data
purchase, reprocessing and interpretation and has identified three drilling prospects. Drilling of two wells is being planned and government
drilling approvals sought. At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s work obligation for the three licenses totaled $13,930,000, of which $282,000 was
committed.

PEDL 152, PEDL 153, PEDL 154 & PEDL 155

Effective October 1, 2004, MPAL acquired four licenses in the Weald Basin in southern England, each granted for a period of six
years; PEDL 152 (22.5%), PEDL 153 (33.3%), PEDL 154 (50%) and PEDL 155 (40%). Each license has a drill or drop obligation at the
end of its term. The well has to be drilled within the first six years of the initial term in order for the license to extend into the next five-year
license term. The drilling plans for the Havant-1 well in PEDL 155 are in progress and spudding of this well is expected in 2010. The U.K.
company Encore Oil will fund part of MPAL’s share of the PEDL 155 drilling and exploration costs to acquire a 10% interest in the license.
At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s work obligation for the four licenses totaled $5,500,000, of which $1,588,000 was committed.
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PEDL 231, PEDL 232, PEDL 234, PEDL 240, PEDL 242, PEDL 243 & PEDL 246

Effective July 1, 2008, MPAL and its joint venture partner were granted interests in PEDL 231 (MPAL 50%), PEDL 232 (50%),
PEDL 234(50%), PEDL 240 (22.5%), PEDL 242 (100%), PEDL 243 (50%) & PEDL 246 (100%) located in the Weald and Wessex Basins
of southern England. Two of these PEDLs are operated by MPAL. Each license has a drill or drop obligation at the end of its term and
expires in July 2014. At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s share of the work obligations of: the PEDL 231, PEDL 232, PEDL 234 & PEDL 243
licenses totaled $7,500,000 of which $1,000,000 was committed; the PEDL 240 license was $1,328,000, of which $40,000 was committed;
and the PEDL 242 & PEDL 246 licenses totaled $10,515,000, of which $56,000 was committed.

CANADA

MPC owns a 2.67% carried interest in a lease (31,885 gross acres, 850 net acres) in the southeast Yukon Territory, Canada, which
includes the Kotaneelee gas field. Devon Canada Corporation is the operator of this partially developed field which is connected to a major
pipeline system. Production at Kotaneelee commenced in February 1991. The Company recorded revenue of $164,000 from this field in
fiscal 2009.

(b) Financial Information About Industry Segments.

The Company is engaged in only one industry, namely, oil and gas exploration, development, production and sale. The Company
conducts such business through its two operating segments; MPC and its wholly owned subsidiary MPAL.

(c) (1) Narrative Description of the Business.

MPC was incorporated in 1957 under the laws of Panama and was reorganized under the laws of Delaware in 1967. MPC is directly
engaged in the exploration for, and the development, production and sale of oil and gas reserves in Canada, and indirectly through its
subsidiary MPAL in Australia and the United Kingdom.

(i) Principal Products.

MPAL has an interest in the Palm Valley gas field and in the Mereenie oil and gas field in the Amadeus Basin of the Northern
Territory and in the Nockatunga, Kiana and Aldinga oil fields in the Cooper Basin of South Australia and Queensland. See Item 1(a) —
Australia — for a discussion of the oil and gas production from these fields. MPC has a direct 2.67% carried interest in the Kotaneelee gas
field in Canada.

(i1) Status of Product or Segment.

See Item 1(a) and (b) — Australia and Canada — for a discussion of the current and future operations of the Mereenie, Palm Valley,
Nockatunga, Kiana and Aldinga fields in Australia and MPC’s interest in the Kotaneelee field in Canada.

(iii) Raw Materials.

Not applicable.
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(iv) Patents, Licenses, Franchises and Concessions Held.

MPAL has interests directly and indirectly in the following permits. Permit holders are generally required to carry out agreed work
and expenditure programs.

Permit Expiration Date Location

Petroleum Lease No. 4 and No. 5 (Mereenie) (Amadeus Basin) November 2023 Northern Territory, Australia
Petroleum Lease No. 3 (Palm Valley) (Amadeus Basin) November 2024 Northern Territory, Australia
Retention License No. 2 (Dingo) (Amadeus Basin) February 2014 Northern Territory, Australia
Petroleum Lease No. 33 (Nockatunga) (Cooper Basin) April 2028 Queensland, Australia
Petroleum Lease No. 50 and No. 51 (Nockatunga) (Cooper Basin) June 2011 Queensland, Australia
Petroleum Lease No. 244 (Currambar) (Cooper Basin) November 2029 Queensland, Australia
Petroleum Lease No. 245 (Maxwell South) (Cooper Basin) November 2029 Queensland, Australia
Petroleum Production License No. 210 (Aldinga) (Cooper Basin) Held by production South Australia
Petroleum Production License No. 212 (Kiana) (Cooper Basin) Held by production South Australia

ATP 267P (Nockatunga) (Cooper Basin) November 2011 Queensland, Australia
ATP 613P (Maryborough Basin) March 2019 Queensland, Australia
ATP 674P (Maryborough Basin) Application pending Queensland, Australia

ATP 733P (Maryborough Basin)

Application pending

Queensland, Australia

ATP 732P (Cooper Basin) Application pending Queensland, Australia
PEL 94 (Cooper Basin) May 2012 South Australia
PEL 95 (Cooper Basin) October 2011 South Australia
PEL 107 (Cooper Basin) December 2013 South Australia
PEL 110 (Cooper Basin) November 2013 South Australia
PEDL 098 (Weald-Wessex Basins) September 2011 United Kingdom
PEDL 125 (Weald-Wessex Basins) June 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 126 (Weald-Wessex Basins)) June 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 135 (Weald Basin) September 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 136 (Weald Basin) September 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 137 (Weald Basin) September 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 152 (Weald-Wessex Basin) September 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 153 (Weald Basin) September 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 154 (Weald Basin) September 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 155 (Weald Basin) September 2010 United Kingdom
PEDL 231 (Weald Basin) June 2014 United Kingdom
PEDL 232 (Weald Basin) June 2014 United Kingdom
PEDL 234 (Weald Basin) June 2014 United Kingdom
PEDL 240 (Weald-Wessex Basins) June 2014 United Kingdom
PEDL 242 (Weald Basin) June 2014 United Kingdom
PEDL 243 (Weald Basin) June 2014 United Kingdom
PEDL 246 (Weald Basin) June 2014 United Kingdom
PEDL 256 (Weald Basin) April 2015 United Kingdom

Petroleum Leases issued by the Northern Territory and Queensland Governments are subject to the Petroleum (Prospecting and
Mining) Act and the Petroleum Act of the Northern Territory and the Petroleum Act and the Petroleum and Gas (Production & Safety) Act
of Queensland. Lessees have the exclusive right to produce petroleum from the land subject to payment of a rental and a royalty at the rate
of 10% of the wellhead value of the petroleum produced. Rental payments may be offset against the royalty paid. The term of a lease is
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21 years, and leases may be renewed for successive terms of 21 years each. Petroleum Production Licenses issued by the South Australian
Government are subject to the Petroleum Act of South Australia. Licensees have the exclusive right to produce petroleum from the land
subject to payment of a rental and a royalty at the rate of 10% of the wellhead value of the petroleum produced. Licenses terminate two
years after production ceases. Petroleum Exploration and Development Licenses issued by the Government of the United Kingdom are
subject to the Petroleum Act. Licensees have the exclusive right to produce petroleum from the land subject to payment of a rental. The
term of the license is 31 years.

Since 1992, there has been an ongoing controversy regarding the Aborigines and the ownership of their traditional lands. There has
been legislation aimed at resolving this controversy. The Company does not believe that this issue will have a material adverse impact on
MPAL’s properties.

(v) Seasonality of Business.

Although the Company’s business is not seasonal, the demand for oil and especially gas is subject to seasonal fluctuations in the
Australian weather.

(vi) Working Capital Items.
See Item 7 — Liquidity and Capital Resources for a discussion of this information.
(vii) Customers.

Although the majority of MPAL’s producing oil and gas properties are located in a relatively remote area in central Australia (See
Item 1 — Business and Item 2 — Properties), the completion in January 1987 of the Amadeus Basin to Darwin gas pipeline has provided
access to and expanded the potential market for MPAL’s gas production.

Natural Gas Production

MPAL’s major customer, PWC, has contracted with Eni Australia for the supply of PWC’s Northern Territory gas demand
requirement for twenty five years. Eni Australia, initially expected to commence sales in January 2009, is to supply the gas from its
Blacktip field offshore of the Northern Territory. The Blacktip development has encountered delay but is expected to commence partial
production in the near term. The follow-on production schedule and timing is not yet available to us. The Mereenie Producers will continue
to supply PWC’s gas demand on a reasonable endeavors basis to supplement Blacktip gas sales as required until December 31, 2010, unless
amended or extended. All prices for those sales now fall under the Backstop Agreement. MPAL is actively pursuing gas sales contracts for
the remaining uncontracted reserves. While gas marketing efforts to date have identified several potential customers, the majority have a
gas requirement commencing in the 2010-2013 timeframe. When Blacktip gas becomes available, there will be strong competition within
the market and MPAL may not be able to contract for the sale of the remaining uncontracted reserves in the short term, but may be able to
do so in the longer term with increasing demand from new mining developments and industrial users in the Northern Territory and the
adjacent areas of neighboring states. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas, including reasonable endeavors gas not taken by PWC,
its revenues will begin to decline substantially in 2010. Mereenie gas sales were approximately $12.4 million (net of royalties) or 85% of
total gas sales for the year ended June 30, 2009 and $15.5 million (net of royalties) or 85% of total sales for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Oil Production

Presently all of the crude oil and condensate production from Mereenie is being shipped and sold through the Port Bonython Export
Terminal, Whyalla, South Australia. Crude oil production from Kiana and Aldinga is
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generally shipped through the Moomba processing facility in northeastern South Australia and piped from there to the Port Bonython
Export Terminal where it is sold. Nockatunga crude oil is shipped and sold through the IOR Energy refinery at Eromanga, Southwest
Queensland. Oil sales during fiscal 2009 were 40.2% to the Santos group of companies, 13.1% to the Beach Petroleum group of companies,
8.0% to Origin Energy Resources and 39.2% to IOR Energy.

(viii) Backlog.

Not applicable.

(ix) Renegotiation of Profits or Termination of Contracts or Subcontracts at the Election of the Government.
Not applicable.

(x) Competitive Conditions in the Business.

The exploration for and production of oil and gas are highly competitive operations. The ability to exploit a discovery of oil or gas is
dependent upon such considerations as the ability to finance development costs, the availability of equipment, and the possibility of
engineering and construction delays and difficulties. The Company also must compete with major oil and gas companies which have
substantially greater resources than the Company.

Furthermore, various forms of energy legislation which have been or may be proposed in the countries in which the Company holds
interests may substantially affect competitive conditions. However, it is not possible to predict the nature of any such legislation which may
ultimately be adopted or its effects upon the future operations of the Company.

At the present time, the Company’s principal income producing operations are in Australia and for this reason, current competitive
conditions in Australia are material to the Company’s future. Currently, most indigenous crude oil is consumed within Australia. In
addition, refiners and others import crude oil to meet the overall demand in Australia. The Palm Valley Producers and the Mereenie
Producers are developing and separately marketing the production from each field. Because of the relatively remote location of the
Amadeus Basin and the inherent nature of the market for gas, it would be impractical for each working interest partner to attempt to market
separately its respective share of gas production from each field. MPAL’s major customer, PWC, has contracted with Eni Australia for the
supply of PWC’s Northern Territory gas demand requirement for twenty five years. Eni Australia, initially expected to commence sales in
January 2009, is to supply the gas from its Blacktip field offshore of the Northern Territory. The Blacktip development has encountered
delay but is expected to commence partial production in the near term. The follow-on production schedule and timing is not yet available to
us. The Mereenie Producers will continue to supply PWC’s gas demand on a reasonable endeavors basis to supplement Blacktip gas sales
as required until December 31, 2010, unless amended or extended. All prices for those sales now fall under the Backstop Agreement.
MPAL is actively pursuing gas sales contracts for the remaining uncontracted reserves. While gas marketing efforts to date have identified
several potential customers, the majority have a gas requirement commencing in the 2010-2013 timeframe. When Blacktip gas becomes
available, there will be strong competition within the market and MPAL may not be able to contract for the sale of the remaining
uncontracted reserves in the short term, but may be able to do so in the longer term with increasing demand from new mining developments
and industrial users in the Northern Territory and the adjacent areas of neighboring states. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas,
including reasonable endeavors gas not taken by PWC, its revenues will begin to decline substantially in 2010. Mereenie gas sales were
approximately $12.4 million (net of royalties) or 85% of total gas sales for the year ended June 30, 2009 and $15.5 million (net of royalties)
or 85% of total sales for the year ended June 30, 2008.

(xi) Research and Development.
Not applicable.
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(xii) Environmental Regulation.

The Company is subject to the environmental laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which it carries on its business, and existing
or future laws and regulations could have a significant impact on the exploration for and development of natural resources by the
Company. However, to date, the Company has not been required to spend any material amounts for environmental control facilities. The
federal and state governments in Australia strictly monitor compliance with these laws but compliance therewith has not had any adverse
impact on the Company’s operations or its financial resources.

At June 30, 2009, the Company had accrued approximately $9.8 million for asset retirement obligations for the Mereenie, Palm
Valley, Nockatunga, Kiana, Aldinga and Dingo fields. See Note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements under Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.

(xiii) Number of Persons Employed by Company.

At June 30, 2009, MPC had 5 employees in the United States and MPAL had 25 employees in Australia.
(d) (2) Financial Information Relating to Foreign and Domestic Operations.

See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) Risks Attendant to Foreign Operations.

Most of the properties in which the Company has interests are located outside the United States and are subject to certain risks
involved in the ownership and development of such foreign property interests. These risks include but are not limited to those of:
nationalization; expropriation; confiscatory taxation; changes in foreign exchange controls; currency revaluations; price controls or
excessive royalties; export sales restrictions; limitations on the transfer of interests in exploration licenses; and other laws and regulations
which may adversely affect the Company’s properties, such as those providing for conservation, proration, curtailment, cessation, or other
limitations of controls on the production of or exploration for hydrocarbons. Thus, an investment in the Company represents a speculation
with risks in addition to those inherent in domestic petroleum exploratory ventures.

Since 1992, there has been an ongoing controversy regarding the Aborigines and the ownership of their traditional lands. There has
been legislation aimed at resolving this controversy. The Company does not believe that this issue will have a material adverse impact on
MPAL’s properties.

(4) Data Which are Not Indicative of Current or Future Operations.

None.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Set forth below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are risks that should be considered in evaluating the Company’s
common stock, as well as risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual future results of the Company to differ from those expressed or
implied in the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report and in other public statements the Company makes.
Additionally, because of the following risks and uncertainties, as well as other variables affecting the Company’s operating results, the
Company’s past financial performance should not be considered an indicator of future performance.

The principal oil and gas properties owned by MPAL could stop producing oil and gas.

MPAL’s Palm Valley, Mereenie and Nockatunga fields could stop producing oil and gas or there could be a material decrease in
production levels at the fields. Since these are the three principal revenue producing
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properties of MPAL, any decline in production levels at these properties could cause MPAL’s revenues to decline, thus reducing the
amount of dividends paid by MPAL to MPC. Any such adverse impact on the revenues being received by Magellan from MPAL could
restrict our ability to explore and develop oil and gas properties in the future.

If MPAL’s existing long-term gas supply contracts are terminated or not renewed, MPAL’s business could be adversely affected.

MPAL’s financial performance and cash flows are substantially dependent upon its Palm Valley and Mereenie existing supply
contracts to sell gas produced at these fields to MPAL’s major customer, Gasgo, a subsidiary of PWC of the Northern Territory. Gasgo has
contracted with Eni Australia for the supply of PWC’s Northern Territory gas demand requirement for twenty five years. Eni Australia,
initially expected to commence sales in January 2009, is to supply the gas from its Blacktip field offshore of the Northern Territory. The
Blacktip development has encountered delay but is expected to commence partial production in the near term. The follow-on production
schedule and timing is not yet available to us. The Mereenie Producers will continue to supply PWC’s gas demand on a reasonable
endeavors basis to supplement Blacktip gas sales as required until December 31, 2010, unless amended or extended. All prices for those
sales now fall under the Backstop Agreement. MPAL is actively pursuing gas sales contracts for the remaining uncontracted reserves.
While gas marketing efforts to date have identified several potential customers, the majority have a gas requirement commencing in the
2010-2013 timeframe. When Blacktip gas becomes available, there will be strong competition within the market and MPAL may not be
able to contract for the sale of the remaining uncontracted reserves in the short term, but may be able to do so in the longer term with
increasing demand from new mining developments and industrial users in the Northern Territory and the adjacent areas of neighboring
states. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas, including reasonable endeavors gas not taken by PWC, its revenues will begin to
decline substantially in 2010. Mereenie gas sales were approximately $12.4 million (net of royalties) or 85% of total gas sales for the year
ended June 30, 2009 and $15.5 million (net of royalties) or 85% of total sales for the year ended June 30, 2008.

The Palm Valley Darwin contract expires in the year 2012 and the principal Mereenie contracts expired in January and June 2009.
The expiration of these contracts, if not replaced, will have an adverse effect on MPAL’s revenues and business outlook and possibly its
share price.

Our plans to drill for oil and gas on fields located in the U.K. may not result in successful discoveries of oil and gas.

During fiscal year 2010, we expect that at least three new wells, Markwells Wood-1, Havant-1 and Hedge End-2, in the Weald Basin
in the United Kingdom in which we hold interests will be drilled in an attempt to recover oil and gas in commercially viable quantities. If
these drilling projects are not successful, no revenues will be achieved from the drilling projects and our results of operations would be
adversely effected.

We may not be successful in sharing the exploration and development costs of the fields and permits in which we hold interests.

Our plans for drilling in the U.K. and other areas depend, in certain cases, on our ability to enter into farm-in, joint venture or other
cost sharing arrangements with other oil and gas companies. If we are not able to secure such farm-in or other arrangements in a timely
manner, or on terms which are economically attractive to the Company, we may be forced to bear higher exploration and development
costs with respect to our fields and interests. We may also be unable to fully develop and/or explore certain fields if the costs to do so
would exceed our available exploration budget and capital resources. In either case, our results of operations could be adversely affected
and the market price of our common shares could decline.

Fluctuations in our operating results and other factors may depress our stock price.

During the past few years, the equity trading markets in the United States have experienced price volatility that has often been
unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. These fluctuations may
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adversely affect the trading price of our common stock. From time to time, there may be significant volatility in the market price of our
common stock. Investors could sell shares of our common stock at or after the time that it becomes apparent that the expectations of the
market may not be realized, resulting in a decrease in the market price of our common stock.

The loss of key personnel could adversely affect our ability to operate.

We depend, and will continue to depend in the foreseeable future, on the services of the officers and key employees of MPC and
MPAL. The ability to retain its officers and key employees is important to our continued success and growth. The unexpected loss of the
services of one or more of these individuals could have a detrimental effect on our business. We maintain $2 million of key person life
insurance on our Chief Executive Officer, William Hastings.

There are risks inherent in foreign operations such as adverse changes in currency values and foreign regulations relating to
MPAL’s exploration and development operations and to MPAL’s payment of dividends to us.

The properties in which Magellan has interests are located outside the United States and are subject to certain risks related to the
indirect ownership and development of foreign properties, including government expropriation, adverse changes in currency values and
foreign exchange controls, foreign taxes, nationalization and other laws and regulations, any of which may adversely affect the Company’s
properties. In addition, MPAL’s principal present customer for gas in Australia is the Northern Territory Government, which also has
substantial regulatory authority over MPAL’s oil and gas operations. Although there are currently no exchange controls on the payment of
dividends to the Company by MPAL, such payments could be restricted by Australian foreign exchange controls, if implemented.

Our dividend policy could depress our stock price.

We have never declared or paid dividends on our common stock and have no current intention to change this policy. We plan to
retain any future earnings to reduce our accumulated deficit and finance growth. As a result, our dividend policy could depress the market
price for our common stock and cause investors to lose some or all of their investment.

We may issue a substantial number of shares of our common stock under our stock option plans and shareholders may be
adversely affected by the issuance of those shares.

As of June 30, 2009, there were 3,242,500 stock options outstanding of which 530,000 were fully vested and exercisable. There were
also 1,787,500 options available for future grants under our 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. If all of these options, which total 5,030,00 in the
aggregate, were awarded and exercised these shares would represent approximately 11% of our outstanding common stock and would,
upon their exercise and the payment of the exercise prices, dilute the interests of other shareholders and could adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

If our shares are delisted from trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market, their liquidity and value could be reduced.

In order for us to maintain the listing of our shares of common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Company’s shares must
maintain a minimum bid price of $1.00 as set forth in Marketplace Rule 5550(a)(2). If the bid price of the Company’s shares trade below
$1.00 for 30 consecutive trading days, then the bid price of the Company’s shares must trade at $1.00 or more for 10 consecutive trading
days during a 180-day grace period to regain compliance with the rule. On September 16, 2009, the Company’s shares closed at $1.40 per
share. If the Company shares were to be delisted from trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market, then most likely the shares would be traded on
the Electronic Bulletin Board, or OTC-BB. The delisting of the Company’s shares from NASDAQ could adversely impact the liquidity and
value of the Company’s shares.
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RISKS RELATED TO THE OIL AND GAS INDUSTRY

Oil and gas prices are volatile. A decline in prices could adversely affect our financial position, financial results, cash flows, access
to capital and ability to grow.

Our revenues, operating results, profitability, future rate of growth and the carrying value of our oil and gas properties depend
primarily upon the prices we receive for the oil and gas we sell. Prices also affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures
and our ability to borrow money or raise additional capital. The prices of oil, natural gas, methane gas and other fuels have been, and are
likely to continue to be, volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to numerous factors, including the following:

. worldwide and domestic supplies of oil and gas;
. changes in the supply and demand for such fuels;
. political conditions in oil, natural gas, and other fuel-producing and fuel-consuming areas;

. the extent of Australian domestic oil and gas production and importation of such fuels and substitute fuels in Australian and
other relevant markets;

. weather conditions, including effects on prices and supplies in worldwide energy markets because of recent hurricanes in the
United States;

. the competitive position of each such fuel as a source of energy as compared to other energy sources; and

. the effect of governmental regulation on the production, transportation, and sale of oil, natural gas, and other fuels.

These factors and the volatility of the energy markets make it extremely difficult to predict future oil and gas price movements with
any certainty. Furthermore, the ongoing worldwide financial and credit crisis has reduced the availability of liquidity and credit to fund the
continuation and expansion of industrial business operations worldwide. The shortage of liquidity and credit combined with recent
substantial losses in worldwide equity markets could lead to an extended worldwide economic recession. A slowdown in economic activity
caused by a recession would likely reduce worldwide demand for energy and result in lower oil and natural gas prices. Oil prices declined
from record levels in early July 2008 of over $140 per barrel to below $70 per barrel in August 2009, while natural gas prices have declined
from over $13 per mcf to approximately $3 per mcf over the same period.

Sustained declines in oil and gas prices (such as those experienced in the second half of 2008) would not only reduce revenue, but
could reduce the amount of oil and gas that we can produce economically and, as a result, could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations and reserves. Further, oil and gas prices do not necessarily move in tandem. Approximately 44% of
our proved reserves at June 30, 2009 were natural gas reserves. Gas sales contracts in Australia are adjusted to the gas price movements
related to the Australian Consumer Price Index. Future gas sales not governed by existing contracts would generate lower revenue if natural
gas prices in Australia were to decline. Sales of our proved oil reserves are dependent on world oil prices. The volatility of these prices will
affect future oil revenues. Based on 2009 sales volume and revenue, a 10% change in oil price would increase or decrease oil revenues by
approximately $1.1 million. Gas sales, which represented approximately 56% of production revenues in 2009, are derived primarily from
the Palm Valley and Mereenie fields in the Northern Territory of Australia and the gas prices are set according to long term contracts that
are subject to changes in the Australian Consumer Price Index.

Competition in the oil and natural gas industry is intense, and many of our competitors have greater financial and other resources
than we do.

We operate in the highly competitive areas of oil and natural gas acquisition, development, exploitation, exploration and production
and face intense competition from both major and other independent oil and natural
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gas companies. Many of our Australian competitors have financial and other resources substantially greater than ours, and some of them
are fully integrated oil companies. These companies may be able to pay more for development prospects and productive oil and natural gas
properties and may be able to define, evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of properties and prospects than our financial or
human resources permit. Our ability to develop and exploit our oil and natural gas properties and to acquire additional properties in the
future will depend upon our ability to successfully conduct operations, evaluate and select suitable properties and consummate transactions
in this highly competitive environment. In addition, we may not be able to compete with, or enter into cooperative relationships with, any
such firms.

Our oil and gas exploration and production operations are subject to numerous environmental laws, compliance with which may
be extremely costly.

Our operations are subject to environmental laws and regulations in the various countries in which they are conducted. Such laws and
regulations frequently require completion of a costly environmental impact assessment and government review process prior to
commencing exploratory and/or development activities. In addition, such environmental laws and regulations may restrict, prohibit, or
impose significant liability in connection with spills, releases, or emissions of various substances produced in association with fuel
exploration and development.

We can provide no assurance that we will be able to comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations or that those laws,
regulations or administrative policies or practices will not be changed by the various governmental entities. The cost of compliance with
current laws and regulations or changes in environmental laws and regulations could require significant expenditures. Moreover, if we
breach any governing laws or regulations, we may be compelled to pay significant fines, penalties, or other payments. Costs associated with
environmental compliance or noncompliance may have a material adverse impact on our cash flows, financial condition or results of
operations in the future.

The actual quantities and present value of our proved reserves may prove to be lower than we have estimated.

This annual report and the documents incorporated by reference in this annual report contain estimates of our proved reserves and the
estimated future net revenues from our proved reserves. These estimates are based upon various assumptions, including assumptions
required by the SEC relating to oil and gas prices, drilling and operating expenses, capital expenditures, taxes and availability of funds. The
process of estimating oil and gas reserves is complex. The process involves significant decisions and assumptions in the evaluation of
available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data for each reservoir. Therefore, these estimates are inherently imprecise.

Actual future production, oil and gas prices, revenues, taxes, development expenditures, operating expenses and quantities of
recoverable oil and gas reserves most likely will vary from these estimates. Such variations may be significant and could materially affect
the estimated quantities and present value of our proved reserves. In addition, we may adjust estimates of proved reserves to reflect
production history, results of exploration and development drilling, prevailing oil and gas prices and other factors, many of which are
beyond our control. Our properties may also be susceptible to hydrocarbon drainage from production by operators on adjacent properties.

There are many uncertainties in estimating quantities of oil and gas reserves. In addition, the estimates of future net cash flows from
our proved developed reserves and their present value are based upon assumptions about future production levels, prices and costs that may
prove to be inaccurate. Our estimated reserves may be subject to upward or downward revision based upon our production, results of future
exploration and development, prevailing oil and gas prices, operating and development costs and other factors.

We may not have funds sufficient to make the significant capital expenditures required to replace our reserves.

Our exploration, development and acquisition activities require substantial capital expenditures. Historically, we have funded our
capital expenditures through a combination of cash flows from operations,
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farming-in other companies or investors to MPAL’s exploration and development projects in which we have an interest and/or equity
issuances. Future cash flows are subject to a number of variables, such as the level of production from existing wells, prices of oil and gas,
and our success in developing and producing new reserves. If revenue were to decrease as a result of lower oil and gas prices or decreased
production, and our access to capital were limited, we would have a reduced ability to replace our reserves. If our cash flow from operations
is not sufficient to fund MPAL’s capital expenditure budget, we may not be able to rely upon additional farm-in opportunities, debt or
equity offerings or other methods of financing to meet these cash flow requirements.

If we are not able to replace reserves, we may not be able to sustain production.

Our future success depends largely upon our ability to find, develop or acquire additional oil and gas reserves that are economically
recoverable. Unless we replace the reserves we produce through successful development, exploration or acquisition activities, our proved
reserves will decline over time. Recovery of any additional reserves will require significant capital expenditures and successful drilling
operations. We may not be able to successfully find and produce reserves economically in the future. In addition, we may not be able to
acquire proved reserves at acceptable costs.

Exploration and development drilling may not result in commercially productive reserves.

We do not always encounter commercially productive reservoirs through our drilling operations. The new wells we drill or participate
in may not be productive and we may not recover all or any portion of our investment. The seismic data and other technologies we use do
not allow us to know conclusively prior to drilling a well that oil or gas is present or may be produced economically. The cost of drilling,
completing and operating a well is often uncertain, and cost factors can adversely affect the economics of a project. Our efforts will be
unprofitable if we drill dry wells or wells that are productive but do not produce enough reserves to return a profit after drilling, operating
and other costs. Further, our drilling operations may be curtailed, delayed or canceled as a result of a variety of factors, including:

»  unexpected drilling conditions;

. title problems;

. pressure or irregularities in formations;

. equipment failures or accidents;

»  adverse weather conditions;

*  compliance with environmental and other governmental requirements; and

. increases in the cost of, or shortages or delays in the availability of, drilling rigs and equipment.

Future price declines may result in a write-down of our asset carrying values.

We follow the successful efforts method of accounting for our oil and gas operations. Under this method, the costs of successful
wells, development dry holes and productive leases are capitalized and amortized on a units-of-production basis over the life of the related
reserves. Cost centers for amortization purposes are determined on a field-by-field basis. Magellan records its proportionate share in its
working interest agreements in the respective classifications of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Unproved properties with
significant acquisition costs are periodically assessed for impairment in value, with any required impairment charged to expense. The
successful efforts method also imposes limitations on the carrying or book value of proved oil and gas properties. Oil and gas properties
(including exploration rights), along with goodwill are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. We estimate the future undiscounted cash flows from the affected properties to determine the
recoverability of carrying amounts. In general, analyses are based on proved developed reserves, except in
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circumstances where it is probable that additional resources will be developed and contribute to cash flows in the future. For Mereenie,
proved developed natural gas reserves are limited to contracted quantities. For Palm Valley, reserves were based upon the quantities of gas
committed to the contract and estimated sales subsequent to the contract date. If such contracts are extended, the proved developed reserves
will be increased to the lesser of the actual proved developed reserves and risk adjusted probable and possible reserves or the contracted
quantities. A significant decline in oil and gas prices from current levels, or other factors, without other mitigating circumstances, could
cause a future write down of capitalized costs and a non-cash charge against future earnings.

Oil and gas drilling and producing operations are hazardous and expose us to environmental liabilities.

Oil and gas operations are subject to many risks, including well blowouts, cratering and explosions, pipe failure, fires, formations with
abnormal pressures, uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas, brine or well fluids, and other environmental hazards and risks. Our drilling
operations involve risks from high pressures and from mechanical difficulties such as stuck pipes, collapsed casings and separated cables. If
any of these risks occur, we could sustain substantial losses as a result of:

. injury or loss of life;

. severe damage to or destruction of property, natural resources and equipment;
. pollution or other environmental damage;

. clean-up responsibilities;

. regulatory investigations and penalties;

. and suspension of operations.

Our liability for environmental hazards includes those created either by the previous owners of properties that we purchase or lease or
by acquired companies prior to the date we acquire them. We maintain insurance against some, but not all, of the risks described above.
Our insurance may not be adequate to cover casualty losses or liabilities. Also, in the future we may not be able to obtain insurance at
premium levels that justify its purchase.

Difficult conditions resulting from the ongoing U.S. and worldwide financial and credit crisis, and significant concerns over the
continuing recessions in the U.S. and Australian economies, may materially adversely affect our business and results of operations
and we do not expect these conditions to improve in the near future.

Since 2008, the United States and many other nations (including Australia) around the world have been experiencing a financial and
credit crisis. Concerns over inflation, energy costs, geopolitical issues, the availability and cost of credit, the U.S. mortgage market and a
declining real estate market in the U.S. and elsewhere have contributed to increased market volatility and disruptions and diminished
expectations for the U.S. and world economies and markets going forward. These factors, combined with volatile oil and gas prices,
declining business and consumer confidence and increased unemployment, have precipitated a worldwide economic slowdown.

In addition, the U.S. and worldwide capital and credit markets have been experiencing extreme volatility and disruption for more than
twelve months. Initially, the concerns on the part of market participants were focused on the subprime segment of the mortgage-backed
securities market. However, these concerns have since expanded to include a broad range of mortgage and asset-backed and other fixed
income securities, including those rated investment grade, the U.S. and international credit and interbank money markets generally, and a
wide range of financial institutions and markets, asset classes and sectors. Since September 2008, market volatility and disruptions have
reached unprecedented levels, leading in many cases to unprecedented
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government legislation and other actions to stabilize world markets and financial institutions and promote consumer and investor
confidence.

Continuing volatility and disruption in worldwide capital and credit markets and further deteriorating conditions in the U.S. and
Australian economies could affect our revenues and earnings negatively and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition. For example, purchasers of our oil and gas production may reduce the amounts of oil and gas they
purchase from us and/or delay or be unable to make timely payments to us.

Further, a number of our oil and gas properties are operated by third parties whom we depend upon for timely performance of drilling
and other contractual obligations and, in some cases, for distribution to us of our proportionate share of revenues from sales of oil and gas
we produce. If current economic conditions adversely impact our third party operators, we are exposed to the risk that drilling operations or
revenue disbursements to us could be delayed. This “trickle down” effect could significantly harm our business, financial condition and
results of operation.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations may negatively affect our operating results.

The exchange rates among the Australian dollar and the U.S. dollar, as well as the exchange rates between the Australian dollar and
the U.K. pound sterling, have changed in recent periods and may fluctuate substantially in the future. We expect that a majority of our
revenue will continue to be generated in the Australian dollar in the future. Since June 30, 2008, the U.S. dollar has strengthened materially
against the Australian dollar which has had, and may continue to have, a materially negative impact on our revenues generated in the
Australian dollar, as well as our operating income and net income, as considered on a consolidated basis. The foreign exchange loss for the
year ended June 30, 2009 was $9.9 million and is included in accumulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet. Any
continued appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the Australian dollar is likely to have a negative impact on our revenue, operating income
and net income. Because of our U.K. development program, a portion of our expenses, including exploration costs and capital and operating
expenditures, will continue to be denominated in U.K. pound sterling. Accordingly, any material appreciation of the U.K. pound sterling
against the Australian dollar could have a negative impact on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.

None

Item 2. Properties.

(a) MPC has interests in properties in Australia through its 100% equity interest in MPAL which holds interests in the Northern
Territory, Queensland and South Australia. MPAL also has interests in the United Kingdom. In Canada, MPC has a direct interest in one
lease. For additional information regarding the Company’s properties, See Item 1 — Business.

(b) (1) The information regarding reserves, costs of oil and gas activities, capitalized costs, discounted future net cash flows and
results of operations is contained in Supplementary Oil & Gas Information under Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The following graphic presentation has been omitted, but the following is a description of the omitted material:

AUSTRALIAN MAP WITH MPAL PROJECTS SHOWN
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The following graphic presentation has been omitted, but the following is a description of the omitted material:

AMADEUS BASIN PROJECTS MAP
The map indicates the location of the Amadeus Basin interests in the Northern Territory of Australia. The following items are
identified:

Palm Valley Gas Field

Mereenie Oil & Gas Field

Dingo Gas Field

Palm Valley — Alice Springs Gas Pipeline
Palm Valley — Darwin Gas Pipeline
Mereenie Spur Gas Pipeline

Mereenie Oil Pipeline

The following graphic presentation has been omitted, but the following is a description of the omitted material:

CANADIAN PROPERTY INTERESTS MAP

The map indicates the location of the Kotaneelee Gas Field in the Yukon Territories of Canada. The map identifies the following
items:

Kotaneelee Gas Field
Pointed Mountain Gas Field
Beaver River Gas Field

The following graphic presentation has been omitted, but the following is a description of the omitted material:

UNITED KINGDOM PROPERTY INTERESTS MAP
The map indicates the location of the MPAL property interests in the United Kingdom.
(2) Reserves Reported to Other Agencies.
None
(3) Production.

MPC’s production volumes, net of royalties, for gas and oil during the three years ended June 30, 2009 were as follows (data for
Canada has not been included since MPC is in a carried interest position and the data is not material):

2009 2008 2007
Australia:
Gas (bcf) 5.2 5.7 5.9
Crude oil (bbl) 153,000 211,000 179,000
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The average sales price per unit of production for Australia for the following fiscal years is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Australia:
Gas (per mcf) A$ 3.54 AS$ 339 AS$ 324
Crude oil (per bbl) A.$91.21 A.$102.35 A.$80.75
The average production cost per unit of production for Australia for the following fiscal years is as follows:
2009 2008 2007
Australia:
Gas (per mcf) AS$ 99 AS$ 82 AS 71
Crude oil (per bbl) A.$26.72 A.$17.98 A.$18.55

Amounts presented above are in Australian dollars to show a more meaningful trend of underlying operations. For the
June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 the average foreign exchange rates were .7471, .8965, and .7860, respectively.

(4) Productive Wells and Acreage.

Productive wells and acreage at June 30, 2009

Productive Wells

years ended

Qil Gas Developed Acreage

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Acres  Net Acres

Australia
Canada
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88,280 37,612
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(5) Undeveloped Acreage.

The Company’s undeveloped acreage (except as indicated below) is set forth in the table below:

GROSS AND NET ACREAGE AS OF JUNE 30, 2009

MPAL has interests in the following properties (before royalties). MPC has an interest in these properties through its 100% interest in

MPAL.
MPC
Interest
Gross Acres Net Acres %
Australia
Northern Territory
PL 4/PL 5 Mereenie (Amadeus Basin) (1) 70,049 24,517  35.0000
PL 3 Palm Valley (Amadeus Basin) (2) 157,932 82,161 52.0230
RL 2 Dingo (Amadeus Basin) 116,139 39,878 34.3365
344,120 146,556
Queensland:
PL 33/PL 50/PL 51/PL 244/PL 245 Nockatunga (Cooper Basin) (3) 102,233 41,850 40.936
ATP 267P (Cooper Basin) 106,704 43,680 40.936
ATP 613P (Maryborough Basin) 153,387 153,387 100.000
362,324 238,917
South Australia:
PPL 210 Aldinga (Cooper Basin) (4) 939 469 50.00
PPL 212 Kiana (Cooper Basin) (5) 395 119 30.00
PEL 94 (Cooper Basin) 445,588 155,956 35.00
PEL 95 (Cooper Basin) 637,507 318,754 50.00
PEL 107 (Cooper Basin) 100,529 20,106 20.00
PEL 110 (Cooper Basin) 180,310 108,186 60.00
1,365,268 603,590
United Kingdom:
PEDL 098/152/240 (Wessex Basin) 31,245 7,030 22.50
PEDL 125/126/155/256 (Weald Basin) 136,120 54,448 40.00
PEDL 135/136/137/242/246 (Weald Basin) 155,459 155,459 100.00
PEDL 153 (Weald Basin) 66,242 22,078 33.33
PEDL 154 (Weald Basin) 84,834 42,417 50.00
PEDL 231/232/234/243 (Weald Basin) 270,342 135,171 50.00
744,242 416,603
Total MPAL 2,815,954 1,405,666
Properties held directly by MPC:
Canada
Yukon and Northwest Territories:
Kotaneelee carried interest (6) 31,885 850 2.67
Total 2,847,839 1,406,516

(1) Includes 41,644 gross developed acres and 21,665 net acres.
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(2) Includes 31,567 gross developed acres and 11,048 net acres.
(3) Includes 11,200 gross developed acres and 4,585 net acres.
(4) Includes 346 gross developed acres and 173 net acres.
(5) Includes 173 gross developed acres and 52 net acres.
(6) Includes 3,350 gross developed acres and 89 net acres.
(6) Drilling Activity.
Productive and dry net wells drilled during the following years (data concerning Canada is insignificant):

Australia/United Kingd

Year Ended Exploration Development
June 30, Productive Dry Productive Dry
2009 0.00 0.00 0.00 —
2008 0.00 0.90 0.41 —
2007 0.82 1.55 3.27 —

(7) Present Activities.
See Item 1 — Cooper Basin and United Kingdom for a discussion of the present activities of MPAL.
(8) Delivery Commitments.

See discussion under Item 1 concerning the Palm Valley and Mereenie fields.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

None

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
(a) On May 27, 2009, the Company held its 2008 Annual General Meeting of Stockholders.

(b) The following director was elected as a director of the Company. The vote was as follows:

Shares Stockholders
For Withheld For Withheld
William H. Hastings 27,852,601 6,822,991 1,078 89

(c) Authorization to amend the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to repeal, effective December 31, 2009, the “per
capita” voting requirements of Articles 12t and 14 thereof, which will have the effect of adopting one share, one vote for all matters for
which shareholders are required to vote under the Delaware General Corporation Law. The vote was as follows:

Shares Stockholders
For 31,607,833 1,018
Against 1,814,198 89
Abstain 1,326,667 60
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(d) Authorization to amend the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to repeal, effective December 31, 2009, Article 13,
the “super majority” voting provision of the Restated Certificate. The vote was as follows:

Shares Stockholders
For 30,784,474 987
Against 2,533,857 112
Abstain 1,430,367 68

(e) Approval of a $10 million equity investment in the Company through the issuance (A) 8,695,652 shares of the Company’s
common stock and (B) warrants to acquire 4,347,826 shares of common stock to Young Energy Prize S.A. or its affiliate. The vote was as
follows:

Shares Stockholders
For 14,736,131 934
Against 2,341,364 141
Abstain 1,330,801 74

(f) Approval of an amendment and restatement of the Company’s 1998 Stock Option Plan to: (A) increase the authorized shares of
common stock reserved for awards under the Plan to 5,205,000 shares; (B) authorize the Compensation Committee to award shares of
restricted stock, make annual awards of stock to non-employee directors and make performance-based awards; and (C) rename the Plan the
“1998 Stock Incentive Plan.” The vote was as follows:

Shares Stockholders
For 12,309,652 851
Against 4,820,814 225
Abstain 1,303,737 73

(g) The firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP was appointed as the Company’s independent auditors for the year ending June 30, 2009. The
vote was as follows:

Shares Stockholders
For 31,019,215 1,068
Against 1,439,273 43
Abstain 2,290,210 56
PART II
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Securities

(a) Principal Market

The principal market for MPC’s common stock is the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol MPET. The stock is also traded on
the Australian Stock Exchange in the form of CHESS depository interests under the symbol MGN. The quarterly high and low prices on
the most active market, NASDAQ, during the quarterly periods indicated were as follows:

2009 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr.
High 1.64 1.10 0.78 1.35
Low 1.02 0.48 0.58 0.61
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2008 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr.
High 1.67 1.14 1.26 1.87
Low 1.01 0.89 0.87 1.16

(b) Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock at September 1, 2009

Title of Class Number of Record Holders
Common stock, par value $.01 per share 5,886

(c) Frequency and Amount of Dividends

MPC has never paid a cash dividend on its common stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, there were no equity securities of the Company sold that were not registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”).

As previously disclosed in the Company’s current reports filed on February 10, 2009, April 8, 2009, June 2, 2009 and July 14, 2009,
the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated February 9, 2009, with Young Energy Prize
S.A. (“YEP”) under which the Company agreed to sell, and YEP agreed to purchase, 8,695,652 shares (the “Shares”) of the Company’s
common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”) at a purchase price of $1.15 per share, or an aggregate of $10,000,000.
The Purchase Agreement was amended on April 3, 2009 and June 30, 2009. On July 9, 2009, the Company and YEP completed the
issuance and sale of the Shares to YEP. The Company received gross proceeds of $10 million, which will be used for general corporate and
working capital purposes. On July 9, 2009, the Company also executed and delivered to YEP a Warrant Agreement entitling YEP to
purchase an additional 4,347,826 shares of the Company’s Common Stock (the “Warrant Shares™) at an exercise price of $1.20 per Warrant
Share, subsequently reduced to $1.15 per share on July 30, 2009.

The shares sold to YEP in the private placement and the Warrant Shares were not registered under the Securities Act or state securities
laws, and may not be resold in the United States in the absence of an effective registration statement filed with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or an available exemption from the applicable federal and state registration requirements. In the Purchase
Agreement, YEP represented to the Company that: (a) it is an accredited investor, as such term is defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act; (b) it acquired the Shares and the Warrant as principal for its own account for investment purposes
only and not with a view to or for distributing or reselling the Shares and the Warrant or any part thereof, and (c) it is knowledgeable,
sophisticated, and experienced in making, and qualified to make, decisions with respect to investments in securities representing an
investment decision similar to that involved in the purchase of the Shares and the Warrant. The Company has relied on the exemption from
the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Regulation S promulgated thereunder for the purposes of the YEP
transaction.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth the number of shares that the Company has repurchased under any of its repurchase plans for the stated
periods, the cost per share of such repurchases and the number of shares that may yet be repurchased under the plans:

Maximum

Total Number of Number of
Total Number of Average Price Shares Purchased Shares that May
Shares Paid as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Period Purchased per Share Announced Plan(1) Under Plan
July 1, 2008 — June 30, 2009 0 0 0 319,150

(1) The Company through its stock repurchase plan may purchase up to one million shares of its common stock in the open market.
Through June 30, 2009, the Company had purchased 680,850 of its shares at an average
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price of $1.01 per share, or a total cost of approximately $686,000, all of which shares have been cancelled. No shares were purchased
during 2009, 2008 or 2007.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth selected data (in thousands except for exchange rates and per share data) and other operating
information of the Company. The selected consolidated financial data in the table, except for the exchange rate and market value per share,
are derived from the consolidated financial statements of the Company. This data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements, related notes and other financial information included herein.

Years Ended June 30,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Financial Data
Total revenues $ 28,191 $ 40,895 $ 30,675 $ 26,562 $ 21,871
Net income (loss) 665 (8,892) 447 749 87
Net income (loss) per share (basic and diluted) .02 (.21) .01 .03 —
Working capital 37,161 37,780 29,004 24,820 26,208
Cash provided by operating activities 9,239 5,496(1) 15,936(1) 9,875(1) 7,022(1)
Property and equipment (net) 17,529 28,447 40,321 27,783 24,265
Total assets 71,704 85,295 85,616 68,580 56,424
Long-term liabilities 11,809 14,153 13,076 8,583 5,729
Minority interests — — — — 18,583
Stockholders’ equity:

Capital 73,726 73,631 73,568 73,560 44,660

Accumulated deficit (22,193) (22,858) (13,966) (14,413) (15,161)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 1,980 11,690 4,373 (3,028) (2,323)

Total stockholders’ equity 53,513 62,463 63,975 56,119 27,176
Exchange rate A.$ = U.S. at end of period .80 .96 .84 .73 .76
Common stock outstanding shares end of period 41,500 41,500 41,500 41,500 25,783
Book value per share 1.29 1.51 1.54 1.35 1.05
Quoted market value per share (NASDAQ) 1.11 1.62 1.52 1.57 2.40
Operating Data
Annual production (net of royalties) Gas (bcf) 5.2 5.7 5.9 5.7 5.7
Oil (bbls) (In thousands) 153 211 179 155 151

(1) Restated — see Note 12 of Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Restatement

As discussed in Note 12 to accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we have
restated the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 that were presented in Item 8 of the
Company’s Form 10-K. All affected amounts contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations have been adjusted to reflect the restatement.

Forward Looking Statements

Statements included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations which are not
historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby identified as, forward looking statements for purposes of the “Safe Harbor” Statement
under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company cautions readers that forward looking statements are subject to
certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the forward looking statements.
The results reflect fully the consolidated financial statements of MPC. Among these risks and uncertainties are pricing and production
levels from the properties in which Magellan and MPAL have interests, the extent of the recoverable reserves at those properties and the
future outcome of the negotiations for gas sales contracts for the remaining uncontracted reserves at both the Mereenie and Palm Valley gas
fields in the Amadeus Basin, including the likelihood of success of other potential suppliers of gas to the current customers of Mereenie and
Palm Valley production. In addition, MPAL has a large number of exploration permits and faces the risk that any wells drilled may fail to
encounter hydrocarbons in commercially recoverable quantities. Magellan assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements
contained in this release, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Executive Summary

MPC is engaged in the exploration, development, production, and sale of natural gas and oil reserves. Magellan has maintained a
conservative financial philosophy and is now well-positioned with cash and no debt to gain value through acquisition of distressed, debt-
laden small-cap companies with substantive discovered reserves.

MPAL has begun refocusing its activities toward long-term development of and sale of reserves from the Amadeus Basin, gaining
ownership/control of existing reserves offshore in the Bonaparte and Browse Basin, Australia and toward entry into major oil/gas basins in
North America and Europe beginning with the Weald Basin, onshore southern United Kingdom. In addition, a number of other recent
initiatives are active as described below:

. We completed our first Private Investment transaction with Young Energy Prize S. A. (YEP) and signed a significant Heads of
Agreement and Exclusivity Agreement with a major Methanol producer that will lead to the start of a feasibility study and
commercial negotiations which may result in the construction of a methanol plant in or around the Darwin, NT, Australia area.

. We have started work with an independent advisor to sell all of our assets in the Cooper Basin, Australia. Initial indications are
that there will be considerable interest in bidding on the package(s). These assets are non-core to our strategies and are better
suited to being consolidated into other portfolios.

. Discussions are ongoing regarding consolidation of operations/ownership of our Palm Valley and Mereenie fields. We believe
that success in these programs will result in material long-term expense reduction.

. Gas sales discussions for near and longer term Mereenie volumes remain very active and promising. We are working to
supplement delayed Blacktip volumes and are endeavoring to resolve the situation
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on a longer-term basis as well. In the interim, full gas flow to PWC continues and all prices for those sales now fall under the
higher-priced Mereenie Sales Agreement 4, which runs on a best endeavors basis through December 31, 2010, unless amended
or extended.

. With the removal of land ownership and royalty issues in the United Kingdom, we are now in a position to initiate drilling at our
first United Kingdom onshore location, Markwells Wood. We have ongoing discussions with the Operator, Northern Petroleum.
From both an environmental and economic standpoint it is prudent to select a drilling rig that fits the requirements of the area
and minimizes local impact. The Operator believes it will be in a position to do that with a target spud date in the first quarter of
2010.

. We are exploring asset acquisition opportunities in North America with the idea of adding production and value while
monetizing our tax loss carryforward position.

. We are actively discussing property transactions and capital infusions so as to take positions in gas supply toward the Methanol
feasibility and commercial process mentioned above.

The Palm Valley Darwin contract expires in the year 2012 and the principal Mereenie contracts expired in January and June 2009.
Supply obligations under the Mereenie contracts ceased in June 2009, however, there is a reasonable endeavor obligation to supply certain
of PWC’s requirements through to December 31, 2010. The Palm Valley local sales contract expires in January 2012 and the Mereenie
contracts continue on a month-to-month basis into 2010 under an evergreen term. The Company is making strong efforts to dedicate
remaining natural gas to area buyers under “life of remaining reserves” agreement(s).

MPAL’s major customer, PWC, has contracted with Eni Australia for the supply of PWC’s Northern Territory gas demand
requirement for twenty five years. Eni Australia, initially expected to commence sales in January 2009, is to supply the gas from its
Blacktip field offshore of the Northern Territory. The Blacktip development has encountered delay but is expected to commence partial
production in the near term. The follow-on production schedule and timing is not yet available to us. The Mereenie Producers will continue
to supply PWC’s gas demand on a reasonable endeavors basis to supplement Blacktip gas sales as required until December 31, 2010, unless
amended or extended. All prices for those sales now fall under the Backstop Agreement. MPAL is actively pursuing gas sales contracts for
the remaining uncontracted reserves. While gas marketing efforts to date have identified several potential customers, the majority have a
gas requirement commencing in the 2010-2013 timeframe. When Blacktip gas becomes available, there will be strong competition within
the market and MPAL may not be able to contract for the sale of the remaining uncontracted reserves in the short term, but may be able to
do so in the longer term with increasing demand from new mining developments and industrial users in the Northern Territory and the
adjacent areas of neighboring states. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas, including reasonable endeavors gas not taken by PWC,
its revenues will begin to decline substantially in 2010. Mereenie gas sales were approximately $12.4 million (net of royalties) or 85% of
total gas sales for the year ended June 30, 2009 and $15.5 million (net of royalties) or 85% of total sales for the year ended June 30, 2008.

MPC also has a direct 2.67% carried interest in the Kotaneelee gas field in the Yukon Territory of Canada. The Company recorded
revenue of $164,000 from this investment during fiscal year 2009.

On July 9, 2009, the Company completed, pursuant to the terms of a definitive purchase agreement and related amendments an equity
investment in the Company by the Company’s strategic investor, Young Energy Prize S.A. (“YEP”), through the issuance to YEP of
8,695,652 shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share (the “Common Stock™) and warrants to acquire an additional
4,347,826 shares of Common Stock. The Company received gross proceeds of $10 million, which will be used for working capital and
general corporate purposes.

On July 9, 2009, the Company entered into a Warrant Agreement which entitles YEP to purchase 4,347,826 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock (the “Warrant Shares”) at an exercise price of $1.20 per Warrant Share.
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The Warrant has a term of five years and contains certain provisions which would reduce the exercise price. Furthermore The First
Amendment to the Purchase Agreement provides that, if YEP completes the purchase of the ANS Shares from the ANS Parties under the
ANS-YEP Purchase Agreement, (more fully described in Item 8.01 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed on April 8, 2009,) then the exercise
price payable by YEP for the Warrant Shares shall be reduced from $1.20 to $1.15 per share. This transaction was completed on July 30,
2009 reducing the exercise price to $1.15 per share.

In connection with the YEP Purchase Agreement, at a Board meeting held on May 27, 2009, the Company’s Board adopted
resolutions: (a) conditionally amending the Company’s Bylaws to expand the size of the Board; and (b) conditionally electing
Messrs. Nikolay Bogachev and J. Thomas Wilson to the Board as Class II directors, each to serve a term of office expiring at the
Company’s 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. On July 9, 2009, upon completion of the YEP equity investment transaction, the
elections to the Board of Messrs. Bogachev and Wilson became effective.

Critical Accounting Policies
Oil and Gas Properties

The Company follows the successful efforts method of accounting for its oil and gas operations. Under this method, the costs of
successful wells, development dry holes, productive leases, and permit and concession costs are capitalized and amortized on a units-of-
production basis over the life of the related reserves. Cost centers for amortization purposes are determined on a field-by-field basis. The
Company records its proportionate share in joint venture operations in the respective classifications of assets, liabilities and expenses.
Unproved properties with significant acquisition costs are periodically assessed for impairment in value, with any impairment charged to
expense. The successful efforts method also imposes limitations on the carrying or book value of proved oil and gas properties. Oil and gas
properties are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. In general, analyses are based on proved developed reserves, except in circumstances where it is probable that additional
resources will be developed and contribute to cash flows in the future. For Mereenie, proved developed natural gas reserves were limited to
contracted quantities. For Palm Valley, reserves were based upon the quantities of gas committed to the contract and estimated sales
subsequent to the contract date. If such contracts are extended, the proved developed reserves will be increased to the lesser of the actual
proved developed reserves and risk adjusted probable and possible reserves or the contracted quantities.

Exploratory drilling costs are initially capitalized pending determination of proved reserves but are charged to expense if no proved
reserves are found. Other exploration costs, including geological and geophysical expenses, leasehold expiration costs and delay rentals, are
expensed as incurred. Because the Company follows the successful efforts method of accounting, the results of operations may vary
materially from quarter to quarter. An active exploration program may result in greater exploration and dry hole costs.
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Nondepletable assets

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, oil and gas properties include $6.6 million and $6.8 million, respectively, of capitalized costs that are

currently not being depleted. Components of these costs are as follows:

Nondepletable capitalized costs

For the year ended June 30,

PEL 106 — Cooper Basin (1)
Balance beginning of year
Additions to capitalized costs
Exchange adjustment
Balance end of year

Weald/Wessex Basin U.K. (2)
Balance beginning of year
Additions to capitalized costs
Exchange adjustment

Balance end of year

Nockatunga

Balance beginning of year
Additions to capitalized costs
Reclassified to producing properties
Exchange adjustment

Balance end of year

Exploration permits and licenses — Australia and U.K. (3)
Balance beginning of year
Charged to expense

Balance end of year

Total

Balance beginning of year
Additions to capitalized costs
Reclassified to producing properties
Charged to expense (3)

Exchange adjustment

Balance end of year

2009 2008 2007
$1,855,186  $ 1,615,943  $ 1,170,040
_ 12,746 264,492
(302,348) 226,497 181,411
$1,552,838  $ 1,855,186  $ 1,615,943
$ 549935 $ — $ —
485,725 549,935 —
(52,112) — —
$ 983,548 $ 549935  § —
$ — $ 7431514 $ —
— — 7,431,514
— (7,431,514) —
$ — $ — $ 7,431,514
$4.425749 S 4431347  $ 5323347
(321,258) (5,598) (892,000)
$4,104,491 S 4425749 S 4,431,347
$6,830,870  $13,478,804  $ 6,493,387
485,725 562,681 7,696,006
— (7,431,514) —
(321,258) (5,598) (892,000)
(354,460) 226,497 181,411
$6,640,877  $ 6,830,870  $13,478,804

(1) These costs were capitalized during the year ended June 30, 2006 and remain capitalized because the related well has sufficient
quantity of reserves to justify its completion as a producing well. Efforts are currently being made to market the gas from this well. The
operator intends to apply for a petroleum retention license with the objective of obtaining a petroleum production license by the end of
calendar year 2009. The intention is to commence gas production and sales in January 2010.

(2) Capitalized exploratory well costs pending the start of production.

(3) The Company evaluates exploration permits and licenses annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value, related to step up to fair value for the 44.87% remaining interest acquired in 2006, may be impaired. See discussion
under Goodwill below for valuation methodology of the exploration permits and licenses. An impairment loss of $63,740 was recorded
during the fiscal year. In addition, the Company did not renew certain permits resulting in a write off of $257,518. These amounts are

recorded in exploration and dry hole costs.
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Goodwill

All of our goodwill is related to the fiscal 2006 acquisition of the 44.87% of MPAL that we did not own at the time. In accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is not amortized and is tested
for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. We performed
our annual impairment testing as of June 30, 2009 and determined that no impairment existed as of that date.

We employ the adjusted balance sheet method to estimate the fair value of MPAL. This method entails estimating the fair value of all
of MPAL’s balance sheet items as of the valuation date. If the adjusted equity value, after considering the fair values of the assets and
liabilities, is greater than the carrying value of MPAL, then no impairment is indicated. Management believes that this methodology is most
meaningful since the highest and best use of these assets would be to continue to hold and exploit the assets over time.

The fair value of our oil and gas properties are estimated based on the discounted cash flows of our proved and risk adjusted probable
and possible reserves.

The significant assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the oil and gas properties are oil and gas selling prices for non-
contracted volumes, oil and gas sales volumes, discount rates, and production trends. The fair value of MPAL is most susceptible to
changes in selling prices of oil and gas and changes in estimated sales volume. As an example, a 10% decrease in the selling price or sales
volume of oil and gas for the non-contracted volumes would reduce the estimated fair value of MPAL by approximately $3.3 million.

The fair value of our nondepletable exploration permits and licenses is estimated separately using one of four methods — discounted
cash flows, discounted cash flows adjusted for chances of success, recent farmin costs and premiums, and estimated costs of committed
work programs. The majority of the permits and licenses are valued based on the estimated cost of agreed work program commitments,
which is a methodology that is not dependent on significant assumptions.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” requires legal obligations
associated with the retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time that the obligations are incurred. Upon
initial recognition of a liability, that cost is capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset (oil & gas properties) and amortized on a units-
of-production basis over the life of the related reserves. Accretion expense in connection with the discounted liability is recognized over the
remaining life of the related reserves.

The estimated liability is based on the future estimated cost of land reclamation, plugging the existing oil and gas wells and removing
the surface facilities equipment in our operating fields. The liability is a discounted liability using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate on the date
such liabilities are determined. Revisions to the liability could occur due to changes in the estimates or timing of these costs, acquisition of
additional properties and as new wells are drilled.

Estimates of future asset retirement obligations include significant management judgment and are based on projected future retirement
costs. Judgments are based upon such things as field life and estimated costs. Such costs could differ significantly when they are incurred.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes oil and gas revenue (net of royalties) from its interests in producing wells as oil and gas is produced and
sold from those wells. Revenues from the purchase, sale and transportation of natural

31



Table of Contents

gas are recognized upon completion of the sale and when transported volumes are delivered. Other production related revenues are
primarily MPAL’s share of gas pipeline tariff revenues which are recorded at the time of sale. The Company records pipeline tariff
revenues on a gross basis with the revenue included in other production related revenues and the remittance of such tariffs are included in
production costs. Government sales taxes related to MPAL’s oil and gas production revenues are collected by MPAL and remitted to the
Australian government. Such amounts are excluded from revenue and expenses. Shipping and handling costs in connection with such
deliveries are included in production costs except for Nockatunga crude oil transportation costs which are deducted from gross sales.
Revenue under carried interest agreements is recorded in the period when the net proceeds become receivable, measurable and collection is
reasonably assured. The time when the net revenues become receivable and collection is reasonably assured depends on the terms and
conditions of the relevant agreements and the practices followed by the operator. As a result, net revenues may lag the production month
by one or more months.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At June 30, 2009, the Company on a consolidated basis had approximately $34.7 million of cash and cash equivalents and $1.0
million in marketable securities. The Company considers cash equivalents to be short term, highly liquid investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of change
in interest rates. Cash balances were $13.3 million as of June 30, 2009 and the remaining $21.4 million was held in time deposit accounts in
several Australian banks that have terms of 90 days or less. National Australia Bank, Ltd. (“NAB”) holds 55% of the cash and cash
equivalent balance. Although the funds are uninsured, Standard and Poor’s credit rating of NAB is AA Stable long-term and A-1+ short-
term.

Consolidated

When considering our liquidity and capital resources, we consider cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities together since
all of these amounts are available to fund operating, exploration and development activities. The balance of cash and cash equivalents and
marketable securities decreased $637,000 during the year ended June 30, 2009 compared to a $3.5 million increase in those balances during
the year ended June 30, 2008. The factors favorably impacting our liquidity and capital resources during the year ended June 30, 2009
included a decrease in tax payments of $12.2 million offset by a net decrease in collections of $8.8 million. We also experienced a $1.4
million decrease in cash expenditures on exploration and development and a $1.8 million decrease in property and equipment expenditures
offset by a $0.6 million investment in securities available for sale. Our cash position was also unfavorably affected by a $10.2 million
decrease in foreign exchange transaction gains resulting from a weakened Australian dollar.

The decrease in cash from the sales of oil and gas was due to decreased sales of $12.7 million offset by a decrease in accounts
receivable of $3.9 million. Sales decreases were mostly due to a 27% decrease in barrels sold, attributable essentially to a 48,000 barrel
decrease in the Nockatunga project resulting from a downward production trend. The decrease in accounts receivable resulted from the
collection in 2009 of 2008 revenues for which the due date had been extended.

The Company invested $2.9 million and $6.1 million in oil and gas exploration activities, which includes additions to property and
equipment, during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The decrease was due to reduced drilling activities in 2009.

MPAL’s current contracts for the sale of Palm Valley gas will expire during fiscal years 2012. Mereenie contracts expired in January
and June 2009. Supply obligations ceased in June 2009, however, there is a reasonable endeavor obligation to supply certain of PWC’s
requirements through to December 31, 2010, unless amended or extended. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas, including
reasonable endeavors gas not taken by PWC or be successful in its current exploration program, its revenues will begin to decline
substantially
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in 2010 which would materially affect liquidity. The price of gas under the Palm Valley and Mereenie gas contracts is adjusted quarterly to
reflect changes in the Australian Consumer Price Index. For further information, see “Gas Supply Contracts” in Item 1-Business above.
MPAL’s oil sales are dependent on world oil prices. The volatility of these prices will affect future oil revenues. The Company will align
operating expenses with any reductions in revenues.

As to MPC (Unconsolidated)

In December, 2008, a dividend of $3.0 million was received from MPAL to fund operating costs. Also in June, 2009, MPAL loaned
approximately $1.9 million to MPC.

On July 9, 2009, the Company completed, pursuant to the terms of a definitive purchase agreement and related amendments an equity
investment in the Company by the Company’s strategic investor, Young Energy Prize S.A. through the issuance to YEP of 8,695,652
shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share and warrants to acquire an additional 4,347,826 shares of Common
Stock. The Company received gross proceeds of $10 million, which will be used for working capital and general corporate purposes.

At June 30, 2009, MPC, on an unconsolidated basis, had working capital of $800,054. Working capital is comprised of current assets
less current liabilities. MPC’s current cash position and any future MPAL dividends should be adequate to meet MPC’s current and future
cash requirements.

MPC has a stock repurchase plan to purchase up to one million shares of its common stock in the open market. Through June 30,
2009, MPC purchased 680,850 of its shares at a cost of approximately $686,000. There were no shares purchased during fiscal years 2009,
2008 or 2007.

As to MPAL

At June 30, 2009, MPAL had working capital of $36,360,451. MPAL had budgeted approximately (Aus) $6.0 million for specific
exploration projects in fiscal year 2009 as compared to the (Aus) $4.7 million expensed during fiscal 2009. During the year, there was less
money spent than budgeted in the United Kingdom. The current composition of MPAL’s oil and gas reserves are such that MPAL’s future
revenues in the long-term are expected to be derived from the sale of oil and gas in Australia. MPAL’s current contracts for the sale of
Palm Valley gas will expire during fiscal years 2012. Mereenie contracts expired in January and June 2009. Supply obligations ceased in
June 2009, however, there is a reasonable endeavor obligation to supply certain of PWC’s requirements through to December 31, 2010,
unless amended or extended. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas, including reasonable endeavors gas not taken by PWC or be
successful in its current exploration program, its revenues will begin to decline substantially in 2010 which could materially affect
liquidity. The price of gas under the Palm Valley and Mereenie gas contracts is adjusted quarterly to reflect changes in the Australian
Consumer Price Index. For further information, see “Gas Supply Contracts” in Item 1-Business above. MPAL’s oil sales are dependent on
world oil prices. The volatility of these prices will affect future oil revenues. The Company will align operating expenses with any
reductions in revenues.

As in the past, MPAL expects to fund its exploration costs through its cash and cash equivalents and cash flow from Australian
operations. MPAL also expects that it will continue to seek partners to share its exploration costs. If MPAL’s efforts to find partners are
unsuccessful, it may be unable or unwilling to complete the exploration program for some of its properties.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not use off-balance sheet arrangements such as securitization of receivables with any unconsolidated entities or
other parties. The Company is exposed to oil and gas market price volatility and uses fixed pricing contracts with inflation clauses to
mitigate this exposure.
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Contractual Obligations

The following is a summary of our consolidated contractual obligations as of June 30, 2009, in thousands:

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating Lease Obligations $§ 821 $§ 263 $§ 558 § — $  —
Purchase Obligations (1) 6,469 6,469 — — —
Asset Retirement Obligations — Undiscounted (2) 14,470 202 2,446 8,397 3,425
Total $21,760 $ 6,934 $ 3,004 $ 8,397 $ 3,425

(1) Represents firm commitments for exploration and capital expenditures. The Company is committed to these expenditures, however
some may be farmed out to third parties. Exploration contingent expenditures of $41,541,000 which are not legally binding have been
excluded from the table above and based on exploration decisions would be due as follows: $0 (less than 1 year), $20,971,000 (1-

3 years), $18,409,000 (3-5 years) and $2,161,000 (greater than 5 years).

(2) During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Company decreased total asset retirement obligations by $626,000 due to changes in cost

estimates and expected restoration dates (see Note 4 to the Financial Statements).

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On December 31, 2008, the SEC published the final rules and interpretations updating its oil and gas reporting requirements. Many of
the revisions are updates to definitions in the existing oil and gas rules to make them consistent with the petroleum resource management
system, which is a widely accepted standard for the management of petroleum resources that was developed by several industry
organizations. Key revisions include changes to the pricing used to estimate reserves, the ability to include nontraditional resources in
reserves, the use of new technology for determining reserves, and permitting disclosure of probable and possible reserves. The SEC will
require companies to comply with the amended disclosure requirements for annual reports for fiscal years ending on or after December 15,
2009. This guidance is effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The SEC will also require companies to comply
with the amended disclosure requirements for registration statements filed after January 1, 2010. Early adoption is not permitted. The
Company is currently assessing the impact that the adoption will have on the Company’s disclosures, operating results, financial position
and cash flows.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157”. This FSP delays the effective date
of FASB Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”, for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), including asset retirement
obligations and goodwill and other impairment analyses. This guidance is effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this FSP.
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Results of Operations
2009 vs. 2008

REVENUES
Changes in revenues are as follows:

Twelve Months ended

June 30,
2009 2008 $ Variance % Variance
Oil sales $11,479,660 $19,786,175 $(8,306,515) (42%)
Gas sales 14,740,296 18,523,095 (3,782,799) (20%)
Other production related revenues 1,970,621 2,585,540 (614,919) (24%)
Interest income 1,583,065 2,122,642 (539,577) (25%)

Significant changes are discussed below.

OIL SALES DECREASED due to a 27% decrease in production, an 11% decrease in average price per barrel and the 17% decrease in
the average exchange rate discussed below. Oil unit sales (after deducting royalties) in barrels (bbls) and the average price per barrel sold
during the periods indicated were as follows:

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,

2009 SALES 2008 SALES
AVERAGE PRICE AVERAGE PRICE % Variance % Variance
BBLS A.$ PER BBL BBLS A.$ PER BBL BBLS A.$ PER BBL

Australia:

Mereenie field 90,267 94.20 95,429 113.33 (5%) 17%)

Cooper Basin 2,362 101.42 6,826 114.28 (65%) (11%)

Nockatunga project (1) 60,668 86.30 108,311 91.82 (44%) (6%)
Total 153,297 91.21 210,566 102.35 27%) (11%)

(1) Nockatunga average price per bbl is net of crude oil transportation costs which are deducted from the gross sales price.

Amounts presented above for oil prices and below for gas prices are in Australian dollars to show a more meaningful trend of
underlying operations. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the average foreign exchange rates were .7471 and .8965
respectively.

GAS SALES DECREASED due to a 10% decrease in volume resulting from natural field decline and the 17% decrease in the average
exchange rate discussed below partially offset by a 4% increase in the average price per mcf. The volumes in billion cubic feet (bcf) (after
deducting royalties) and the average price of gas per thousand cubic feet (mcf) sold during the periods indicated were as follows:

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,

2009 SALES 2008 SALES
AVERAGE PRICE AVERAGE PRICE % Variance % Variance
BCF A.$ PER MCF BCF A.$ PER MCF BCF A.$ PER MCF
Australia: Palm Valley 1.165 2.25 1.319 2.22 (12%) 1%
Australia: Mereenie 3.996 3.93 4.388 3.77 (9%) 4%
Total 5.161 3.54 5.707 3.39 (10%) 4%
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MPAL’s current contracts for the sale of Palm Valley gas will expire during fiscal years 2012. Mereenie contracts expired in January
and June 2009. Supply obligations ceased in June 2009, however, there is a reasonable endeavor obligation to supply certain of PWC’s
requirements through to December 31, 2010, unless amended or extended. Unless MPAL is able to sell uncontracted gas, including
reasonable endeavors gas not taken by PWC, its revenues will begin to decline substantially in 2010. For further information, see “Gas
Supply Contracts” in Item 1-Business and Item 7-Executive Summary above.

OTHER PRODUCTION RELATED REVENUES are primarily MPAL’s share of gas pipeline tariff revenues which decreased as a
result of a decrease in volumes of gas sold at Mereenie and the 17% Australian foreign exchange rate decrease discussed below.

INTEREST INCOME DECREASED due to a decrease in market interest rates and the 17% decrease in the average exchange rate
discussed below.

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Changes in costs and expenses are as follows:

Twelve Months Ended

June 30,
2009 2008 $ Variance % Variance

Production cost 8,153,263 8,865,663 (712,400) (8%)
Exploration and dry hole costs 3,475,937 3,318,810 157,127 5%
Salaries and employee benefits 1,708,997 1,605,341 103,656 6%
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 6,785,952 18,021,236 (11,235,284) (62%)
Auditing, accounting and legal services 1,576,509 1,102,115 474,394 43%
Accretion expense 531,405 716,130 (184,725) (26%)
Shareholder communications 633,112 392,880 240,232 61%
Loss (gain) on sale of field equipment 12,072 (35,235) 47,307 (134%)
Impairment loss 63,740 — 63,740 —
Other administrative expenses 3,969,658 3,591,856 377,802 11%
Income tax provision 2,198,422 14,330,301 (12,131,879) (85%)

Significant changes are discussed below.

PRODUCTION COSTS DECREASED due to the 17% decrease in the average exchange rate described below offset by increased
labor and rental costs in the Nockatunga project ($438,000).

EXPLORATION AND DRY HOLE COSTS INCREASED due to seismic survey costs related to the Nockatunga fields ($1.4
million) and the write off of certain U.K. permits in 2009 ($296,000) offset by Cooper Basin drilling costs incurred in 2008 but not in 2009
($1.3 million) and the 17% decrease in the average exchange rate described below.

DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION DECREASED due to lower depletable costs and the 17% decrease in the
average exchange rate described below. Lower depletable costs result from recent depletion charges in excess of recent capital spending.

AUDITING, ACCOUNTING AND LEGAL SERVICES INCREASED due mostly to legal fees related to the YEP investment
transaction and the shareholder agreement of approximately $574,000 (See Note 15 to the Financial Statements) partially offset by the 17%
decrease in the average exchange rate described below.

ACCRETION EXPENSE DECREASED due mostly because of a reduction of the Mereenie asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) in
the first quarter of fiscal 2009 ($995,000) and the 17% decrease in the exchange rate described below.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION COSTS INCREASED due to an increase in proxy and regulatory filing activity. The
increased proxy activity was due to a threatened director election and additional voting matters which required stockholder approval,
including the YEP investment transaction.

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES INCREASED due to net exchange rate losses ($461,000), increased travel costs
($125,000), increased repair and maintenance costs ($138,000) and increased due diligences costs related to the YEP investment
transaction ($393,000—see Note 15 to the Financial Statements) offset by a decrease in costs related to the ATO settlement ($597,000) that
were incurred in 2008 but not in 2009, decrease in insurance expense in 2009 ($247,000) and the 17% decrease in the average exchange rate
described below.

INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAX PROVISION DECREASED due to the decrease in income before taxes as well as the provision of the ATO
settlement in the prior fiscal period (see Note 6 to the Financial Statements for a discussion of effective tax rates used and the ATO
settlement).

EXCHANGE EFFECT

The value of the Australian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar decreased to $.8048 at June 30, 2009 compared to $.9615 at June 30,
2008. This resulted in a $9,931,978 debit to accumulated translation adjustments for fiscal 2009. The 16% decrease in the value of the
Australian dollar decreased the reported asset and liability amounts in the balance sheet at June 30, 2009 from the June 30, 2008 amounts.
The annual average exchange rate used to translate MPAL’s operations in Australia for fiscal 2009 was $.7471, which is a 17% decrease
compared to the $.8965 rate for fiscal 2008.

2008 vs. 2007
REVENUES
Changes in revenues are as follows:

Twelve Months ended

June 30,
2008 2007 $ Variance % Variance
Oil sales $19,786,175 $11,922,574 $7,863,601 66%
Gas sales 18,523,095 16,396,334 2,126,761 13%
Other production related revenues 2,585,540 2,356,317 229,223 10%
Interest income 2,122,642 1,669,798 452,844 27%

Significant changes are discussed below.
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OIL SALES INCREASED because of a 17% increase in barrels sold due mostly to the Nockatunga Project, a 27% increase in the
average sales price per barrel and the 14% Australian foreign exchange rate increase discussed below. Oil unit sales (net of royalties) in
barrels (bbls) and the average price per barrel sold during the periods indicated were as follows:

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,

2008 SALES 2007 SALES
AVERAGE PRICE AVERAGE PRICE % Variance % Variance
BBLS A.$ PER BBL BBLS A.$ PER BBL BBLS A.S PER BBL

Australia:

Mereenie field 95,429 113.33 100,852 82.75 (5%) 37%

Cooper Basin 6,826 114.28 15,261 85.02 (55%) 34%

Nockatunga project (1) 108,311 91.82 63,252 76.50 71% 20%
Total 210,566 102.35 179,365 80.75 17% 27%

(1) Nockatunga average price per bbl is net of crude oil transportation costs which are deducted from the gross sales price.

Amounts presented above for oil prices and below for gas prices are in Australian dollars to show a more meaningful trend of
underlying operations. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the average foreign exchange rates were .8965 and .7860
respectively.

GAS SALES INCREASED primarily as the result of a 5% increase in price per mcf sold and the 14% Australian foreign exchange
rate increase discussed below, offset by a 5% decrease in sales volume.

The volumes in billion cubic feet (bcf) (net of royalties) and the average price of gas per thousand cubic feet (mcf) sold during the
periods indicated were as follows:

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,

2008 SALES 2007 SALES
AVERAGE PRICE AVERAGE PRICE % Variance % Variance
BCF A.$ PER MCF BCF A.$ PER MCF BCF A.$ PER MCF
Australia: Palm Valley 1.319 2.22 1.499 2.20 (12%) 1%
Australia: Mereenie 4.388 3.77 4.489 3.60 2%) 5%
Total 5.707 3.39 5.988 3.24 (5%) 5%

MPAL’s current contracts for the sale of Palm Valley and Mereenie gas will expire during fiscal years 2012 and 2009, respectively.
Unless MPAL is able to obtain additional contracts for its remaining gas reserves or be successful in its current exploration program, its
revenues will be materially reduced after 2009. Mereenie gas sales were approximately $15.5 million (net of royalties) or 85% of total gas
sales for the year ended June 30, 2008. See discussion in “Gas Supply Contracts” under Item 1 and Executive Summary above.

OTHER PRODUCTION RELATED REVENUES are primarily MPAL’s share of gas pipeline tariff revenues which increased as a
result of the 14% Australian foreign exchange rate increase discussed below offset by a decrease in volumes of gas sold at Mereenie.
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COSTS AND EXPENSES

Changes in costs and expenses are as follows:

Twelve Months Ended

June 30,
2008 2007 $ Variance % Variance
Production cost 8,865,663 6,965,641 1,900,022 27%
Exploration and dry hole costs 3,318,810 5,520,460 (2,201,650) (40%)
Salaries and employee benefits 1,605,341 1,549,277 56,064 4%
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 18,021,236 10,693,415 7,327,821 69%
Auditing, accounting and legal services 1,102,115 628,114 474,001 75%
Accretion expense 716,130 517,856 198,274 38%
Shareholder communications 392,880 459,298 (66,418) (14%)
Gain on sale of field equipment (35,235) (10,346) (24,889) 241%
Impairment loss — 1,876,171 (1,876,171) (100%)
Other administrative expenses 3,591,856 2,699,733 892,123 33%
Income tax provision 14,330,301 998,565 13,331,736 1335%

Significant changes are discussed below.

PRODUCTION COSTS INCREASED primarily as the result of increased expenditures in the Nockatunga project due to increased
production, an increase in field equipment repairs in the Mereenie project and the 14% increase in the exchange rate described below.

EXPLORATION AND DRY HOLE COSTS DECREASED due primarily to decreased drilling costs related to the Cooper Basin
drilling program, partially offset by the 14% increase in the exchange rate described below.

DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION INCREASED as a result of the higher book values of MPAL’s oil and gas
properties acquired during fiscal 2006 resulting from an updated valuation at June 30, 2007, increased depletion in the Nockatunga project
due to increased production resulting from the 10 wells drilled in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, increased expenditures and the 14%
increase in the exchange rate described below, partially offset by lower depletion in the Mereenie and Palm Valley and Cooper Basin
projects due to lower depletable costs.

AUDITING, ACCOUNTING AND LEGAL SERVICES INCREASED due to higher auditing, accounting and legal costs incurred in
connection with the ATO audit and settlement and tax planning.

ACCRETION EXPENSE INCREASED due mostly to accretion of asset retirement obligations relating to the new wells drilled in
fiscal 2007 in the Nockatunga project and the 14% increase in the exchange rate described below. Accretion expense represents the
accretion on the asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) under SFAS 143.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS DECREASED because a non-cash impairment loss of $1,876,171 was recorded in 2007 relating to the
decreased value of the Kiana field in the Cooper Basin ($984,171) and the decreased value of exploration permits and licenses included in
oil and gas properties ($892,000). The net book value of the Kiana oil and gas property was written down to its future estimated discounted
cash flow. No impairment loss was recorded in fiscal 2008.

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES INCREASED due mostly to increased consulting costs related to the ATO audit and
settlement, an increase due to the issuance of directors’ stock options in February, 2008, increased consulting fees relating to research and
development in the U.K. and the 14% increase in the exchange rate described below.
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INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAX PROVISION INCREASED primarily due to the payment of tax assessed by the Australian Taxation Office (see
Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements) upon settlement of an audit of the Australian income tax returns of MPAL and its wholly
owned subsidiaries for the years 1997- 2005.

EXCHANGE EFFECT

The value of the Australian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar increased to $.9615 at June 30, 2008 compared to $.8433 at June 30,
2007. This resulted in a $7,317,151 credit to accumulated translation adjustments for fiscal 2008. The 14% increase in the value of the
Australian dollar increased the reported asset and liability amounts in the balance sheet at June 30, 2008 from the June 30, 2007 amounts.
The annual average exchange rate used to translate MPAL’s operations in Australia for fiscal 2008 was $.8965, which is a 14% increase
compared to the $.7860 rate for fiscal 2007.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk.

The Company does not have any significant exposure to market risk, other than as previously discussed in Item 1A-Risk Factors
regarding foreign currency risk and the risk of fluctuations in the world price of crude oil, as the only market risk sensitive instruments are
its investments in marketable securities (including held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities). At June 30, 2009, the carrying value
of such investments and those classified as cash and cash equivalents was approximately $36.6 million, which approximates the fair value
of the securities. Since the Company expects to hold the investments to maturity, the maturity value should be realized. Marketable
securities have not been impacted by the U.S. credit crisis. A 10% change in the Australian foreign currency rate compared to the
U.S. dollar would increase or decrease revenues and costs and expenses by $2.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively. For the twelve
months ended June 30, 2009, oil sales represented approximately 44% of oil and gas sales. Based on 2009 sales volume and revenue, a 10%
change in oil price would increase or decrease oil revenues by approximately $1.1 million. Gas sales, which represented approximately
56% of production revenues in 2009, are derived primarily from the Palm Valley and Mereenie fields in the Northern Territory of Australia
and the gas prices are set according to long term contracts that are subject to changes in the Australian Consumer Price Index.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Magellan Petroleum Corporation
Hartford, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Magellan Petroleum Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2009. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Magellan
Petroleum Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended June 30, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

October 2, 2009
Hartford, Connecticut
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MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 34,688,842 $ 34,615,228
Accounts receivable — Trade (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $90,102 and
$99,344 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively) 5,346,111 8,357,839
Accounts receivable — working interest partners 500,404 112,330
Marketable securities 997,306 1,708,222
Inventories 847,159 1,260,189
Deferred income taxes 563,853 —
Other assets 598,509 404,160
Total current assets 43,542,184 46,457,968
Deferred income taxes 5,708,448 6,368,665
Securities available-for-sale (at fair value) 903,924 —
Property and equipment, net:
Oil and gas properties (successful efforts method) 117,617,555 138,556,513
Land, buildings and equipment 2,962,649 3,346,368
Field equipment 868,504 1,040,281
121,448,708 142,943,162
Less accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization (103,919,971) (114,495,875)
Net property and equipment 17,528,737 28,447,287
Goodwill 4,020,706 4,020,706
Total assets $ 71,703,999 $ 85,294,626
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,688,342 $ 2,929,445
Accrued liabilities 1,639,284 1,891,194
Income taxes payable 2,054,052 3,857,766
Total current liabilities 6,381,678 8,678,405
Long term liabilities:
Deferred income taxes 1,923,907 2,507,712
Other long term liabilities 70,232 48,998
Asset retirement obligations 9,815,262 11,596,084
Total long term liabilities 11,809,401 14,152,794
Commitments (Note 11) — —
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per share: Authorized 200,000,000 shares outstanding
41,500,325 415,001 415,001
Capital in excess of par value 73,311,075 73,216,143
Accumulated deficit (22,192,919) (22,857,494)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,979,763 11,689,777
Total stockholders’ equity 53,512,920 62,463,427
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 71,703,999 $ 85,294,626

See accompanying notes.
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MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Oil sales
Gas sales
Other production related revenues

Total revenues

Costs and expenses:
Production costs
Exploratory and dry hole costs
Salaries and employee benefits
Depletion, depreciation and amortization
Auditing, accounting and legal services
Accretion expense
Shareholder communications
Loss (gain) on sale of field equipment
Impairment loss
Other administrative expenses

Total costs and expenses

Operating income (loss)
Interest income

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income (loss)

Average number of shares:
Basic

Diluted

Per share (basic and diluted)
Net income (loss)

Years Ended June 30,

2009

2008

2007

$11,479,660  $19,786,175  $11,922,574
14,740,296 18,523,095 16,396,334
1,970,621 2,585,540 2,356,317
28,190,577 40,894,810 30,675,225
8,153,263 8,865,663 6,965,641
3,475,937 3,318,810 5,520,460
1,708,997 1,605,341 1,549,277
6,785,952 18,021,236 10,693,415
1,576,509 1,102,115 628,114
531,405 716,130 517,856
633,112 392,880 459,298
12,072 (35,235) (10,346)
63,740 - 1,876,171
3,969,658 3,591,856 2,699,733
26,910,645 37,578,796 30,899,619
1,279,932 3,316,014 (224,394)
1,583,065 2,122,642 1,669,798
2,862,997 5,438,656 1,445,404
2,198422 14,330,301 998,565
$ 664,575 $(8,891,645) $ 446,839
41,500,325 41,500,325 41,500,325
41,500,325 41,500,325 41,500,325
$ 002 $ 021) $ 0.01

See accompanying notes.
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June 30, 2006

Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustments

Stock exchange

Stock option compensation

Total comprehensive income

June 30, 2007

Net loss
Foreign currency translation
adjustments

Stock option compensation
Total comprehensive loss
June 30, 2008

Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustments

Unrealized holding gains, net of

taxes

Stock option compensation
Total comprehensive loss

June 30, 2009

MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Three Years Ended June 30, 2009

Accumulated
Capital in Other Total
Number of Common Excess of Accumulated Comprehensive Comprehensive
Shares Stock Par Value Deficit Income (Loss) Total Income (Loss)
41,500,138 $415,001 $73,145,577 $(14,412,688) $(3,028,450) $56,119,440
— — — 446,839 — 446,839 § 446,839
— — — — 7,401,076 7,401,076 7,401,076
187 — — — —
— — 7,425 — — 7,425
— — — — — — 7,847,915
41,500,325 415,001 73,153,002  (13,965,849) 4,372,626 63,974,780
— — — (8,891,645) — (8,891,645)  (8,891,645)
— — — — 7,317,151 7,317,151 7,317,151
— — 63,141 — — 63,141
- — — — — — (1,574,494)
41,500,325 415,001 73,216,143  (22,857,494) 11,689,777 62,463,427
— — — 664,575 — 664,575 664,575
— — — — (9,931,978)  (9,931,978)  (9,931,978)
— — — — 221,964 221,964 221,964
— — 94,932 — — 94,932
— — — — — —  $(9,045,439)
41,500,325 $415,001 $73,311,075 $(22,192,919) §$ 1,979,763  $53,512,920

See accompanying notes.
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MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,
2009 2008 2007

Operating Activities:

Net income (loss) $ 664,575 $ (8,891,645) $ 446,839

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Loss (gain) from sale of field equipment 12,072 (35,235) (10,346)
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 6,785,952 18,021,236 10,693,415
Accretion expense 531,405 716,130 517,856
Deferred income taxes (1,618,033) (4,541,695) (1,818,631)
Stock option compensation 94,932 63,141 7,425
Exploration and dry hole costs 5,765 1,328,114 2,717,546
Write off of exploration permits 359,471 — 1,876,171

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 1,270,721 (2,640,315) 472,763
Other assets 65,531 (26,946) (61,312)
Inventories 203,312 (428,332) 143,951
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,793,486 70,480 (709,314)
Income taxes payable (930,137) 1,860,666 1,659,711

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,239,052 5,495,599 15,936,074

Investing Activities:

Additions to property and equipment (2,430,184) (4,249,215) (5,783,117)
Proceeds from sale of field equipment 27,728 35,235 10,346
Oil and gas exploration activities (491,490) (1,890,795) (2,982,038)
Acquisition of minority interest in MPAL — (88,432)
Investment in securities available for sale (559,850) — —
Marketable securities matured or sold 3,109,611 4,435,820 1,855,609
Marketable securities purchased (2,398,695) (1,765,775) (5,694,201)

Net cash used in investing activities (2,742,880) (3,434,730) (12,681,833)

Financing Activities:

Equity issuance costs (259,879) — —

Net cash used in financing activities (259,879) — —

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (6,162,679) 4,083,911 3,333,325

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 73,614 6,144,780 6,587,566

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 34,615,228 28,470,448 21,882,882

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $34,688,842 $34,615,228 $ 28,470,448

Cash payments:

Income taxes 4,746,589 13,072,505 1,427,327
Interest on tax settlement — 3,893,014 —

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:

Unrealized holding gains 344,074 — —
Revision to estimate of asset retirement obligations (625,962) 43,482 (54,765)
Asset retirement obligation liabilities incurred — 718,048
Accounts payable related to property and equipment 163,457 1,993,964 3,195,633

The allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired in the purchase of the remaining minority interest in MPAL in 2006 was
finalized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. This resulted in a decrease in the amount of goodwill by $1,626,041 which was reallocated to
oil and gas properties ($4,642,233) offset by an increase to deferred tax liabilities ($3,016,192).

See accompanying notes.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

Magellan Petroleum Corporation (“MPC” or “Magellan”) is engaged in the sale of oil and gas and the exploration for and
development of oil and gas reserves. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, MPC’s principal asset was a 100% equity interest in its subsidiary,
Magellan Petroleum Australia Limited (“MPAL”). MPAL’s major assets are two petroleum production leases covering the Mereenie oil
and gas field (35% working interest), one petroleum production lease covering the Palm Valley gas field (52% working interest), and five
petroleum production leases covering the Nockatunga oil field (41% working interest). Both the Mereenie and Palm Valley fields are
located in the Amadeus Basin in the Northern Territory of Australia. The Nockatunga field is located in the Cooper Basin in South
Australia. MPC has a direct 2.67% carried interest in the Kotaneelee gas field in the Yukon Territory of Canada.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MPC and its subsidiary, MPAL, (collectively the
“Company”). All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes oil and gas revenue (net of royalties) from its interests in producing wells as oil and gas is produced and
sold from those wells. Revenues from the sale and transportation of natural gas are recognized upon completion of the sale and when
transported volumes are delivered. Other production related revenues are primarily MPAL’s share of gas pipeline tariff revenues which are
recorded at the time of sale. The Company records pipeline tariff revenues on a gross basis with the revenue included in other production
related revenues and the remittance of such tariffs are included in production costs. Government sales taxes related to MPAL’s oil and gas
production revenues are collected by MPAL and remitted to the Australian government. Such amounts are excluded from revenue and
expenses. Shipping and handling costs in connection with such deliveries are included in production costs except for Nockatunga crude oil
transportation costs which are deducted from gross sales. Revenue under carried interest agreements is recorded in the period when the net
proceeds become receivable, measurable and collection is reasonably assured. The time when the net revenues become receivable and
collection is reasonably assured depends on the terms and conditions of the relevant agreements and the practices followed by the operator.
As aresult, net revenues may lag the production month by one or more months.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has one stock option plan which was amended on May 27, 2009 to, among other things, increase the aggregate number
of shares issuable under the plan to 5,205,000. Under FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)”) the costs resulting from all share-based payment transactions are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements. This statement establishes fair value as the measurement objective in accounting for share-based payment arrangements and
requires the application of a fair-value measurement method of accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees and non-
employees. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option valuation model to determine the fair value of its time based stock option share
awards and the Monte Carlo model for performance based options share awards that include a market condition as described in SFAS
123(R). These models include various assumptions, including the expected volatility and the expected life of the share awards as well as
significant assumptions for performance based awards that include probabilities of certain vesting conditions and behaviors impacting
exercise. These assumptions, as detailed in Note 5-Capital and Stock Options, reflect the Company’s best estimates, but they involve
inherent uncertainties based on market conditions generally outside of the control of the Company. As a result, if other assumptions had
been used, stock-based compensation expense, as calculated and recorded under SFAS 123(R) could have been significantly impacted.
Furthermore, if the Company uses different assumptions in future periods, stock-based compensation expense could be significantly
impacted in future periods. The Company’s policy for attributing the value of graded vested share-based payments is an accelerated
multiple-option approach.
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Oil and Gas Properties

The Company follows the successful efforts method of accounting for its oil and gas operations. Under this method, the costs of
successful wells, development dry holes, productive leases, and permit and concession costs are capitalized and amortized on a units-of-
production basis over the life of the related reserves. Cost centers for amortization purposes are determined on a field-by-field basis. The
Company records its proportionate share in joint venture operations in the respective classifications of assets, liabilities and expenses.
Unproved properties with significant acquisition costs are periodically assessed for impairment in value, with any impairment charged to
expense. The successful efforts method also imposes limitations on the carrying or book value of proved oil and gas properties. Oil and gas
properties are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The Company estimates the future undiscounted cash flows from the affected properties to determine the recoverability of
carrying amounts. In general, analyses are based on proved developed reserves, except in circumstances where it is probable that additional
resources will be developed and contribute to cash flows in the future. For Mereenie, proved developed natural gas reserves are limited to
contracted quantities. For Palm Valley, reserves were based upon the quantities of gas committed to the contract and estimated sales
subsequent to the contract date. If such contracts are extended, the proved developed reserves will be increased to the lesser of the actual
proved developed reserves and risk adjusted probable and possible reserves or the contracted quantities.

Exploratory drilling costs are initially capitalized pending determination of proved reserves but are charged to expense if no proved
reserves are found. Other exploration costs, including geological and geophysical expenses, leasehold expiration costs and delay rentals, are
expensed as incurred. Because the Company follows the successful efforts method of accounting, the results of operations may vary
materially from quarter to quarter. An active exploration program may result in greater exploration and dry hole costs.
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Nondepletable assets

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, oil and gas properties include $6.6 million and $6.8 million, respectively, of capitalized costs that are
currently not being depleted. Components of these costs are as follows:

For the year ended June 30,

Nondepletable capitalized costs 2009 2008 2007
PEL 106 — Cooper Basin (1)
Balance beginning of year $1,855,186 $ 1,615,943 $ 1,170,040
Additions to capitalized costs — 12,746 264,492
Exchange adjustment (302,348) 226,497 181,411
Balance end of year $1,552,838 $ 1,855,186 $ 1,615,943
Weald/Wessex Basin U.K. (2)
Balance beginning of year $ 549,935 $ — $ —
Additions to capitalized costs 485,725 549,935 —
Exchange adjustment (52,112) — —
Balance end of year $ 983,548 $ 549,935 $ —
Nockatunga
Balance beginning of year $ — $ 7,431,514 $ —
Additions to capitalized costs — — 7,431,514
Reclassified to producing properties — (7,431,514) —
Exchange adjustment — — —
Balance end of year $ — $ — $ 7,431,514
Exploration permits and licenses — Australia and U.K. (3)
Balance beginning of year $4,425,749 $ 4,431,347 $ 5,323,347
Charged to expense (321,258) (5,598) (892,000)
Balance end of year $4,104,491 $ 4,425,749 $ 4,431,347
Total
Balance beginning of year $6,830,870 $13,478,804 $ 6,493,387
Additions to capitalized costs 485,725 562,681 7,696,006
Reclassified to producing properties — (7,431,514) —
Charged to expense (3) (321,258) (5,598) (892,000)
Exchange adjustment (354,460) 226,497 181,411
Balance end of year $6,640,877 $ 6,830,870 $13,478,804

(1) These costs were capitalized during the year ended June 30, 2006 and remain capitalized because the related well has sufficient
quantity of reserves to justify its completion as a producing well.

(2) Capitalized exploratory well costs pending the start of production.

(3) The Company evaluates exploration permits and licenses annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value, related to step up to fair value for the 44.87% remaining interest acquired in 2006, may be impaired. See discussion
under Goodwill below for valuation methodology of the exploration permits and licenses. An impairment loss of $63,740 was recorded
during the fiscal year. In addition, the Company did not renew certain permits resulting in a write off of $257,518. These amounts are
recorded in exploration and dry hole costs.

Goodwill

The aggregate amount of goodwill at June 30, 2009 and 2008 is $4,020,706. All of our goodwill is related to the fiscal 2006
acquisition of the 44.87% of MPAL that we did not own at the time. In accordance with
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is not amortized and is tested for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Our annual
impairment testing date is June 30. An impairment test was performed as of December 31, 2008 due to the significant decrease in world oil
prices and the fact that our stock was trading significantly below our tangible book value. We also performed our annual impairment testing
as of June 30, 2009. We determined that no impairment existed at either of those dates.

We employ the adjusted balance sheet method to estimate the fair value of MPAL. This method entails estimating the fair value of all
of MPAL’s balance sheet items as of the valuation date. If the adjusted equity value, after considering the fair values of the assets and
liabilities, is greater than the carrying value of MPAL, then no impairment is indicated. Management believes that this methodology is most
meaningful since the highest and best use of these assets would be to continue to hold and exploit the assets over time.

The fair value of our oil and gas properties are estimated based on the discounted cash flows of our proved and risk adjusted probable
and possible reserves. The significant assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the oil and gas properties are oil and gas selling
prices for non-contracted volumes, oil and gas sales volumes, discount rates, and production trends. The fair value of MPAL is most
susceptible to changes in selling prices of oil and gas and changes in estimated sales volume.

The fair value of our nondepletable exploration permits and licenses is estimated separately using one of four methods — discounted
cash flows, discounted cash flows adjusted for chances of success, recent farmin costs and premiums, and estimated costs of committed
work programs. The majority of the permits and licenses are valued based on the estimated cost of agreed work program commitments,
which is a methodology that is not dependent on significant assumptions.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” requires legal obligations
associated with the retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time that the obligations are incurred. Upon
initial recognition of a liability, that cost is capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset (oil and gas properties) and amortized on a
units-of-production basis over the life of the related reserves. Accretion expense in connection with the discounted liability is recognized
over the remaining life of the related reserves.

The estimated liability is based on the future estimated cost of land reclamation, plugging the existing oil and gas wells and removing
the surface facilities equipment in the Palm Valley, Mereenie, and Nockatunga fields and the Cooper Basin. The liability is a discounted
liability using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate on the date such liabilities are determined. A market risk premium was excluded from the
estimate of asset retirement obligations because the amount was not capable of being estimated. Revisions to the liability could occur due to
changes in the estimated life of the field, estimates of these costs, acquisition of additional properties and as new wells are drilled.

Estimates of future asset retirement obligations include significant management judgment and are based on projected future retirement
costs. Judgments are based upon such things as field life and estimated costs. Such costs could differ significantly when they are incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Land, Buildings and Equipment and Field Equipment

Land, buildings and equipment and field equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are: buildings — 40 years, equipment and field equipment — 3 to
15 years.

Inventories

Inventories consist of crude oil in various stages of transit to the point of sale and are valued at the lower of cost (determined on an
average cost basis) or market.

Foreign Currency Translations

The accounts of MPAL, whose functional currency is the Australian dollar, are translated into U.S. dollars in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”. The translation adjustment is included as a
component of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), whereas gains or losses on foreign currency transactions are included
in the determination of income. All assets and liabilities are translated at the rates in effect at the balance sheet dates. Revenues, expenses,
gains and losses are translated using quarterly weighted average exchange rates during the period. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the
Australian dollar was equivalent to U.S. $.8048 and $.9615, respectively. The annual average exchange rates used to translate MPAL’s
operations in Australia for the fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $.7471, $.8965 and $.7860, respectively.

Accrued Liabilities

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, balances in accrued liabilities which exceeded 5% of current liabilities include $770,024 and $953,240 of
employment benefits, respectively, and $350,886 and $596,975 of withholding and sale taxes, respectively.

Accounting for Income Taxes

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”), the
liability method in accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences
between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in
effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets when it is more
likely than not that such assets will not be recovered.

Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”) is an
interpretation of SFAS 109 and was adopted by the Company on July 1, 2007. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for recognizing,
measuring, presenting, and disclosing in the financial statements uncertain tax positions that the company has taken or expects to take in its
tax returns. Under FIN 48, the Company is able to recognize a tax position based on whether it is more likely than not that a tax position
will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the
position. In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the Company has presumed that its
positions will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The second step of FIN
48 adoption is measurement. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount
of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50
percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. An uncertain income tax position will not be recognized if it does not meet the
more-likely-than-not threshold. To appropriately account for income tax matters in accordance with SFAS 109 and FIN 48, the Company is
required to make significant judgments and
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estimates regarding the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the likelihood of the outcome of examinations of tax positions that may or
may not be currently under review and potential scenarios involving settlements of such matters. Changes in these estimates could
materially impact the consolidated financial statements. There are no uncertain tax positions for fiscal 2009.

The Company has adopted an accounting policy to record all tax related interest and penalties in its tax provision calculation.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, marketable securities and accounts payable approximates fair
value based on the timing of the anticipated cash flows and current market conditions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid short term investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition to be
cash equivalents. The components of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

June 30,
2009 2008
Cash $13,294,642 $§ 2,916,069
Australian money market accounts 21,394,200 31,699,159

$34,688,842  $34,615,228

National Australia Bank, Ltd. (“NAB”) holds 55% of the cash and cash equivalent balance. Although the funds are uninsured,
Standard and Poor’s credit rating of NAB is AA Stable long-term and A-1+ short-term.

Marketable Securities

The Company has determined that declines in fair value below amortized costs are temporary as management does not have the intent
to sell the securities before maturity nor does it believe that it is more likely than not that the securities will be required to be sold before
anticipated recovery. Therefore, no impairment loss has been recognized. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, MPC had the following marketable
securities which are expected to be held until maturity:

June 30, 2009 Par Value Maturity Date Amortized Cost Fair Value
Short-term securities
U.S. government agency note $ 250,000 Jul. 15,2009 $ 249,690 $ 250,000
U.S. government agency note 250,000 Aug. 14, 2009 249,449 249,975
U.S. government agency note 250,000 Sep. 21, 2009 249,179 249,925
U.S. government agency note 250,000 Oct. 15, 2009 248,988 249,875
Total short-term $1,000,000 $ 997,306 $ 999,775
June 30, 2008 Par Value Maturity Date Amortized Cost Fair Value
Short-term securities
U.S. government agency note $ 200,000  Aug. 15,2008 $ 200,152 $ 200,688
U.S. government agency note 250,000 Oct. 15, 2008 250,142 251,485
U.S. government agency note 250,000  Nov. 21, 2008 252,314 251,952
U.S. government agency note

255,000  Dec. 15,2008 250,560 252,042
U.S. government agency note 250,000  Jan. 15,2009 254,141 253,283
U.S. government agency note 250,000  Apr. 20, 2009 255,473 254,220
U.S. government agency note 250,000 Mar. 30, 2009 245,440 245,050
Total short-term $1,705,000 $ 1,708,222 $ 1,708,720
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Securities Available-for-Sale

The Company classifies securities that have a readily determinable fair value and are not bought and not held principally for the
purpose of selling them in the near term as securities available-for-sale, pursuant to FAS 115 Accounting for Certain Investment in Debt &
Equity Securities. Under FAS 115, unrealized holding gains and losses for available-for-sale securities shall be excluded from earnings and
reported in other comprehensive income until realized. The Company currently has one foreign equity security classified as available for
sale.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per common share are based upon the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares outstanding
during the period. The only reconciling item in the calculation of diluted EPS is the dilutive effect of stock options which were computed
using the treasury stock method.

In 2009, the Company issued approximately 2.7 million stock options. These options have been issued under the Company’s 1998
Stock Incentive Plan, which was approved at the annual shareholders’ meeting held on May 27, 2009. At June 30, 2009, the Company had
3,242,500 stock options outstanding all of which were anti-dilutive.

In 2008, the Company had 100,000 outstanding options that were issued that had a strike price below the average stock price for the
period and resulted in 8,661 incremental diluted shares for the respective period. However, since the Company incurred a loss from
operations, the incremental shares are anti-dilutive.

In 2007, the Company did not issue any stock options. At June 30, 2007, the Company had 430,000 stock options outstanding that
were anti-dilutive.

Stock Options

The Company’s 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) provides for grants of shares of stock, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”),
restricted shares and non-qualified stock options principally at an option price per share of 100% of the fair value of the Company’s
common stock on the date awarded. The Plan was amended on May 27, 2009. The amended Plan has 5,205,000 shares authorized for
awards. See Note 5-Capital and Stock Options.

SFAS 123(R) requires recognition in the financial statements of the cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions by
applying a fair-value-based measurement method to account for all share-based payment transactions with employees.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income at June 30, 2009 and 2008 was as follows:

2009 2008
Foreign currency translation adjustments $1,757,799  $11,689,777
Unrealized holding gains, net of deferred tax 221,964 —
Accumulated other comprehensive income $1,979,763 $11,689,777

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On December 31, 2008, the SEC published the final rules and interpretations updating its oil and gas reporting requirements. Many of
the revisions are updates to definitions in the existing oil and gas rules to make them consistent with the petroleum resource management
system, which is a widely accepted standard for the
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management of petroleum resources that was developed by several industry organizations. Key revisions include changes to the pricing
used to estimate reserves, the ability to include nontraditional resources in reserves, the use of new technology for determining reserves, and
permitting disclosure of probable and possible reserves. The SEC will require companies to comply with the amended disclosure
requirements for annual reports for fiscal years ending on or after December 15, 2009. This guidance is effective for the Company for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The SEC will also require companies to comply with the amended disclosure requirements for registration
statements filed after January 1, 2010. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact that the adoption
will have on the Company’s disclosures, operating results, financial position and cash flows.

In April 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2,
“Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments”, which is effective as of June 30, 2009 with early adoption
permitted. The Company adopted the FSP as of June 30, 2009. The FSP changes the indicators for determining whether an other-than-
temporary impairment on a debt security should be recorded in earnings. Under the new accounting guidance, the primary indicators that an
unrealized loss should be recognized in earnings are whether the Company intends to sell the debt security or whether it is more likely than
not that it will be required to sell the debt security prior to recovery of its cost basis. For other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities
that the Company intends to sell or is more likely than not going to be required to sell before recovery, unrealized losses must be recorded
in earnings. The adoption did not have a material impact on the financial statements as the Company did not have unrealized losses as of
June 30, 2009.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157”. This FSP delays the effective date
of FASB Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”, for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), including asset retirement
obligations and goodwill and other impairment analyses. This guidance is effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. The Company is evaluating the impact of adoption of this FSP.

2. Fair Value Measurements

On July 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”), which establishes a framework
for defining and measuring fair value and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. The Company’s only items to
which SFAS 157 applies are cash equivalents, securities available-for-sale and fixed maturity securities. Cash equivalents and securities
available for sale are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. These investments are traded in active markets and quoted prices are
available for identical investments. Fixed maturity securities classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarch include U.S. Treasury
securities. The fair value of these instruments is estimated using pricing models which utilize inputs such as recent trades for the same or
similar instrument, yield curves, discount margin and bond structures.

The following table presents the amounts of assets carried at fair value at June 30, 2009 by the level in which they are classified
within the SFAS No. 157 valuation hierarchy:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other
Markets for Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Description Level 1 Level 2
Cash Equivalents $ 21,394,200 —
Securities available for sale 903,924 —
Marketable securities — $ 999,775
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3. Oil and Gas Properties
MPC had the following amounts recorded in oil and gas properties at June 30, 2009 and 2008.

Location 2009 2008

Mereenie and Palm Valley (Australia) $ 91,851,863 $ 109,124,145
Nockatunga (Australia) 17,212,729 20,301,033
Cooper Basin (Australia) (1) 4,849,588 5,604,219
Other (Australia) nondepletable exploration permits and licenses (2) 549,109 548,945
Weald/Wessex Basin (U.K.) nondepletable exploration permits and licenses 2,170,718 2,428,236
Weald/Wessex Basin (U.K.) capitalized exploratory drilling costs 983,548 549,935

$117,617,555  § 138,556,513

(1) At June 30, 2009 and 2008, includes $1,552,838 and $1,855,186, respectively, of costs capitalized as exploratory well costs pending
the start of production as well as $1,384,664 and $1,448,568, respectively, of nondepletable exploration permits and licenses.
(2) Maryborough Basin and Amadeus Basin in Australia.

Accumulated Depletion, Depreciation and Amortization

Location 2009 2008

Mereenie and Palm Valley (Australia) $ 83,937,714 $ 94,218,078
Nockatunga (Australia) 15,280,813 14,780,819
Cooper Basin (Australia) 1,808,664 2,132,354

$101,027,191  $111,131,251

Depletion, Depreciation and Amortization

During the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the depletion rate by field was as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Percent
Mereenie and Palm Valley (Australia) 63.8 453 355
Nockatunga (Australia) 64.6 665 53.6
Cooper Basin (Australia) 13.3 359 323

Exploratory and Dry Hole Costs

Exploration and dry hole costs relate to the exploration work performed on MPAL’s properties. Components of these costs are as
follows:

Year ended June 30
Exploration and Dry Hole Costs 2009 2008 2007
Farmout, Field Monitoring and Technical Costs $1,807,129  $1,892,528  $2,662,014
Seismic Data and Acquisition Costs (1) 1,367,312 98,168 140,900
Dry Hole Drilling (2) 5,765 1,328,114 2,717,546
Write off expired permits — U.K. 295,731 — —
Total $3,475,937  $3,318,810  $5,520,460

(1) Seismic data costs related to the Nockatunga fields in 2009, Cooper Basin and U.K. permits in 2008, and Nockatunga and U.K. permits
in 2007.
(2) Dry hole costs related mostly to the Cooper Basin in 2008 and 2007.
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See Note 11 — Commitments for a summary of MPAL’s required and contingent commitments for exploration expenditures for the
five year period beginning July 1, 2009.

Impairment Loss

A non-cash impairment loss of $63,740 was recorded in 2009 relating to the decreased value of U.K. exploration permits and licenses
that were recognized under purchase accounting. The losses related to the exploration permits and licenses resulted from the ongoing
exploration program which did not result in discovery of reserves. These losses related to the MPAL segment. There was no impairment
loss recorded for fiscal 2008.

A non-cash impairment loss of $1,876,171 was recorded in 2007 relating to the decreased value of the Kiana field in the Cooper
Basin ($984,171) and the decreased value of exploration permits and licenses that were recognized under purchase accounting ($892,000).
The net book value of the Kiana oil and gas property was written down to its future estimated discounted cash flow. As a result of
declining production, discounted cash flows were utilized to calculate the fair value of the Kiana field. The losses related to the exploration
permits and licenses resulted from the ongoing exploration program which did not result in discovery of reserves. These losses related to
the MPAL segment.

4. Asset Retirement Obligations

A reconciliation of the Company’s asset retirement obligations for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, is as follows:

2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year $11,596,084 $ 9,456,088
Liabilities incurred — —
Liabilities settled — —
Accretion expense 531,405 716,130
Revisions to estimate (1) (625,962) 43,482
Exchange effect (1,686,265) 1,380,384
Balance at end of year $ 9,815,262 $11,596,084

(1) During the year ended June 30, 2009, changes in cost estimates and expected restoration dates resulted in decreases in total asset
retirement obligations.

5. Capital and Stock Options

On May 27, 2009, shareholders approved an amendment to the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) which reserved for issuance an
aggregate of 5,205,000 shares of the Company’s common stock in the form of non-qualified stock options, SARs, restricted share awards,
annual awards of stock to non-employee directors and performance based awards.

The Plan provides for options to be issued with an exercise price of not less than fair value of the stock price on the date of the award
and for a term of not greater than ten years. As of June 30, 2009, 1,787,500 options were available for future issuance under the Plan.
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The following is a summary of option transactions for the three years ended June 30, 2009:

Expiration Number of Fair Value at
Options Outstanding Dates Shares Exercise Prices ($) Grant Date
June 30, 2007 430,000 (1.59 weighted average price)
Awarded Feb. 2018 100,000 .16 $ 63,141
June 30, 2008 530,000 (1.51 weighted average price)
Awarded Dec. 2018 2,712,500 1.20 $ 1,881,362
June 30, 2009 3,242,500 (1.25 weighted average price)

The weighted average remaining contractual term as of June 30, 2009 is 9 years.

Summary of Options Outstanding at June 30, 2009

Expiration Exercise

Dates Total Vested Prices ($)

Awarded fiscal year 2004 Jul. 2014 30,000 30,000 1.45
Awarded fiscal year 2006 Nov. 2015 400,000 400,000 1.60
Awarded fiscal year 2008 Feb. 2018 100,000 100,000 1.16
Awarded fiscal year 2009 Dec. 2018 2,712,500 — 1.20

3,242,500

530,000

All of the options have been issued with an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the Company’s stock at the date of

the award, which may differ from the grant date used for accounting purposes.

Upon exercise of options, the excess of the proceeds over the par value of the shares issued is credited to capital in excess of par
value. For the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense for the cost of stock
options of $83,560, $63,141, and $7,425 both pre-tax and post-tax, which has no impact on basic or diluted earnings per share. The grant
date fair values of the options granted on May 27, 2009 and February 18, 2008 were $1,881,362 and $63,141, respectively. These expenses
have no effect on cash flow. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, there was $1,797,802 and $0 of total unrecognized compensation costs related

to stock options.

The Company determined the fair value of the options at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model for the time
based options. Option valuation models require the input of certain assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. The

assumptions used to value the Company’s time based grants were as follows:

May 27, 2009 Feb. 18, 2008 Nov. 28, 2005
Risk free interest rate 2.82% 3.20% 4.58%
Expected life 6 yrs S yrs S yrs
Expected volatility (based on historical price) .650 611 .627
Expected dividend $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

Jul. 1, 2004
4.95%

10 yrs

518

$ 0

The expected life of the time based options granted on May 27, 2009 and February 18, 2008 was determined under the “simplified”

method described in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110.

The time based stock options vest in equal annual installments over the vesting period, which is also the requisite service period. Time
based stock options are generally granted with a 3-year vesting period and a 10-year term. The 400,000 options granted to Directors on

November 28, 2005 and 100,000 on February 18,
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2008 each vested immediately. Vesting criteria of performance based/market based options (“PBO”s) are determined by the Company’s
compensation committee. PBOs issued during fiscal 2009 will vest in full upon attainment of either of the following investment goals;
monetizing the uncontracted gas reserves held by MPAL at the Amadeus Basin field, or upon the closing price of the Company’s stock
being at or above $1.50 per share for sixty consecutive trading days. All options vest in the event of change of control of the Company.

The Monte Carlo model was used to value the PBOs. A Monte Carlo simulation allows for the analysis of a complex security through
statistical measures applied to a model that is simulated thousands of times to build distributions of potential outcomes. The variables and
assumptions used in this calculation were as follows:

May 27, 2009
Risk free interest rate 3.71%
Expected volatility (based on historical price) .70
Expected dividend $§ 0
Closing stock price as of May 27, 2009 $1.23
Term 10 years
Days until expiration (per annum) 252 days
Steps until expiration 2,520
Probability of performance criteria occurring over term of options:
Monetization of uncontracted reserves 25% — 60%
Change of control 10% — 50%

As of June 30, 2009 there were 1,837,500 nonvested option shares outstanding under the Plan with a weighted average fair value at
date of award of $0.75 per share and 875,000 nonvested option shares in the Plan with a weighted average fair value at date of award of
$0.57 per share.

6. Income Taxes

Components of income (loss) before income taxes by geographic area (in thousands) are as follows:

Years Ended June 30,
2009 2008 2007
United States $(3,845)  $(2,119)  $(1,386)
Foreign 6,708 7,558 2,831
Total $ 2,863 $ 5,439 $ 1,445
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Reconciliation of the provision for income taxes (in thousands) computed at the Australian statutory rate to the reported provision for
income taxes is as follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
Tax provision computed at statutory rate (30)% $ 859 $ 1,632 $ 434
MPC (parent company) losses 1,154 636 416
Non-taxable Australian revenue (342) (443) (404)
Increase in valuation reserve for foreign (UK) exploration expenditures 382 271 374
Australian Taxation Office settlement (a) — 12,085 —
MPC capitalized facilitation costs 268 — —
Rate differential on MPC book income (154) — —
MPC income tax provision (b) 41 72 58
Other (10) 77 121
Consolidated income tax provision $ 2,198 $14,330 $ 999
Current income tax provision (foreign) $ 3,816 $18,872 $ 2,817
Deferred income tax benefit (foreign) (1,618) (4,542) (1,818)
Consolidated income tax provision $ 2,198 $14,330 $ 999
Effective tax rate 77% 263% 69%

(a) See discussion below under Australia.
(b) MPC’s income tax provisions represent the 25% Canadian withholding tax on its Kotaneelee gas field carried interest net proceeds and
10% Australian withholding tax on interest income from intercompany loans.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities (in thousands) were as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008

Deferred tax liabilities

Stepped up basis of oil and gas properties (1,842) (2,508)

Other (82) (8)
Total deferred tax liabilities (1,924) (2,516)
Deferred tax assets

Acquisition and development costs 2,752 2,486

Asset retirement obligations 2,945 3,883

Net operating losses 3,562 4,079

United Kingdom exploration costs 1,274 1,031

Stock options 211 174

Interest 539 539

Other 575 —
Total deferred tax assets 11,858 12,192
Valuation allowance (5,586) (5,815)
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities) $ 4,348 $ 3,861

The Company records a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets when management believes it is more likely than not that such
assets will not be recovered. The valuation allowance decreased to $5,586,000 in 2009 from $5,815,000 in 2008. The change in the
valuation allowance is due to utilization of net operating losses in the US offset by an increase in the valuation allowance for the tax benefit
of U.K. exploration costs
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United States

At June 30, 2009, the Company had approximately $9,078,000 and $9,609,000 of net operating loss carry forwards for federal and
state income tax purposes, respectively, which are scheduled to expire periodically as follows (in thousands):

Paroo USA MPC MPC

Federal Federal State
Expires:
2010 $ 1,669 $§ — $ —
2011 1,764 — —
2012 2,856 — —
2013 230 — —
2019 96 — —
2021 25 — 56
2022 74 — 302
2023 3 — 359
2024 2 — —
2025 1 — 1,058
2026 — 287 1,341
2027 — — 1,462
2028 — 2,071 2,057
2029 — — 2,974
Total $ 6,720 $2,358 $9,609

For financial reporting purposes, a full valuation allowance has been recognized to offset the deferred tax assets related to the
U.S. tax loss carry forwards and other deductible temporary differences as it is more likely than not that under current circumstances such
assets will not be recovered.

Australia

The net deferred tax asset at June 30, 2009, consists of a deferred tax asset of $2,752,000, primarily relating to acquisition and
development costs and $2,945,000 primarily relating to asset retirement obligations which will result in tax deductions when paid.

As previously disclosed, the Australian Taxation Office (“ATO”) conducted an audit of the Australian income tax returns of MPAL
and its wholly owned subsidiaries for the years 1997-2005. The ATO audit focused on certain income tax deductions claimed by Paroo
Petroleum Pty. Ltd. (“PPPL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of MPAL related to the write-off of outstanding loans made by PPPL to other
entities within the MPAL group of companies. As a result of the settlement reached with the ATO, the Company recorded taxes and
interest in the amount of (US) $13,252,469 ($0.31 per share) as part of the income tax provision for the year ended June 30, 2008 which
included (US) $2,725,110 of interest net of the tax benefit related to the interest deduction. No additional interest related to tax matters was
recorded for the year ended June 30, 2009.

There are no uncertain tax positions for fiscal 2009.

7. Related Party and Other Transactions

Mr. Timothy L. Largay, a director of the Company through December 2008, is a partner of the law firm of Murtha Cullina, LLP, which firm
was paid fees of $689,652, $264,170 and $114,415 by the Company in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. At June 30, 2009,
2008 and 2007, the Company’s payables included $50,812, $22,196 and $25,402, respectively, owed Murtha Cullina, LLP.
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8. Leases

At June 30, 2009, future minimum rental payments applicable to MPC’s and MPAL’s non-cancelable office operating leases were as
follows:

Future Minimum

Fiscal Year Rental Payments
2010 $ 263,000
2011 $ 272,000
2012 $ 286,000

Operating lease rental expenses for each of the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $415,760, $473,944 and $362,005
respectively.

9. Segment Information

The Company has two reportable segments, MPC and its wholly owned subsidiary, MPAL. The Company’s chief operating decision
maker is William H. Hastings (President and Chief Executive Officer) who reviews the results of the MPC and MPAL businesses on a
regular basis. MPC and MPAL both engage in business activities from which they may earn revenues and incur expenses. MPAL and its
subsidiaries are considered one segment. Although there is discreet information available below the MPAL level, their products and
services, production processes, market distribution and customers are similar in nature. In addition, MPAL has a management team which
focuses on drilling efforts, capital expenditures and other operational activities.
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Segment information (in thousands) for the Company’s two operating segments is as follows:

Revenues:
MPC
MPAL

Total consolidated revenues
Interest income:

MPC
MPAL

Total consolidated
Net (loss) income:
MPC

MPAL, net of related costs
Elimination of intersegment dividend

Consolidated net income (loss)

Assets:
MPC (1)
MPAL
Equity elimination
Total consolidated assets

Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets:
MPC
MPAL

Total expenditures for additions to long-lived assets

Other significant items:

Depletion, depreciation and amortization:
MPC
MPAL

Total consolidated

Production costs:
MPC
MPAL

Total consolidated

Exploratory and dry hole costs:
MPC
MPAL

Total consolidated

Income tax expense:
MPC
MPAL

Total consolidated

(1) Goodwill attributable to MPAL was $4,020,706 for 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
$§ 164 $§ 233 $§ 130
28,027 40,662 30,545
$ 28,191 $ 40,895 $30,675
$ 24 $ 159 $ 259
1,559 1,964 1,411
$ 1,583 $ 2,123 $ 1,670
$  (885) $ (2,177) $ 4,432
4,550 (6,715) 1,881
(3,000) — (5,866)
$ 665 $ (8,892) $ 447
$ 68,349 $ 65,555
69,711 82,935
(66,356) (63,195)
$ 71,704 $ 85,295
§ — § — § —
2,430 4,249 5,783
$ 2,430 $ 4,249 $ 5,783
Years Ended June 30,
2009 2008 2007
$ 5 $ 6 $ 6
6,781 18,015 10,687
$ 6,786 $ 18,021 $10,693
$  — $  — $ —
8,153 8,866 6,966
$ 8,153 $ 8,866 $ 6,966
$ — $ — $ —
3,476 3,319 5,520
$ 3,476 $ 3,319 $ 5,520
$ 41 $ 58 $ 48
2,157 14,272 951
$ 2,198 $ 14,330 $ 999
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10. Geographic Information

As of each of the stated dates, the Company’s revenue, operating income, net income or loss and identifiable assets (in thousands)

were geographically attributable as follows:

Revenue:
Australia
Canada

Income (loss) before income taxes:
Australia
New Zealand
United Kingdom
United States and Canada

Corporate overhead and interest, net of other income (expense)
Consolidated income before income taxes

Net income (loss):
Australia
New Zealand
United Kingdom
United States

Identifiable assets:
Australia
Corporate assets

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
$28,027 $40,662 $30,545
164 233 130
$28,191 $40,895 $30,675
$ 6,952 $ 7,257 $ 3,152
— 42) (25)
(1,272) (904) (1,162)
164 233 161
5,844 6,544 2,126
(2,981) (1,105) (681)
$ 2,863 $ 5,439 $ 1,445
Years Ended June 30,
2009 2008 2007
$ 582  $(5767) $ 3,074
— (44) 32)
(1,272) (904) (1,162)
(3,885) (2,177) (1,433)
$ 665  $(8,892) $ 447
$69,711 $82,935
1,993 2,360
$71,704 $85,295

Substantially all of MPAL’s gas sales were to the Power and Water Corporation of the Northern Territory of Australia. Oil sales
during 2009 were 40% to the Santos group of companies, 13% to Beach Petroleum, 8% to Origin Energy Resources and 39% to IOR

Energy.
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11. Commitments

The Company is exposed to oil and gas market price volatility and for gas sales uses fixed pricing contracts with inflation clauses to
mitigate this exposure.

The following is a summary of our consolidated contractual obligations as of June 30, 2009, in thousands:

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating Lease Obligations $ 821 $ 263 $ 558 $ — 8 —
Purchase Obligations (1) 6,469 6,469 — — —
Asset Retirement Obligations-Undiscounted (2) 14,470 202 2,446 8,397 3,425
Total $21,760 $ 6,934 $ 3,004 $ 8,397 $ 3,425

(1) Represents firm commitments for exploration and capital expenditures. The Company is committed to these expenditures, however
some may be farmed out to third parties. Exploration contingent expenditures which are not legally binding have been excluded from
the table above.

(2) During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Company decreased total asset retirement obligations by $626,000 due to changes in cost
estimates and expected restoration dates (see Note 4 to the Financial Statements).

Gas Supply Contracts

In 1983, the MPAL and Santos (“Palm Valley Producers”) commenced the sale of gas to Alice Springs under a 1981 agreement. That
agreement terminated in June 2008. In 1985, the Palm Valley Producers and Mereenie Producers (MPAL and Santos) signed agreements
for the sale of gas to PWC, through its wholly-owned company Gasgo Pty. Ltd. (“Gasgo”), for use in PWC’s Darwin electricity generating
station and at a number of other generating stations in the Northern Territory. The price of gas under the Palm Valley and Mereenie gas
contracts is adjusted quarterly to reflect changes in the Australian Consumer Price Index. The gas is being delivered via the 922-mile
Amadeus Basin gas pipeline which was built by an Australian consortium. Since 1985, there have been several additional contracts for the
sale of Mereenie gas, the latest being in June 2006 for the supply of an additional 4.4 Bcf of gas to be supplied prior to December 31, 2008.
The Palm Valley Darwin contract expires in the year 2012 and the principal Mereenie contracts expired in January and June 2009. Supply
obligations under the Mereenie contracts ceased in June 2009, however, there is a reasonable endeavor obligation to supply certain of
PWC’s requirements through to December 31, 2010.

At June 30, 2009, MPAL’s commitment to supply gas under the above agreements was as follows:

Period Bef
Less than one year 2.22
Between 1-5 years 1.77
Greater than 5 years 0.00
Total 3.99

12. Restatement of Financial Information

Subsequent to the issuance of our 2008 annual report on Form 10-K we determined that in our consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended June 30, 2007, we inappropriately added back to cash flows from operating activities $3.2 million of accounts payable
related to property and equipment additions. This increase in accounts payable should have been reflected as a reduction of cash outflows
from investing activities rather than an increase in cash flows from operating activities. This error also affected our consolidated statement
of
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cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2008 as these amounts should have increased cash flows from operating activities through the
adjustment for the change in accounts payable and should have been reflected as an increase to reported cash outflows for additions to
property and equipment in the investing activities section for that year. The statement of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007 as contained herein have been adjusted for the restatement discussed above. This restatement has no impact on the change in cash and
cash equivalents, the balance sheet or the statement of operations.

Additionally, we also determined that the amounts we have previously reported in our consolidated statements of cash flows as
investing outflows for exploration and dry hole costs have included certain engineering and other costs that do not result in the acquisition
of an asset and should, therefore, be classified as operating cash outflows rather than investing outflows. The amounts of exploration and
dry hole costs inappropriately included as investing outflows in previously issued consolidated statements of cash flows were: $1.9 million
and $2.1 million for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively as contained herein. The statement of cash flows for the years
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 as contained herein have been adjusted for the restatement discussed above. This restatement has no impact
on the change in cash and cash equivalents, the balance sheet or the statement of operations.

The following is a summary of the restatement on the originally issued Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

June 30, 2008

As Previously

Reported Adjustments As Restated

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Exploration and dry hole costs $ 3,227,200 $(1,899,086) $ 1,328,114
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,112,940) 3,183,420 70,480

Net cash provided by operating activities 4211,265 1,284,334 5,495,599
Additions to property and equipment (1,628,476) (2,620,739) (4,249,215)
Oil and gas exploration activities (3,227,200) 1,336,405 (1,890,795)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,150,396) (1,284,334) (3,434,730)

June 30, 2007

As Previously

Reported Adjustments As Restated

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Exploration and dry hole costs $ 4,871,865 $(2,154,319) $ 2,717,546
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,474,106 (3,183,420) (709,314)

Net cash provided by operating activities 21,273,813 (5,337,739) 15,936,074
Additions to property and equipment (9,231,029) 3,447,912 (5,783,117)
Oil and gas exploration activities (4,871,865) 1,889,827 (2,982,038)
Net cash used in investing activities (18,019,572) 5,337,739 (12,681,833)
Accounts payable related to property and equipment 1,417,051 1,778,582 3,195,633
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13. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary (in thousands, except for per share amounts) of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended

June 30, 2009 and 2008:

2009

Total revenues

Costs and expenses

Interest income

Income tax (provision) benefit
Net income (loss)

Per share (basic & diluted)

Average number of shares outstanding

2008

Total revenues

Costs and expenses

Interest income

Income tax (provision) benefit
Net income (loss)

Per share (basic & diluted)

Average number of shares outstanding

14. Supplementary Oil and Gas Disclosure (Unaudited and Restated)

September 30, December 31,
2008 2008
3 Months 3 Months
$ 10439 5,172
(7,959) (5.,436)
628 460
(1,600) (721)
$ 1,508 (525)
$ 0.04 (0.01)
41,500 41,500
September 30, December 31,
2007 2007
3 Months 3 Months
$ 9,322 $ 10,374
(10,279) (9,397)
490 570
(6) (12,327)
$  (473) $ (10,780)
$ (0.01) $ (0.26)
41,500 41,500

March 31, June 30,
2009 2009
3 Months 3 Months
$ 5,523 $ 7,057
(6,489) (7,027)
274 221
1,083 (960)
$ 391 $ (709)
$ 0.01 $ (0.02)
41,500 41,500
March 31, June 30,
2008 2008
3 Months 3 Months
$ 9,536 $ 11,663
(7,903) (10,000)
500 563
(1,198) (799)
$ 935 $ 1,427
$ 0.02 $ 0.03
41,500 41,500

The consolidated data presented herein include estimates which should not be construed as being exact and verifiable quantities. The
reserves may or may not be recovered, and if recovered, the cash flows therefrom, and the costs related thereto, could be more or less than
the amounts used in estimating future net cash flows. Moreover, estimates of proved reserves may increase or decrease as a result of future

operations and economic conditions, and any production from these properties may commence earlier or later than anticipated.
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Estimated Net Quantities of Proved and Proved Developed Oil and Gas Reserves:

Proved Reserves:
June 30, 2006

Extensions and discoveries
Revision of previous estimates
Production

June 30, 2007

Extensions and discoveries
Revision of previous estimates
Production

June 30, 2008

Extensions and discoveries
Revision of previous estimates
Production

June 30, 2009

Proved Developed Reserves:
June 30, 2006

June 30, 2007
June 30, 2008
June 30, 2009

Natural Gas 0Oil
(1,000 Bbls)
Australia® Canada Australia
19.436 .086 810
— .067 218
014 — (127)
(5.978) (.093) (179)
13.472 .060 722
— .087 141
(.652) — 125
(5.707) (.077) (210)
7.113 .070 778
— .051 —
1.376 — 371
(5.161) (.068) (153)
3.328 .053 996
19.436 .086 327
13.472 .060 347
7.113 .070 520
3.328 .053 789

* The amount of proved reserves applicable to the Palm Valley and Mereenie fields only reflects the amount of gas committed to specific

contracts and are net of royalties.

There were no changes to proved reserves relating to improved recovery, purchase of minerals in place or sales of mineral in place for the

years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, or 2007.

Costs of Oil and Gas Activities (In thousands):

Fiscal Year

2009
2008
2007

Australia
Exploration Development Acquisition
Costs(1) Costs(2) Costs
3,925 631 —
3,810 1,200 —
5,250 20,067 —

(1) These costs have been expensed except for capitalized costs relating to drilling in the U.K. of $486,000 and $550,000, for 2009 and

2008, respectively.

(2) These costs have been capitalized.
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Capitalized Costs Subject to Depletion, Depreciation and Amortization (DD&A) (In thousands):

Australia

Costs subject to DD&A
Costs not subject to DD&A
Less accumulated DD&A

Net capitalized costs

Discounted Future Net Cash Flows:

June 30,
2009 2008
$ 110,977 $ 131,726
6,641 6,831
(101,027) (111,131)
$ 16,591 $ 27,426

Year-end prices ($Aus) applied to proved reserves to calculate the standardized measure for each of the three years presented is as

follows:

Gas Prices (per MCF)
Palm Valley (1)
Mereenie (2)

DARSS5
MSA2
MSA3
MSA4

Oil Prices (per BBL) (3)
Mereenie
Cooper
Aldinga
Kiana
Nockatunga

(1)  Year end contract price through term of contract. Year end spot price used thereafter.

(2) Year end contract price
(3) Year end spot price

At June 30,

2009 2008 2007
2.2532 2.2312 2.2767
N/A  2.2904 2.2781
N/A  3.8378 3.7364
N/A N/A  4.2554
6.6628 N/A  6.0379
95.73 147.44 87.62
97.80 138.24 84.03
87.66 129.07 79.31
90.82 124.55 81.32

The following is the standardized measure of discounted (at 10%) future net cash flows (in thousands) relating to proved oil and gas
reserves during the three years ended June 30, 2009. These amounts were calculated using prices and costs in effect for each individual
property as of June 30 for each year. These prices were not changed except where different prices were fixed and determinable from

applicable contracts.

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows in the following table has been restated for fiscal 2008 and 2007. In
2008, the calculation of discounted cash flows as previously reported erroneously included estimated sales subsequent to the expiration of
existing natural gas contracts for the Palm Valley and Mereenie fields although those volumes of natural gas are not considered proved
reserves. In both 2008 and 2007, certain proved oil reserves for the Mereenie field were erroneously not included in the calculation of
discounted cash flows as previously reported. The restated amounts in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows and the
changes therein appropriately include the proved oil and gas reserves.

Future cash inflows
Future production costs
Future development costs
Future income tax expense

Future net cash flows
10% annual discount for estimating timing of cash flows

Standardized measures of discounted future net cash flows

Australia
2009 2008 2007
Previously As Previously As
Reported Restated Reported Restated
$ 88,152 $147,581 $137,791 $125,333  $154,245
(46,440)  (62,027)  (60,969)  (52,994)  (74,918)
(16,532)  (21,263)  (26,401)  (14,036)  (19,319)
(2,493)  (12,823)  (8,157)  (14,018)  (11,750)
22,687 51,468 42,264 44,285 48,258
(2,632)  (6,532)  (2,884)  (10437)  (10,476)
$20,055 §$ 44936 $ 39,380 $ 33,848 $ 37,782
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Canada

2009 2008 2007
Future cash inflows $ 80 $ 380 $184
Future production costs (70) (129) (88)
Future development costs — — —
Future income tax expense 3) (63) (24)
Future net cash flows 7 188 72
10% annual discount for estimating timing of cash flows 1 (6) (7)
Standardized measures of discounted future net cash flows $ 8 $ 182 $ 65

Total
2009 2008 2007
Previously As Previously As
Reported Restated Reported Restated

Future cash inflows $ 88,232 $147,961 $138,171 $125,517 $154,429
Future production costs (46,510) (62,156) (61,098) (53,082) (75,006)
Future development costs (16,532) (21,263) (26,401) (14,036) (19,319)
Future income tax expense (2,496) (12,886) (8,220) (14,042) (11,774)
Future net cash flows 22,694 51,656 42,452 44,357 48,330
10% annual discount for estimating timing of cash flows (2,631) (6,538) (2,890) (10,444) (10,483)
Standardized measures of discounted future net cash flows $20,063 $ 45118 $ 39,562 $ 33913 $ 37,847

The following are the principal sources of changes in the above standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows (in

thousands).
2009 2008 2007

Previously As Previously As

Reported Restated Reported Restated
Net change in prices and production costs $(13,429) $ 41,125 $ 31,551 $(66,738)  $(59,803)
Extensions and discoveries — — — — —
Revision of previous quantity estimates 1,045 (1,351) (1,351) 14,996 14,990
Changes in estimated future development costs 10,997 (5,015) (5,006) 7,144 5,120
Sales and transfers of oil and gas produced (18,169) (30,637) (30,637) (20,660) (20,660)
Previously estimated development cost incurred during the period (1,124) (696) (696) (179) (179)
Accretion of discount 621 1,917 1,847 8,838 6,313
Net change in income taxes 4,463 331 1,160 15,577 16,597
Net change in exchange rate (3,903) 5,531 4,847 4,548 5,082

$(19,499)  §$ 11,205 $ 1,715 $(36,474) $(32,540)

Additional Information Regarding Discounted Future Net Cash Flows:
Australia

Reserves — Natural Gas

Future net cash flows from net proved gas reserves in Australia were based on MPAL’s share of reserves in the Palm Valley and
Mereenie fields. Reserves in these fields were limited to the quantities of gas committed to specific contract and the ability of the field to
deliver the gas in the contract years. Gas prices are computed on the prices set forth in the respective gas sales contracts at June 30, 2009.
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Reserves and Costs — Oil

At June 30, 2009, future net cash flows from the net proved oil reserves in Australia were calculated by the Company. Estimated
future production and development costs were based on current costs and rates for each of the three years ended at June 30, 2009.

Income Taxes

Future Australian income tax expense applicable to the future net cash flows has been reduced by the tax effect on unrecouped capital
expenditures of approximately A.$23,378,000, A.$26,145,000 and A.$29,167,000 at June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 respectively. The tax
rate used in computing Australian future income tax expense was 30%.

Canada
Reserves and Costs

Future net cash flows from net proved gas reserves in Canada were based on the Company’s share of reserves in the Kotaneelee gas
field which was prepared by independent petroleum consultants, Paddock Lindstrom & Associates Ltd., Calgary, Canada. The estimates
were based on the selling price of gas Can. $3.22 at June 30, 2009 (Can. $9.61 — 2008) and estimated future production and development
costs at June 30, 2009.

Results of Operations

The following are the Company’s results of operations (in thousands) for the oil and gas producing activities during the three years
ended June 30, 2009:

Total Americas Australia/United Kingdom
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Revenues:

Oil sales $§ 1148 § 19,786 §$ 11922 $— $— $— § 11480 $ 19,786 § 11,922

Gas sales 14,740 18,523 16,397 164 233 130 14,576 18,290 16,267

Other production income 1,971 2,586 2,356 — — — 1,971 2,586 2,356

Total revenues 28,191 40,895 30,675 164 233 130 28,027 40,662 30,545
Costs:

Production costs 8,153 8,866 6,965 — — — 8,153 8,866 6,965

Depletion, exploratory

and dry hole costs 10,476 21,222 16,105 — — 10,476 21,222 16,105

Total costs 18,629 30,088 23,070 — — — 18,629 30,088 23,070
Income before taxes 9,562 10,807 7,605 164 233 130 9,398 10,574 7,475

Income tax provision* (2,860) (3,230) (2,275) (41) (58) (33) (2,819) (3,172) (2,242)
Net income from operations $ 6702 $ 7577 $ 5330 $123 $175 $ 97 $§ 6579 $§ 7402 § 5233
Depletion per unit of production A.$ 839 AS$ 1466 AS$ 744 $— $— $— AS$ 839 AS$ 1466 AS$ 744

*  Income tax provision used for Australia is based on a rate of 30%. Americas 25% is due to a 25% Canadian withholding tax on

Kotaneelee gas sales.

15. Subsequent Events

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 165, “Subsequent Events,” incorporates into FASB authoritative literature
accounting guidance that originated as auditing standards about events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before
financial statements are issued. SFAS No. 165 retains the auditing
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standard requirements to recognize in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the balance sheet date and to disclose but not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions
that arose after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are issued. The reporting entity is required to disclose the date
through which it has evaluated subsequent events. SFAS No. 165 was issued and implemented for the year end June 30, 2009. In preparing
the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2009 through the issuance
of the financial statements on October 2, 2009 and has identified the following events for disclosure.

On July 9, 2009, the Company completed, pursuant to the terms of a definitive purchase agreement and related amendments an equity
investment in the Company by the Company’s strategic investor, Young Energy Prize S.A. (“YEP”), through the issuance to YEP of
8,695,652 shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share (the “Common Stock”) and warrants to acquire an additional
4,347,826 shares of Common Stock. The Company received gross proceeds of $10 million, which will be used for working capital and
general corporate purposes.

On July 9, 2009, the Company entered into a Warrant Agreement which entitles YEP to purchase 4,347,826 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock (the “Warrant Shares™) at an exercise price of $1.20 per Warrant Share. The Warrant has a term of five years and contains
certain provisions which would reduce the exercise price. Furthermore The First Amendment to the Purchase Agreement provides that, if
YEP completes the purchase of shares of the Company’s Common Stock owned by ANS Investments LLC and its CEO, Jonah M. Meer
under the ANS-YEP Purchase Agreement, then the exercise price payable by YEP for the Warrant Shares shall be reduced from $1.20 to
$1.15 per share. This transaction was completed on July 30, 2009, reducing the exercise price to $1.15 per share.

In connection with the YEP Purchase Agreement, at a Board meeting held on May 27, 2009, the Company’s Board adopted
resolutions: (a) conditionally amending the Company’s Bylaws to expand the size of the Board; and (b) conditionally electing
Messrs. Nikolay Bogachev and J. Thomas Wilson to the Board as Class II directors, each to serve a term of office expiring at the
Company’s 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. On July 9, 2009, upon completion of the YEP equity investment transaction, the
elections to the Board of Messrs. Bogachev and Wilson became effective.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including William H.
Hastings, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), and Daniel J. Samela, the Company’s Chief Financial and
Accounting Officer (“CFO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the “Exchange Act”) as of
June 30, 2009. Based on this evaluation, the Company’s CEO and CFO concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
were not effective such that the material information required to be included in the Company’s Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms relating to the
Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, and the information required to be disclosed was accumulated and communicated to
management as appropriate to allow timely decisions for disclosure. Our management concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective because of the need to extend the filing deadline for such Form 10-K to identify, address and correct
certain information included in Note 14, Supplementary Oil and Gas disclosure (Unaudited and Restated).
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) adopted under the Exchange Act) is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the Company’s assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that the Company’s
receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Company’s management and directors; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Management acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. We
have used the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in conducting our evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting. Based on
our evaluation, we concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2009.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only
management’s report in this annual report.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting and procedures may not prevent or detect misstatements.
A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate. There have not been any other changes in the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fourth fiscal quarter
of the Company’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information

On May 11, 2009, the Company issued a press release describing the Company's financial results for the third fiscal quarter ended
March 31, 2009. A copy of this press release is furnished as Exhibit 99.1 hereto.

PART IIT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3), the information called for by Items 10, (except for information concerning the executive
officers of the Company) 11, 12, 13 and 14 is hereby incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed on
EDGAR with respect to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Certain information concerning the executive officers of the Company is
included as Item 10 of this report.
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Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The following is a list of the executive officers of the Company:

Length of Service Other Positions Held
Name Age Office Held as an Officer with Company
William H. Hastings 53 President and Chief Executive Officer Since 2008 None
Daniel J. Samela 61 Chief Financial Officer Since 2004 Treasurer

For further information regarding the executive officers see the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC on or about
October 13, 2009.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The graph below compares the cumulative total returns, including reinvestment of dividends, if applicable, on the Company’s
Common Stock with the returns on companies in the NASDAQ Index and Industry Group Index (the Hemscott Index).

The chart displayed below is presented in accordance with SEC requirements. The graph assumes a $100 investment made on July 1,
2003 and the reinvestment of all dividends. Stockholders are cautioned against drawing any conclusions from the data contained therein, as
past results are not necessarily indicative of future performance.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORP.,
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX AND HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX

500
% 400 = ﬁ#_.-.q,‘h_h
< 300 Fl_._____l_f MEMH'
zzr:a 2007 2¢JI<J45 2008

+— MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORP.
— B —HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX
- -k - - NASDACQ MARKET INDEX

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JULY 1, 2004
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR EMDIMNG JUME 30, 2009

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORP. 100.00 183.21 119.85 116.03 123.66 84.73
HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX 100.00 154.84 206.33 261.93 375.37 215.13
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX 100.00 99.89 106.32 12746 111.91 89.19
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about the Company’s common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options and

rights under the Company’s 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, as of June 30, 2009.

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders

Item 13.
Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) (1) Financial Statements.

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon
Exercise of Outstanding
Options, Warrants and

Rights (a) ()

3,242,500

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

PART IV

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

(b)(®)

$

1.25

The financial statements listed below and included under Item 8 are filed as part of this report.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2009 and 2008

Consolidated statements of operations for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2009

Consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2009

Consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2009

Notes to consolidated financial statements

Supplementary oil and gas information (unaudited and restated)

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))
© @

1,787,500

Page
Reference

41
42
43
44
45
46
65

All schedules have been omitted since the required information is not present or not present in amounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto.

(c) Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed or furnished as part of this report:

Item Number

2. Plan of acquisition, reorganization, arrangement, liquidation or succession.

None.

73



Table of Contents

3. Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws.

(a) Restated Certificate of Incorporation as filed on May 4, 1987 with the State of Delaware and Amendment of Article Twelfth as
filed on February 12, 1988 with the State of Delaware filed as exhibit 4(b) to Form S-8 Registration Statement, filed on January 14, 1999,
are incorporated herein by reference. Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation as filed on December 26, 2000 with the
State of Delaware, filed as Exhibit 3(a) to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on February 13, 2001 and incorporated
herein by reference.

(b) By-Laws, as amended on July 9, 2009, as filed as Exhibit 3.1 to current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 14, 2009 are
incorporated by reference.

4. Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures.
None.

9. Voting Trust Agreement.

None.

10. Material contracts.

(a) Petroleum Lease No. 4 dated November 18, 1981 granted by the Northern Territory of Australia to United Canso Oil & Gas Co.
(N.T.) Pty Ltd. filed as Exhibit 10(a) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated
herein by reference.

(b) Petroleum Lease No. 5 dated November 18, 1981 granted by the Northern Territory of Australia to Magellan Petroleum (N.T.)
Pty. Ltd. filed as Exhibit 10(b) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated
herein by reference.

(c) Gas Sales Agreement between The Palm Valley Producers and The Northern Territory Electricity Commission dated
November 11, 1981 filed as Exhibit 10(c) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is
incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Palm Valley Petroleum Lease (OL3) dated November 9, 1982 filed as Exhibit 10(d) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(e) Agreements relating to Kotaneelee.

(1) Copy of Agreement dated May 28, 1959 between the Company et al and Home Oil Company Limited et al and Signal Oil and
Gas Company filed as Exhibit 10(e) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is
incorporated herein by reference.

(2) Copies of Supplementary Documents to May 28, 1959 Agreement (see (e)(1) above), dated June 24, 1959, consisting of
Guarantee by Home Oil Company Limited and Pipeline Promotion Agreement filed as Exhibit 10(e) to Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Copy of Modification to Agreement dated May 28, 1959 (see (e)(1) above), made as of January 31, 1961. Filed as

Exhibit 10(e) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by
reference.

(4) Copy of Letter Agreement dated February 1, 1977 between the Company and Columbia Gas Development of Canada, Ltd. for
operation of the Kotaneelee gas field filed as Exhibit 10(e) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File
No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.
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(f) Palm Valley Operating Agreement dated April 2, 1985 between Magellan Petroleum (N.T.) Pty. Ltd., C. D. Resources Pty. Ltd.,
Farmout Drillers N.L., Canso Resources Limited, International Oil Proprietary, Pancontinental Petroleum Limited, I.LE.D.C. Australia Pty.
Ltd., Southern Alloys Ventures Pty. Limited and Amadeus Oil N.L. filed as Exhibit 10(f) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(g) Mereenie Operating Agreement dated April 27, 1984 between Magellan Petroleum (N.T.) Pty., United Oil & Gas Co. (N.T.) Pty.
Ltd., Canso Resources Limited, Oilmin (N.T.) Pty. Ltd., Krewliff Investments Pty. Ltd., Transoil (N.T.) Pty. Ltd. and Farmout Drillers NL
and Amendment of October 3, 1984 to the above agreement filed as Exhibit 10(g) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(h) Palm Valley Gas Purchase Agreement dated June 28, 1985 between Magellan Petroleum (N.T.) Pty. Ltd., C. D. Resources Pty.
Ltd., Farmout Drillers N.L., Canso Resources Limited, International Oil Proprietary, Pancontinental Petroleum Limited, IEDC Australia
Pty Limited, Amadeus Oil N.L., Southern Alloy Venture Pty. Limited and Gasgo Pty. Limited. Also included are the Guarantee of the
Northern Territory of Australia dated June 28, 1985 and Certification letter dated June 28, 1985 that the Guarantee is binding. All of the
above were filed as Exhibit 10(h) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) and are
incorporated herein by reference.

(i) Mereenie Gas Purchase Agreement dated June 28, 1985 between Magellan Petroleum (N.T.) Pty. Ltd., United Oil & Gas Co.
(N.T.) Pty. Ltd., Canso Resources Limited, Moonie Oil N.L., Petromin No Liability, Transoil No Liability, Farmout Drillers N.L., Gasgo
Pty. Limited, The Moonie Oil Company Limited, Magellan Petroleum Australia Limited and Flinders Petroleum N.L. Also included is the
Guarantee of the Northern Territory of Australia dated June 28, 1985. All of the above were filed as Exhibit 10(i) to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) and are incorporated herein by reference.

(j) Agreements dated June 28, 1985 relating to Amadeus Basin-Darwin Pipeline which include Deed of Trust Amadeus Gas Trust,
Undertaking by the Northern Territory Electric Commission and Undertaking from the Northern Territory Gas Pty Ltd. filed as
Exhibit 10(j) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(k) Agreement between the Mereenie Producers and the Palm Valley Producers dated June 28, 1985 filed as Exhibit 10(k) to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(1) Form of Indemnification Agreement for Directors and Officers pursuant to Article SIXTEENTH of the Company’s Restated
Certificate of Incorporation and the Company’s Bylaws, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to current report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2009, is
incorporated herein by reference.

(m) 1998 Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 4(a) to Form S-8 Registration Statement on January 14, 1999, filed as Exhibit 10(m) to
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(n) First Amendment to the 1998 Stock Option Plan dated October 24, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10 (n) to Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended June 30, 2008 (File No. 001-5507) is incorporated herein by reference.

(0) 1989 Stock Option Plan filed as Exhibit O to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2002 (File No. 001-5507)
is incorporated herein by reference.

(p) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Daniel J. Samela and Magellan Petroleum Corporation effective
September 28, 2008, filed as exhibit 10(p) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2008 (File No. 001-5507) is
incorporated herein by reference.
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(q) Palm Valley Renewal of Petroleum Lease dated November 6, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10 (s) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended June 30, 2005, is incorporated herein by reference.

(r) 1998 Magellan Petroleum Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, as amended through May 27, 2009, is filed herewith.

(s) Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement for officers and directors, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to current report on Form
8-K filed on November 30, 2005, is incorporated by reference herein.

(t) Form of Amendment to Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for directors, December 11, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to current
report on Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2008, is incorporated by reference herein.

(u) Employment Agreement between the Company and William H. Hastings, dated as of February 3, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
current report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2009, is incorporated by reference herein.

(v) Indemnification Agreement between the Company and William H. Hastings, dated as of February 3, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
current report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2009, is incorporated by reference herein.

(w) Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement between the Company and William H. Hastings, dated as of February 3, 2009,
filed as Exhibit 10.3 to current report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2009, is incorporated by reference herein.

(x) Non-Qualified Stock Option Performance Award Agreement between the Company and William H. Hastings, dated as of
February 3, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to current report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2009, is incorporated by reference herein.

(y) Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and Young Energy Prize S.A., dated February 9, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.1
to current report on Form 8-K filed on February 10, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.

(z) Settlement Agreement, dated April 3, 2009, among the Company, ANS Investments LLC and Jonah M. Meer, filed as Exhibit 10.1
to current report on Form 8-K filed on April 8, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.

(aa) First Amendment, dated April 3, 2009, to Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and Young Energy Prize S.A.,
dated February 9, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to current report on Form 8-K filed on April 8, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.

(bb) Second Amendment, dated June 30, 2009, to Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and Young Energy Prize
S.A., dated February 9, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to current report on Form 8-K filed on June 30, 2009, is incorporated herein by
reference.

(cc) Warrant Agreement between the Company and Young Energy Prize S.A, dated July 9, 20009, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to current
report on Form 8-K filed on July 14, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.

(dd) Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and Young Energy Prize S.A, dated July 9, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
current report on Form 8-K filed on July 14, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.

(ee) Consulting Agreement between the Company and J. Thomas Wilson, dated July 9, 2009, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to current report
on Form 8-K filed on July 14, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.
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(ff) Non-qualified stock option award agreement between the Company and J. Thomas Wilson, dated July 9, 2009, filed as Exhibit
10.5 to current report on Form 8-K filed on July 14, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.

(gg) Non-qualified stock option performance award agreement between the Company and J. Thomas Wilson, dated July 9, 2009,
filed as Exhibit 10.6 to current report on Form 8-K filed on July 14, 2009, is incorporated herein by reference.

11. Statement re computation of per share earnings.

Not applicable.

12. Statement re computation of ratios.

None.

13. Annual report to security holders, Form 10-Q or quarterly report to security holders.
Not applicable.

14. Code of Ethics

Magellan Petroleum Corporation Standards of Conduct filed as Exhibit 14 to Annual Report Form 10-K for the year ended June 30,
2006, is incorporated herein by reference.

16. Letter re change in certifying accountant.

None

18. Letter re change in accounting principles.

None.

21. Subsidiaries of the registrant.

Filed herewith.

22. Published report regarding matters submitted to vote of security holders.
Not applicable.

23. Consent of experts and counsel.

1. Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP is filed herewith.

2. Consent of Paddock Lindstrom & Associates, Ltd. is filed herewith.
24. Power of attorney.

None.

31. Rule 13a-14(a) Certifications.
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31.1 Certification of William H. Hastings, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, is filed herewith.

31.2 Certification of Daniel J. Samela, Chief Financial and Accounting Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, is filed herewith.

32. Section 1350 Certifications.

32.1 Certification of William H. Hastings, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, is filed herewith.

32.2 Certification of Daniel J. Samela, Chief Financial and Accounting Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, is filed herewith.

99. Exhibit 99.1—Press Release of the company regarding financial performance for the third fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2009,
dated May 11, 2009.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules.
None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By /S/  WILLIAM H. HASTINGS

William H. Hastings
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Duly Authorized Officer)

By /S/ DANIEL J. SAMELA

Daniel J. Samela
Chief Financial and Accounting Officer
(as Principal Accounting Officer)

Dated: October 2, 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/S/ WILLIAM H. HASTINGS President Dated: October 2, 2009
William H. Hastings and Chief Executive Officer
/S/ DANIEL J. SAMELA Chief Financial Dated: October 2, 2009
Daniel J. Samela and Accounting Officer
/S/ DONALD V. BASSO Director Dated: October 2, 2009

Donald V. Basso

/S/ NIKOLAY V. BOGACHEV Director Dated: October 2, 2009
Nikolay V. Bogachev

/S/' ROBERT MOLLAH Director Dated: October 2, 2009
Robert Mollah
/S/" WALTER MCCANN Director Dated: October 2, 2009

Walter Mccann

/S/' RONALD P. PETTIROSSI Director Dated: October 2, 2009
Ronald P. Pettirossi

/S/ J. THOMAS WILSON Director Dated: October 2, 2009
J. Thomas Wilson
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Exhibit 10(r)

MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION

1998 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

As amended and restated, December 11, 2008, and further amended on March 19, 2009,
and further amended on May 27, 2009

Approved by the Company’s shareholders on May 27, 2009.

1. Purpose of Plan.

The purpose of this 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) is to further the interests of Magellan Petroleum Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, (the “Company”), and its subsidiaries or affiliates, by providing eligible individuals (as designated in Section 4 below)
incentive awards that will cause those eligible individuals to continue their affiliation with the Company and its subsidiaries or affiliates and
to give them a greater interest in the success of the Company. The Plan permits the granting of the following types of awards (“Awards”),
according to the Section of the Plan listed here:

Section 5 Stock Options (“Options™)

Section 6 Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs”)

Section 8 Restricted Stock Awards

Section 9 Annual Stock Awards to Non-Employee Directors
Section 10 Performance Awards

The various types of Awards that may be provided under the Plan are designed to enable the Company to respond to changes in
compensation practices, tax laws, accounting regulations and the size and diversity of its business.

2. Stock Subject to Plan.

There shall be reserved for issuance or transfer upon the exercise of all Awards to be granted from time to time under the Plan an
aggregate of 5,205,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, one cent par value (the “Stock™), which shares may be in whole or in part
authorized and unissued shares of stock or issued shares of stock which shall have been reacquired by the Company, as the Board of
Directors shall from time to time determine. For the purposes of this Section 2, a share of Stock shall be deemed issued or transferred upon
the exercise of any SAR. If any Award granted under the Plan shall expire, be surrendered to the Company or terminate for any reason
without having been exercised in full, the shares of Stock subject thereto that have not been issued or transferred or deemed issued or
transferred shall again be available for the purposes of the Plan.

3. Administration.

(a) The Plan shall be administered by a committee (the “Committee”) of not less than two (2) members of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”), appointed by the Board, each member of which, at the time he or she takes any action with respect
to an Award under the Plan, shall be a “Non-Employee Director”, as defined in Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act



of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), an “independent director” under the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. and an
“outside director”, as defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.162-27(e)(3), or any successor rules or regulation of each of the foregoing.
Vacancies occurring in membership of the Committee shall be filled by the Board.

(b) Meetings. The Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings. The Committee shall select one of its members as its chairman
and shall hold its meetings at such times and places as it may determine. The Committee shall establish such rules and regulations for the
conduct of its business as it shall deem advisable and may act without meeting by unanimous written consent. One or more members of the
Committee may participate in a meeting of the Committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment
provided all persons participating in the meeting can hear one another. A majority of the entire Committee shall constitute a quorum, and
the acts of a majority of the members present at or so participating in any meeting at which a quorum is constituted shall be the acts of the
Committee.

(c) Powers of the Committee. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the authority, in its sole discretion:

(1) to determine eligible individuals to whom Awards shall be granted from time to time, the number of Options, SARs or
shares of Stock to be covered by each Award and the date upon which such Awards shall be granted (the “Grant Date”);

(i1) to determine, from time to time, the fair market value of the Stock;

(ii1) to determine, and to set forth in Award agreements, the terms and conditions of all Awards, including any applicable
exercise or purchase price, the installments and conditions under which an Award shall become vested (which may be based on
performance), terminated, expired, cancelled, or replaced, and the circumstances for vesting acceleration or waiver of forfeiture restrictions,
and other restrictions and limitations;

(iv) to approve the forms of Award agreements and all other documents, notices and certificates in connection therewith
which need not be identical either as to type of Award or among eligible individuals;

(v) to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and any Award agreement, to determine the meaning of their terms,
and to prescribe, amend, and rescind rules and procedures relating to the Plan and its administration;

(vi) in order to fulfill the purposes of the Plan and without amending the Plan, modify, cancel, or waive the Company’s
rights with respect to any Awards, to adjust or to modify Award agreements for changes in any Applicable Laws (as hereinafter defined) or
regulation applicable thereto, and to recognize differences in foreign law, tax policies, or customs; and
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(vii) to make all other interpretations and to take all other actions that the Committee may consider necessary or
advisable to administer the Plan or to effectuate its purposes.

(d) Absent any other provision by the Board, the power and responsibilities of the Committee shall be vested and assumed by
the Board acting as a committee of the whole.

4.  Eligibility.

Awards under the Plan may be granted to the employees, directors, officers of, and consultants and consulting firms to (i) the
Company, (ii) subsidiary corporations of the Company from time to time (a “Subsidiary or “Subsidiaries”), (iii) any business entity in
which the Company shall from time to time have a substantial interest (“Affiliate”), who, in the sole opinion of the Committee are, from
time to time, responsible for the management and/or growth of all or part of the business of the Company. In determining the persons to
whom Awards shall be granted and the number of shares to be covered by each Award, the Committee may take into account the nature of
the services rendered by such persons, their present and potential contribution to the Company’s success, and such other factors as the
Committee in its sole discretion shall deem relevant. The eligible individual holding one or more Awards or the Stock issuable or issued
upon exercise or vesting of such Awards under the Plan shall hereinafter be referred to individually as a “Participant” and collectively as
“Participants.”

5. Stock Options.
(a) Grant of Options. The Committee shall have absolute authority in its discretion, but subject to the express provisions of the
Plan, to determine (i) the person to whom Options shall be granted (the “Optionee”), (ii) the time or times at which Options shall be
granted, (iii) the number of shares of Stock to be subject to each Option, and (iv) the time or times at which an Option can be exercised and
whether in whole or in installments.

(b) Option Agreements. The Committee shall have absolute authority in its discretion to determine the terms and provisions (and
amendments thereof) of the respective Option Awards (which need not be identical), including such terms and provisions (and
amendments) as shall be required in the judgment of the Committee to conform to any change in any law or regulation applicable thereto.
The Committee’s determination on the foregoing matters shall be conclusive. All Options granted pursuant to the Plan shall be evidenced
by an award agreement between the Company and the Optionee, in such form or forms as the Committee shall from time to time determine.
Option Agreements covering Options granted from time to time or at the same time need not contain similar provisions; provided, however,
that all such Option Agreements shall comply with all terms of the Plan. The terms and conditions of any and all SARs granted at the same
time as an Option shall be included in the Option Agreement and shall comply with the terms of Section 6 below. Terms and provisions of
Agreements evidencing SARs granted alone or following the grant of an Option shall comply with Section 6(b) below.

(c) Option Prices. The purchase price of each share of Stock subject to an Option granted hereunder shall be determined by the
Committee but may not be less than the fair market value of the Stock on the Grant Date. The fair market value of the Stock on any given
date shall be the closing price of the Stock on the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. (or the principal exchange on which the Stock is traded) on
the date immediately prior to such grant, or, if no sales of the Stock occurred on that day, then the most recent day for which sales were
reported.
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(d) Term and Exercise of Options.

(1) The Committee shall have authority in its discretion to prescribe in any Option Agreement that the Option may be
exercised in different installments during the term of the Option. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee or in the Option
Agreement, each Option granted under the Plan shall be exercisable with respect to not more than one-third (1/3) of such shares of Stock
subject thereto after the expiration of one (1) year following the Grant Date, and shall be exercisable as to an additional one-third (1/3) of
such shares of Stock after the expiration of each of the succeeding two (2) years, on a cumulative basis, so that such Option, or any
unexercised portion thereof, shall be fully exercisable after a period of three (3) years following the Grant Date. An Option that is
exercisable under the Plan may be exercised by delivery to the Company (on any business day, at its principal office, addressed to the
attention of the Committee) of a written notice of exercise, which notice shall specify the number of shares of Stock with respect to which
the Option is being exercised. The purchase price of the shares of Stock to be acquired shall be paid in full in cash upon the exercise of the
Option, except as provided in subsection (ii) below. The Company shall not be required to deliver certificates for such shares of Stock until
payment has been made in accordance with the terms of this Section and such other conditions to the valid and lawful issuance of the
shares of Stock as may exist from time to time shall have been fully satisfied.

(i1) Payment in full need not accompany the exercise of Options provided that the Stock certificate or certificates for the
shares of Stock for which the Option is exercised be delivered to a licensed broker acceptable to the Company as the agent for the
individual exercising the Option and, at all time such Stock certificate or certificates are delivered, the broker tenders to the Company an
amount in cash (or cash equivalents acceptable to the Company) equal to the exercise price for the shares of Stock purchased pursuant to
the exercise of the Option plus the amount (if any) of federal or other taxes which the Company may, in its judgment, be required to
withhold with respect to the exercise of an Option. The Committee shall have the authority, but not the obligation, to establish at its
discretion and in accordance with all applicable laws and the terms of this Plan, procedures by which an Optionee may exercise an Option in
accordance with this subsection 5(d)(ii) absent the requirement that the Optionee deliver such certificates to a licensed broker, provided,
that the Optionee deliver such certificates directly to the Company.

(iii) The term of each Option shall be for such period as the Committee shall determine, but not more than ten (10) years
from the Grant Date thereof, or such shorter period as described in Section 7 hereof (the “Option Term”).

(iv) As to employees, except as provided in Section 7 hereof, an Option granted to an employee of the Company or one of
its Subsidiaries or Affiliates may not be exercised unless the holder thereof is at the time of such exercise (and has been continuously since
the Grant Date) an employee of the Company or one of its then-Subsidiaries or a then-Affiliate.
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(v) An Optionee shall not have any of the rights of a stockholder with respect to the shares of Stock subject to Option
until such shares shall be issued or transferred to him or her upon exercise of his or her Option.

(vi) The exercise of any Option by a U.S. citizen or resident may be contingent upon receipt of a representation that at the
time of such exercise it is the Optionee’s present intention to acquire the shares of Stock being purchased for investment.

(vii) The certificate(s) representing shares of Stock issued upon exercise of any Option may contain a legend restricting
the transfer thereof.

6.  Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a) Grant of SARs. The Committee shall have absolute authority in its discretion, but subject to the express provisions of the
Plan, to determine (i) the person to whom SARs shall be granted, (ii) the time or times at which SARs shall be granted, (iii) the number of
shares to be subject to each SAR, and (iv) the time or times at which a SAR can be exercised and whether in whole or in installments. In the
discretion of the Committee, a SAR may be granted alone; simultaneously with the grant of an Option under the Plan and in conjunction
therewith or in the alternative thereto; or subsequent to the grant of an Option under the Plan and in conjunction therewith or in the
alternative thereto.

(b) SAR Agreements. The Committee shall have absolute authority in its discretion to determine the terms and provisions (and
amendments thereof) of the respective SAR Awards (which need not be identical), including such terms and provisions (and amendments)
as shall be required in the judgment of the Committee to conform to any change in any law or regulation applicable thereto. The
Committee’s determination on the foregoing matters shall be conclusive. All SARs granted independently of or following Options granted
pursuant to the Plan shall be evidenced by a SAR award agreement between the Company and the SAR holder, in such form or forms as the
Committee shall from time to time determine. Such Agreements concerning the grant of SARs granted from time to time or at the same
time need not contain similar provisions; provided, however, that all such Agreements shall comply with all terms of the Plan.

(c) SAR Prices.

(i) The exercise price of each SAR granted alone shall be determined by the Committee but may not be less than the fair
market value of one share of the Stock on the Grant Date. The fair market value of the Stock on any given date shall be the closing price of
the Stock on the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. (or the principal exchange on which the Stock is traded) on the date immediately prior to such
grant, or, if no sales of the Stock occurred on that day, then the most recent day for which sales were reported.

(ii) A SAR granted simultaneously with or subsequent to the grant of an Option and in conjunction therewith or in the
alternative thereto shall have the same exercise price as the related Option, shall be transferable only upon the same terms and conditions
as the related Option, and shall be exercisable only to the same extent as the related Option; provided, however, that a
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SAR, by its terms, shall be exercisable only when the fair market value of the shares of Stock subject to the SAR and related Option
exceeds the exercise price thereof.

(d) Term and Exercise of SARs.

(1) The Committee shall have authority in its discretion to prescribe in any SAR Agreement that the SAR may be
exercised in different installments during the term of the SAR. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee or in the SAR Agreement,
each SAR granted under the Plan shall be exercisable with respect to not more than one-third (1/3) of such shares of Stock subject thereto
after the expiration of one (1) year following the Grant Date, and shall be exercisable as to an additional one-third (1/3) of such shares of
Stock after the expiration of each of the succeeding two (2) years, on a cumulative basis, so that such SAR, or any unexercised portion
thereof, shall be fully exercisable after a period of three (3) years following the Grant Date. A SAR shall entitle the Participant upon
exercise thereof to receive from the Company, upon a written request filed with the Committee (the “Request”), a number of shares of
Stock (with or without restrictions as to substantial risk of forfeiture and transferability, as determined by the Committee, in its sole
discretion), an amount in cash, or any combination of shares of Stock and cash, as specified in the Request (but subject to the approval of
the Committee, in its sole discretion, at any time up to and including the time of payment, as to the making of any cash payment), having an
aggregate fair market value equal to the product of (A) the excess of the fair market value, on the day of such Request, of one (1) share over
the exercise price per share specified in such SAR or its related Option, multiplied by (B) the number of shares for which such SAR shall be
exercised.

(ii) Any election by a holder of a SAR to receive cash in full or partial settlement of such SAR, and any exercise of such
SAR for cash, may be made only by a Request filed with the Committee during the period beginning on the third (3rd) business day
following the date of release by the Company of its quarterly or annual financial results of and ending on the twelfth (12th) business day
following such date. Within thirty (30) days of the receipt by the Company of a Request to receive cash in full or partial settlement of a
right or to exercise such SAR for cash, the Committee shall, in its sole discretion, either consent to or disapprove, in whole or in part, such
Request. A Request to receive cash in full or partial settlement of a SAR or to exercise a SAR for cash may provide that, in the event the
Committee shall disapprove such Request, such Request shall be deemed to be an exercise of such SAR for shares of Stock.

(ii1) A holder of a SAR shall not be entitled to request or receive cash in full or partial payment of such SAR during the
first six (6) months of its term; provided, however, that such prohibition shall not apply if the holder of such SAR is not subject to the
reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.

(iv) Upon exercise of a SAR granted simultaneously with or subsequent to an Option and in the alternative thereto, the
number of shares for which the related Option shall be exercisable shall be reduced by the number of shares for which the SAR shall have
been exercised. The number of shares for which a SAR shall be exercisable shall be reduced upon any exercise of a related Option by the
number of shares for which such Option shall have been exercised.
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(v) If the Committee disapproves in whole or in part any election by a Participant to receive cash in full or partial
settlement of a SAR or to exercise such SAR for cash, such disapproval shall not affect such Participant’s right to exercise such SAR at a
later date, to the extent that such SAR shall be otherwise exercisable, or to elect the form of payment at a later date, provided that an
election to receive cash upon such later exercise shall be subject to the approval of the Committee. Additionally, such disapproval shall not
affect such Participant’s right to exercise any related Option or Options granted to such Participant under the Plan.

(vi) The term of each SAR shall be for such period as the Committee shall determine, but not more than ten (10) years
from the Grant Date thereof, or such shorter period as described in Section 7 hereof (the “SAR Term”). A SAR shall be deemed exercised
on the last day of the applicable SAR Term, if not otherwise exercised by the holder thereof, provided that the fair market value of the
shares of Stock subject to the SAR exceeds the exercise price thereof on such date.

(vii) As to employees, except as provided in Section 7 hereof, a SAR granted to an employee of the Company or one of
its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, may not be exercised unless the holder thereof is at the time of such exercise (and has been continuously since
the Grant Date) an employee of the Company of one of its then Subsidiaries or a then Affiliate.

(viii) Any SAR shall be exercisable upon such additional terms and conditions as may from time to time be prescribed
the Committee.

7.  Effect on Option or SAR Awards of Termination of Employment Service.

Unless otherwise provided by the Committee in the applicable Award agreement, an Option or SAR Award shall be subject to
termination earlier than the end of the Option Term or the SAR Term, as the case may be, under the following circumstances:

(a) Cause or Voluntary Terminations of Employment. In the event of the termination of employment of a Participant to whom an
Option or SAR Award has been granted under the Plan that is either (i) for cause or (ii) voluntary on the part of the employee without the
written consent of the Company or one of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, any Option or SAR Award granted pursuant to the Plan, to the
extent not theretofore exercised, shall terminate immediately. For purposes of the Plan, the term “cause” means (A) the willful refusal by
the Participant to perform proper responsibilities of the Participant’s position with the Company or one of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates,
(B) a violation of law by the Participant which adversely affects the assets, financial position or reputation of the Company or one of its
Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or (C) a material violation by the Participant of any code of ethics, code of conduct or similar policy maintained
by the Company, or one of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, from time to time.

(b) Other Terminations of Employment. In the case of an Option or SAR Award granted to any employee of the Company or one of
its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, in the event of termination of employment of a Participant for any reason, other than terminations described in
Section 7(a) above or in Section 7(c) below, the employee may exercise his or her Option or
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SAR Award (unless previously terminated or exercised) at any time during the three (3) months after such termination of employment, or at
such other time as the Committee shall authorize, but in no event later than ten (10) years from the Grant Date thereof, but only to the
extent that such Option or SAR Award was exercisable by him or her at the date of termination of his or her employment.

(c) Termination of Employment by Death or Disability. In the event of the death or Disability of any employee Participant, such
Participant’s Option or SAR Award (unless previously terminated or exercised) may be exercised (but only to the extent exercisable by the
Participant as of the date of his or her death or Disability) within the one (1) year period following such Participants’ death or Disability,
but in no event later than ten (10) years from the date the Option or SAR Grant Date, by the person or persons designated in the
Participant’s will for that purpose or in the absence of any such designation, by the legal representative of the Participant’s estate, or by the
Participant or the Participants’ legal representative, as the case may be. For purposes of the Plan, the terms “Disability” and “Disabled”
shall mean disability or disabled as defined in Code Section 22(e)(3).

(d) Non-Employee Directors; Others. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee in the applicable Award Agreement, if a non-
employee Participant ceases to serve as a director of, or consultant to, the Company, or one of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, for any reason
(including the death or Disability of the Participant), the Participant may exercise his or her Option or SAR Award (unless previously
terminated or exercised) at any time within the one (1) year period after the date of such termination of service, death or Disability, as the
case may be, or at such other time as the Committee shall authorize, but in no event later than ten (10) years from the Grant Date thereof,
but only to the extent that such Option or SAR Award was exercisable by him or her at the date of such termination of service, death or
Disability.

8. Restricted Stock Awards.

(a) Nature of Restricted Stock Award. A Restricted Stock Award is an Award entitling the Participant to receive shares of
Stock, subject to such conditions, including a Company right during a specified period of time to require forfeiture by the Participant of
such shares of Stock upon the Participant’s termination of employment with the Company, Subsidiary or Affiliate or cessation of service as
a director of, or consultant to, the Company, as the case may be, as the Committee may determine at the Grant Date. Restricted Stock shall
be granted in respect of past services or other valid consideration. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may, from time to time and at any
time, waive any or all restrictions and/or conditions contained in the Restricted Stock Award Agreement. Notwithstanding anything in this
Plan to the contrary, the Committee, in its discretion, may grant Restricted Stock without any restrictions or conditions whatsoever.

(b) Award Agreement. A Participant who is granted a Restricted Stock Award shall have no rights with respect to such Award
unless the Participant shall have accepted the Award within 60 days (or such shorter date as the Committee may specify) following the
Award date by executing and delivering to the Company a Restricted Stock Award Agreement in such form as the Committee shall
determine.
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(c) Rights as a Stockholder. Upon complying with paragraph (b) above, a Participant shall have all the rights of a stockholder
with respect to the Restricted Stock including voting and dividend rights, subject to nontransferability and Company forfeiture rights
described in this Section 8 and subject to any other conditions contained in the Award Agreement. Unless the Committee shall otherwise
determine, certificates evidencing shares of Restricted Stock shall remain in the possession of the Company until such shares are free of
any restrictions under the Plan. The Committee in its discretion may, as a precondition of the Company’s obligation to issue a Restricted
Stock Award, require the Participant to execute a stock power or powers or other agreement or instruments necessary or advisable in
connection with the Company’s forfeiture rights with respect to such shares.

(d) Restrictions. Shares of Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred or otherwise disposed of or pledged or
otherwise encumbered. In the event of termination of employment of a Participant with the Company, Subsidiary or Affiliate for any reason
(or cessation of service as a director of, or consultant to, the Company, Subsidiary or Affiliate in the case of a non-employee Participant)
shares of Restricted Stock shall be immediately forfeited to the Company, except as set forth below:

(1) The Committee at the Grant Date shall specify the date or dates (which may depend upon or be related to the
attainment of performance goals and other conditions) on which the nontransferability of the Restricted Stock and the Company’s forfeiture
rights with respect thereto shall lapse. The Committee at any time may accelerate such date or dates and otherwise waive or, subject to
Section 18, amend any conditions of the Award.

(ii) Except as may otherwise be provided in the Restricted Stock Award Agreement, in the event of termination of
employment of a Participant with the Company, Subsidiary or Affiliate for any reason, or cessation of service as a director of the Company
for any reason, all of the Participant’s Restricted Stock then remaining subject to the Company’s forfeiture rights under Section 8(d)(iii)
hereof shall be immediately forfeited to the Company without the necessity of any further act by the Company, the Participant or the
Participant’s legal representative; provided, however, that in the event of termination of employment by reason of death or Disability or
cessation of service as a director of, or consultant to, the Company by reason of death or Disability, all conditions and restrictions relating to
the Restricted Stock held by such Participant shall thereupon be waived and shall lapse.

(iii) In the absence of any other provision by the Committee in an Award Agreement, each Restricted Stock Award
granted to (A) an employee of the Company, or one of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates shall be subject to forfeiture to the Company
conditioned on the Participant’s continued employment and (B) non-employee Participants shall be subject to forfeiture to the Company
conditioned on the Participant’s continued service as a director of, or consultant to, the Company, or one of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates and
in the case of clause (A) or (B), such forfeiture rights shall lapse as follows: with respect to twenty-five percent (25%) of the shares subject
to the Restricted Stock Award on the date one year following the Grant Date, and with respect to an additional twenty-five percent
(25%) of such shares after the expiration of each of the succeeding three (3) years thereafter, on a cumulative basis, so that such Restricted
Stock shall be free of such risk of forfeiture on the date four (4) years following the date of its Grant Date.
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(e) Performance-Based Award. In the discretion of the Committee, the Company’s forfeiture rights with respect to a Restricted
Stock Award to an employee Participant may be designated as a Performance Award and be based upon any of the Performance Measures
and Performance Formulae described in Section 10 hereof. Any such Restricted Stock Award may also be designated by the Committee as
a Performance Compensation Award for Section 162(m) purposes and be governed by such Section 10.

(f) Waiver, Deferral, and Investment of Dividends. The Restricted Stock Award agreement may require or permit the immediate
payment, waiver, deferral or investment of dividends paid with respect to the Restricted Stock.

9. Stock Awards to Non-Employee Directors.

The Committee may, in its discretion each year, beginning on July 1, 2009 and on each July 1s thereafter during the term of the Plan,
grant to each person then serving as a non-employee director of the Company an award of Stock. No annual Stock Awards pursuant to this
Section 9, however, will be made prior to stockholder approval of the Plan. For purposes of this Section 9, the term “non-employee
director” shall mean any member of the Company’s Board, as of the close of business on the Grant Date of any Stock Award hereunder,
who is not an employee of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate.

10. Performance Awards.

(a) Performance Awards. Subject to the limitations set forth in paragraph (c) hereof, the Committee may in its discretion grant a
Performance Award (as defined herein) to any eligible Participant and shall evidence such grant in a Performance Award Agreement that is
delivered to the Participant which sets forth the terms and conditions of the Award.

(b) Performance Compensation Awards. Subject to the limitations set forth in paragraph (c) hereof, the Committee may, at the
Grant Date of a Performance Award, designate such Performance Award as a “Performance Compensation Award” in order that such
Award constitutes “qualified performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the “Code”), in which event the Committee shall have the power to grant such Performance Compensation Award upon terms and
conditions that qualify such Award as “qualified performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 162(m). With
respect to each such Performance Compensation Award, the Committee shall establish, in writing within the time required under Code
Section 162(m), a “Performance Period,” “Performance Measure(s)”, and “Performance Formula(e)” (each such term being hereinafter
defined).

A Participant shall be eligible to receive payment in respect of a Performance Compensation Award only to the extent that the
Performance Measure(s) for such Award is achieved and the Committee determines in writing that, by applying the Performance
Formula(e) against such Performance Measure(s), that all or some portion of such Participant’s Award has been earned for the Performance
Period. As soon as practicable after the close of each Performance Period, the Committee shall review and certify in writing whether, and to
what extent, the Performance Measure(s) for the Performance Period have been achieved and, if so,
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determine and certify in writing the amount of the Performance Compensation Award to be paid to the Participant and, in so doing, may use
negative discretion to decrease, but not increase, the amount of the Award otherwise payable to the Participant based upon such
performance.

(c) Definitions.

(1) “Performance Award” means an award of Stock, Options, SARs or Restricted Stock granted pursuant to Section 10(a)
hereof as the Committee in its sole discretion shall determine; provided that no “covered employee” (as defined in Treasury Regulations
Section 1.162-27(c)(2)) shall be granted a Performance Award under this Section 10 which is intended to qualify as a “Performance
Compensation Award” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code for any calendar year that upon exercise (in the case of an Option or
SAR) or vesting (in the case of Restricted Stock) thereof would individually or in the aggregate exceed 1,000,000 shares of Stock.

(i1) “Performance Formula” means, for a Performance Period, one or more objective formulas or standards established by
the Committee for purposes of determining whether or the extent to which an Award has been earned based on the level of performance
attained or to be attained with respect to one or more Performance Measure(s). Performance Formulae may vary from Performance Period
to Performance Period and from Participant to Participant and may be established on a stand-alone basis, in tandem or in the alternative.

(iii) “Performance Measure” means one or more of the following selected by the Committee to measure Company,
Subsidiary, Affiliate, and/or business unit performance for a Performance Period, whether in absolute or relative terms (including, without
limitation, terms relative to a peer group or index): basic, diluted, or adjusted earnings per share; sales or revenue; earnings before interest,
taxes, and other adjustments (in total or on a per share basis); basic or adjusted net income; returns on equity, assets, capital, revenue or
similar measure; economic value added; working capital; total stockholder return; product or business development, product market share,
mergers, acquisitions, sales of assets of Subsidiaries, Affiliates or other business units, or any similar objective performance measures the
Committee may decide upon from time to time. Each such Performance Measure shall be, to the extent applicable, determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as consistently applied by the Company (or such other standard applied by the
Committee) and, if so determined by the Committee, and in the case of a Performance Compensation Award, to the extent permitted under
Code Section 162(m), adjusted to omit the effects of extraordinary items, gain or loss on the disposal of a business segment, unusual or
infrequently occurring events and transactions and cumulative effects of changes in generally accepted accounting principles. Performance
Measures may vary from Performance Period to Performance Period and from Participant to Participant, and may be established on a stand-
alone basis, in tandem or in the alternative.

(iv) “Performance Period” means one or more periods of time (of not less than one (1) fiscal year of the Company), as
the Committee may designate, over which the attainment of one or more Performance Measure(s) will be measured for the purpose of
determining a Participant’s rights in respect of an Award.
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11. Restrictions on Transfer of Awards.

Subject to the terms of Sections 7(c) and 7(d) above, Option and SAR Awards shall be transferable only to members of the
Participant’s immediate family. For purposes of this Section 11, a Participant’s immediate family includes, and only includes, the parents,
spouse and children of the Participant.

12. No Employment or Service Rights. Nothing in the Plan or any Award agreement shall confer on any individual any right to
continue in any capacity his or her relationship with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates or interfere in any way with the
right of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates to terminate such relationship at any time, with our without cause.

13. No Option or SAR Repricings.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, the purchase price of each share of Stock subject to an outstanding Option or
SAR granted under the Plan may not be decreased after the Grant Date nor may an outstanding Option or SAR granted under the Plan be
surrendered to the Company as consideration for the grant of a new Option or SAR with a lower exercise price (except as otherwise
provided in Section 14 hereof relating to the adjustment of Awards upon changes in capitalization of the Company).

14. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan, each Award Agreement shall contain such provisions as the Committee shall
determine to be appropriate for the adjustment of the number and class of shares of Stock subject to such Award and of the exercise price in
the event of changes in the outstanding Stock by reasons of any stock dividend, split-up, recapitalization, rights offering, combination or
exchange of shares, merger, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, separation, reorganization, divisive reorganization or
liquidation and the like, and, in the event of any such change in the outstanding Stock, the aggregate number and class of shares authorized
to be issued under the Plan shall be appropriately adjusted by the Committee, whose determination of such adjustment shall be conclusive.

15. Adjustments Upon Change of Control.

Except with respect to Performance Awards to “covered employees”, as defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.162-27(c)(2), or as
otherwise provided by the Committee in an Award Agreement, if a “Change of Control”, as defined below, occurs, then: (A) the vesting
periods of any and all Option or SAR Awards granted and outstanding under the Plan shall immediately be accelerated in full; and (B) the
restrictions and/or conditions applicable to any and all other Awards granted and outstanding under the Plan shall immediately lapse and be
of no further force and effect; such that the respective Participants holding such Awards shall have the immediate, fully vested right to
purchase, receive and/or own without risk of forfeiture any and all cash and/or Stock that is the subject of the Award on the terms and
conditions set forth in this Plan and the particular Award agreement, provided, however, that, if the “Change of Control” occurs with
respect to a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, only Awards granted to employees
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of such Subsidiary or Affiliate, as applicable, shall be subject to the accelerated vesting provisions of this Section 15.
The term “Change of Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:

(1) any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act (other than the Company, any
trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of the Company, or any company owned, directly or indirectly,
by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of the Stock of the Company), is or becomes
the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company (not
including in the securities beneficially owned by such person any securities acquired directly from the Company or its affiliates)
representing more than 15% of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities; provided, however, a
Change of Control shall not be deemed to occur solely because such person acquired beneficial ownership of more than 15% of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities as a result of the acquisition of voting securities by the
Company, which by reducing the number of voting securities outstanding, increases the proportional number of shares beneficially owned
by such person, provided that if a Change of Control would occur (but for the operation of this sentence) as a result of the acquisition of
voting securities by the Company, and after such share acquisition by the Company, such person becomes the beneficial owner of any
additional voting securities which increases the percentage of the then outstanding voting securities beneficially owned by such person,
then a Change of Control shall occur;

(ii) during any period of twenty-four (24) consecutive months (not including any period prior to the Effective Date (as
defined herein)), individuals who at the beginning of such period constitute the Board and any new director (other than a director
designated by a person who has entered into an agreement with the Company to effect a transaction described in subsection (i), (iii) or
(iv) of this Section 15 whose election by the Board or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders was approved by a vote of at
least two-thirds (2/3) of the directors then still in office who either were directors at the beginning of the period or whose election or
nomination for election was previously so approved, cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the Board;

(iii) the stockholders of the Company approve a merger, consolidation or reorganization of the Company with any other
corporation, other than a merger, consolidation or reorganization which would result in the stockholders of the Company immediately
before such merger, consolidation or reorganization, owning, directly or indirectly immediately following such merger, consolidation or
reorganization, at least 60% of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding in
immediately after such merger, consolidation or reorganization in substantially the same proportion as their ownership of the voting
securities immediately before such merger, consolidation, or reorganization; or

(iv) the stockholders of the Company approve a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an agreement for the
sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets.
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16. Tax Matters.

(a) Any obligation of the Company to issue shares of Stock or cash pursuant to the grant or exercise of any Award shall be
conditioned on the Participant having paid or made provision for payment of all applicable tax withholding obligations, if any, satisfactory
to the Committee. The Company and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct any such
taxes from any payment of any kind otherwise due to the Participant.

(b) Participants shall be solely responsible for the payment or satisfaction of all taxes and penalties that may arise in connection with
Awards (including any taxes arising under Section 409A of the Code), and the Company shall have no obligation to indemnify or otherwise
hold any Participant harmless from any or all of such taxes and penalties. The Committee shall have the discretion to organize any deferral
program, to require deferral election forms, and to grant or to unilaterally modify any Award in a manner that (i) conforms with the
requirements of Section 409A of the Code with respect to compensation that is deferred, (ii) that voids any Participant election to the extent
it would violate Section 409A of the Code, and (iii) for any distribution election that would violate Section 409A of the Code, to make
distributions pursuant to the Award at the earliest to occur of a distribution event that is allowable under Section 409A of the Code or any
distribution event that is both allowable under Section 409A of the Code and is elected by the Participant. The Committee shall have the
sole discretion to interpret the requirements of the Code, including Section 409A, for purposes of the Plan and all Awards.

17. Laws and Regulations.

(a) This Plan, the grant of Awards, and the exercise of Options and SARs under this Plan, and the obligation of the Company to sell or
deliver any shares of Stock pursuant to all Awards granted under this Plan shall at all times be subject to all Applicable Laws. For purposes
of the Plan, the term “Applicable Laws” means the legal requirements relating to the administration of Options and equity-based plans
under applicable U.S. federal and state laws, the Code, rules or regulations of the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc., any other applicable stock
exchange or automated quotation system, and the applicable laws of any other country or jurisdiction where Awards are granted, as such
laws, rules, regulations and requirements shall be in place from time to time.

(b) In the event that the shares of Stock are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any
applicable state securities laws prior to the delivery of such shares, the Company may require, as a condition to the issuance thereof, that
the persons to whom shares are to be issued represent and warrant in writing to the Company that such shares are being acquired by him or
her for investment for his or her own account and not with a view to, for resale in connection with, or with an intent of participating directly
or indirectly in, any distribution of such shares within the meaning of the Securities Act, and a legend to that effect may be placed on the
certificates representing the shares.

(c) To facilitate the making of any grant of an Award under this Plan, the Committee may provide for such special terms for Awards
to Participants who are foreign nationals or who are employed by the Company or any Affiliate outside of the United States of America as
the
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Committee may consider necessary or appropriate to accommodate differences in local laws, tax policies or customs. The Company may
adopt rules and procedures relating to the operation and administration of this Plan to accommodate the specific requirements of local laws
and procedures of particular countries. Without limiting the foregoing, the Company is specifically authorized to adopt rules and
procedures regarding the conversion of local currency, taxes, withholding procedures and handling of stock certificates which vary with the
customs and requirements of particular countries. The Company may adopt sub-plans and establish escrow accounts and trusts as may be
appropriate or applicable to particular locations and countries.

18. Amendment and Termination.

The Board may make such modifications or amendments to the Plan as it shall deem advisable, or in order to conform to any change
in any law or regulation applicable thereto. Without the consent of any Participant to whom any Award shall therefore have been granted,
no termination, modification or amendment of the Plan shall adversely affect any rights which may previously have been granted under the
Plan to such Participants.

19. Term of Plan.

The Plan was originally adopted on December 3, 1997 by the Board (to be effective on January 1, 1998) and was thereafter approved
by the Company’s stockholders on December 2, 1998 and amended by the Board on October 24, 2007. This amendment and restatement of
the Plan was approved by the Board on December 11, 2008 (the “Effective Date”), and was further amended on March 19, 2009, and
further amended on May 27, 2009 and shall remain effective until termination by the Board or until all shares of Stock authorized to be
issued pursuant to the Plan have been issued or transferred or deemed issued or transferred as provided in Section 2.

20._Governing Law.

The Plan and all Awards made and actions taken thereunder shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Connecticut (without regard to choice of law provisions), provided, however, that all matters relating to or involving corporate law
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

21. No Liability of Committee Members.

No member of the Committee shall be personally liable by reason of any contract or other instrument executed by such member or on
such member’s behalf in such member’s capacity as a member of the Committee nor for any mistake of judgment made in good faith, and
the Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Committee and each other employee, officer or director of the
Company to whom any duty or power relating to the administration or interpretation of the Plan may be allocated or delegated, against any
cost or expense (including counsel fees) or liability (including any sum paid in settlement of a claim) arising out of any act or omission to
act in connection with the Plan unless arising out of such person’s own fraud or willful bad faith; provided, however, that approval of the
Board shall be required for the payment of any amount in settlement of a claim against any such person. The foregoing right of
indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other rights of indemnification to
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which such persons may be entitled under the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or Amended and Restated
By-Laws, as a matter of law, or otherwise, or any power that the Company may have to indemnify them or hold them harmless.

22. Reliance on Reports.

Each member of the Committee and each member of the Board shall be fully justified in relying, acting or failing to act, and shall not
be liable for having so relied, acted or failed to act in good faith, upon any report made by the independent public accountant of the
Company and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates and upon any other information furnished in connection with the Plan by any person or persons
other than such member.

23. Relationship to Other Benefits; Other Plans.

Any Award granted under the Plan shall not be deemed compensation for purposes of computing benefits under any retirement plan
of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate and shall not affect any benefits under any other employee benefit plan now or subsequently
in effect under which the availability or amount of benefits is related to the level of compensation, except as otherwise specifically provided
in any other employee benefit plan.

24. Stockholder Approval.

This amended and restated Plan will be submitted to the stockholders of the Company for confirmation, ratification and approval by
any method adequate under Delaware law in the case of an action requiring stockholder approval. If the Plan is not approved by the
stockholders of the Company by December 31, 2009, then any Awards granted hereunder on or after the Effective Date shall be void and of
no further force or effect, but the Plan shall continue in full force and effect for purposes of all Awards granted prior to the Effective Date.

* ok ok k%

As amended and restated by the Board of Directors on December 11, 2008, and further amended on March 19, 2009, and
further amended on May 27, 2009. Approved by the Company’s shareholders on May 27, 2009.
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Subsidiary
Magellan Petroleum Australia Limited

Magellan Petroleum Australia Limited owns the following subsidiaries directly or indirectly:

Magellan Petroleum (N.T.) Pty. Ltd.
Paroo Petroleum Pty. Ltd.

Paroo Petroleum (Holdings), Inc.
Paroo Petroleum (USA), Inc.

Magellan Petroleum (W.A.) Pty. Ltd.
Magellan Petroleum (U.K.) Limited
Magellan Petroleum (Eastern) Pty. Ltd.

Magellan Petroleum (Southern) Pty. Ltd.

Magellan Petroleum (N.Z.) Limited
United Oil & Gas Co. (N.T.) Pty. Ltd
Magellan Petroleum (QId.) Pty. Ltd.

Magellan Petroleum (Ventures) Pty. Ltd.

Jarl Pty. Ltd.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

State of Incorporation

Exhibit 21

Ownership

Queensland, Australia

Queensland, Australia
Queensland, Australia
Delaware, U.S.A.
Delaware, U.S.A.
Queensland, Australia
United Kingdom
Queensland, Australia
Queensland, Australia
New Zealand
Queensland, Australia
Queensland, Australia
Queensland, Australia
Queensland, Australia

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

80%
100%
100%



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-70567 on Form S-8 of our report dated October 2,
2009 relating to the financial statements of Magellan Petroleum Corporation and subsidiaries, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K of Magellan Petroleum Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2009.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
October 2, 2009



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ENGINEERS

The undersigned firm of Independent Petroleum Engineers, of Calgary, Alberta, Canada, knows that it is named as having prepared a
constant dollar evaluation dated July 29, 2009 of the Kotaneelee interests of Magellan Petroleum Corporation, and hereby gives its consent
to the use of its name and to the use of the said estimates.

Paddock Lindstrom & Associates Ltd.

/s/ P.P. Hadala
P.P. Hadala, P. Eng.
Vice-President

October 2, 2009



Exhibit 31.1
RULE 13A-14(a) CERTIFICATIONS
I, William H. Hastings, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Magellan Petroleum Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrants other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15a-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s independent registered public accounting firm and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/S/ WILLIAM H. HASTINGS

William H. Hastings
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: October 2, 2009



Exhibit 31.2
RULE 13A-14(a) CERTIFICATIONS
I, Daniel J. Samela, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Magellan Petroleum Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrants other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15a-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the independent registered public accounting firm and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/S/ DANIEL J. SAMELA
Daniel J. Samela
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer

Dated: October 2, 2009



Exhibit 32.1
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

In connection with the Annual Report of Magellan Petroleum Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending
June 30, 2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William H. Hastings, President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, does hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations of the Company.

By: /S/ WILLIAM H. HASTINGS
William H. Hastings
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 2, 2009



Exhibit 32.2
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

In connection with the Annual Report of Magellan Petroleum Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending
June 30, 2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Daniel J. Samela, Chief Financial
and Accounting Officer of the Company, does hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations of the Company.

By: /S/ DANIEL J. SAMELA
Daniel J. Samela
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer

October 2, 2009



Exhibit 99.1

MAGELLAN PETROLEUM

MAGELLAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION ANNOUNCES THIRD QUARTER RESULTS

Portland, Maine, May 11, 2009 — Magellan Petroleum Corporation (NASDAQ: MPET) (ASX: MGN) reported consolidated net income of
$391,000 ($.01 per share) on gross revenues of $5.5 million in its third fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2009, as compared to net income of
$936,000 ($.02 per share) on revenues of $9.5 million in last year’s third quarter.

For the nine-month period ended March 31, 2009, the Company reported net income of $1.4 million ($.03 per share) on $21.1 million
in revenues, compared to a net loss of $10.3 million ($.25 per share) on revenues of $29 million in the prior period last year.

Magellan’s President and Chief Executive Officer, William H. Hastings said “Weak energy markets coupled with production declines
negatively affected year over year performance through March 31, 2009, after taking into consideration last year’s tax settlement which is a
special item. We are facing 2009’s challenges head-on; active gas sales negotiations are ongoing, and significant expense reduction
programs are being discussed for our fields, including consolidation possibilities. We will persist with our efforts to improve near-term
performance while we target significant larger-scale growth.

Unlike most companies at this stage, we are in a unique position to capitalize on record low asset prices, to examine acquisition of
“challenged” companies as a result of current capital market conditions, and have access to growth capital as evidenced by our Securities
Purchase Agreement with Young Energy Prize S.A. Other capital providers have expressed interest and we are working diligently to add
value from this combination of circumstances.”

The following is a discussion of the financial results for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2009.

Quarter Ended March 31, 2009

Oil sales decreased 62% to $1.7 million in 2009 from $4.4 million in 2008. This reduction is due to a 29% decrease in production, a
29% decrease in the average price per barrel and a 27% decrease in the




average exchange rate. The production in the Nockatunga fields continued to decline in this quarter as compared to prior periods. We expect
the downward production trend in the Nockatunga fields to continue. Nockatunga is a high-cost area that does not justify incremental
investment at current oil price levels.

Gas sales decreased 26% to $3.3 million in 2009 from $4.4 million in 2008. This is due to a 12% decrease in volume resulting from a
decline in customer requirements and a 27% decrease in the average exchange rate partially offset by an 18% increase in the average price
per mcf.

Interest income decreased 45% to $274,000 in 2009 from $500,000 in 2008 due to a decrease in market interest rates and a 27%
decrease in the average exchange rate.

Exploration and dry hole costs increased to $1.4 million in 2009 from $335,000 in 2008. This increase is due to seismic survey costs
of approximately $1.2 million related to the Nockatunga fields partially offset by the 27% decrease in the average exchange rate.

Depletion, depreciation and amortization decreased in 2009 to $1.1 million from $4.0 million in 2008. The decrease is due to lower
depletable costs and the 27% decrease in the average exchange rate.

Auditing, accounting and legal services increased in 2009 to $602,000 from $215,000 in 2008 due mostly to legal fees related to the
YEP transaction and the shareholder agreement (see Other Financial Matters below) of approximately $256,000 partially offset by the 27%
decrease in the average exchange rate.

Other administrative expenses decreased to $735,000 in 2009 from $883,000 in 2008 due to costs related to director stock options that
were incurred in 2008 but not in 2009 ($63,000), decrease in insurance expenses in 2009 and the 27% decrease in the average exchange rate,
partially offset by due diligence costs related to the YEP transaction ($175,000).

The income tax provision decreased due to the decrease in income before taxes as well as the provision of the ATO settlement in the
prior fiscal period. The Company has estimated the effective tax rate expected to be applicable for the full fiscal year. The rate used in
providing for income taxes on a current year-to-date basis for the nine months ended March 31, 2009 is 46%. The Company revised its
estimate from the effective rate of 70% used in providing income taxes for the six months ended December 31, 2008 due to a decrease in
U.K. exploration expenses partially offset by an increase in the estimate of MPC loss for fiscal 2009, which do not generate a tax benefit.
U.K. exploration expenses, expected to be incurred in 2009 will occur in 2010. U.K. exploration expenses previously expected to be
incurred in 2009 will occur in 2010.

Nine Months Ended March 31, 2009

Oil sales decreased 35% to $9.2 million in 2009 from $14.1 million in 2008. This is due to a 29% decrease in production and the 16%
decrease in the average exchange rate discussed below. We expect the downward production trend in the Nockatunga project to continue
due to the poor reinvestment economics mentioned above.

Gas sales decreased 20% to $10.6 million in 2009 from $13.2 million in 2008. This is due to a 10% decrease in volume resulting from
a decline in customer requirements and a 16% decrease in the average exchange rate partially offset by a 4% increase in the average price
per mcf.

Exploration and dry hole costs decreased to $2.7 million in 2009 from $3.1 million in 2008. This



decrease is due to Cooper Basin drilling costs incurred in 2008 but not in 2009 ($1.3 million) and the 16% decrease in the average exchange
rate partially offset by seismic survey costs related to the Nockatunga fields ($1.2 million) and the write off and impairments of U.K.
permits in 2009 ($321,000).

Depletion, depreciation and amortization decreased in 2009 to $5.7 million from $12.8 million in 2008 due to lower depletable costs
and the 16% decrease in the average exchange rate.

Auditing, accounting and legal services increased in 2009 to $1.3 million from $774,000 in 2008 due mostly to legal fees related to
the YEP transaction and the shareholder agreement (see Other Financial Matters below) of approximately $505,000 partially offset by the
16% decrease in the average exchange rate.

Other administrative expenses decreased to $2.0 million in 2009 from $2.5 million in 2008 due to costs related to the ATO settlement
($597,000) and director stock options ($63,000) that were incurred in 2008 but not in 2009, exchange rate gains ($326,000) in 2009,
decrease in insurance expenses in 2009 ($127,000) and the 16% decrease in the average exchange rate, partially offset by due diligence
costs related to the YEP transaction ($393,000).

The income tax provision decreased due to the decrease in income before taxes as well as the provision of the ATO settlement in the
prior fiscal period. The Company has estimated the effective tax rate expected to be applicable for the full fiscal year. The rate used in
providing for income taxes on a current year-to-date basis for the nine months ended March 31, 2009 is 46%. The Company revised its
estimate from the effective rate of 70% used in providing income taxes for the six months ended December 31, 2008 due to a decrease in
U.K. exploration expenses partially offset by an increase in the estimate of MPC loss for fiscal 2009, which do not generate a tax benefit.
U.K. exploration expenses expected to be incurred in 2009 will occur in 2010.

Other Financial Matters

As previously disclosed on February 9, 2009, the Company entered into a definitive securities purchase agreement with Young
Energy Prize S.A. (“YEP”), a Luxembourg corporation, providing for a $10 million equity investment in the Company. Closing under the
purchase agreement is subject to receipt of shareholder approval of the investment and an amendment to the Company’s certification of
incorporation, as well as other customary closing conditions.

Under the original terms of the securities purchase agreement, YEP will pay $10.0 million ($1.15 per share) to acquire a total of
8,695,652 shares of the Company’s Common Stock (the “Shares”) and five-year warrants entitling YEP to purchase 4,347,826 shares
through warrant exercise at a price of $1.20 per share.

On April 3, 2009, the Company and YEP agreed to amend their securities purchase agreement to extend the outside termination date
for the closing of YEP’s equity investment from April 30, 2009 to June 30, 2009, in order to provide sufficient time to conduct the 2008
Annual Meeting and complete the YEP equity investment transaction. The amendment also provides that, if YEP completes the purchase
of the ANS Shares from the ANS Parties (see ANS discussion below) then the exercise price payable by YEP for the Warrant Shares shall
be reduced from $1.20 to $1.15 per share.

On April 3, 2009, the Company and two of its shareholders, ANS Investments LLC and its CEO, Jonah M. Meer (together, the “ANS
Parties”), entered into a settlement agreement that terminated proxy solicitation efforts of the ANS Parties on mutually agreeable terms.
Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the ANS Parties have agreed to withdraw both the nomination of Mr. Meer as a director



candidate and their other proposals, to terminate all proxy solicitation efforts with respect thereto, to support each of the proposals that the
Company intends to present to its shareholders at the Annual Meeting and to vote all of their shares in favor of these proposals in
accordance with the recommendation of the Company’s Board of Directors. In exchange, the Company agreed to reimburse the ANS
Parties up to $125,000 for their legal and other expenses incurred by the ANS Parties related to their proxy solicitation efforts.

Separately, YEP and the ANS Parties on April 3, 2009 entered into an agreement by which YEP will, upon completion of YEP’s
equity investment in the Company, purchase 568,985 shares of the Company’s common stock currently owned by the ANS Parties at a
purchase price of $1.15 per share.

During the nine month period ended March 31, 2009, the Company issued 3.1 million stock options. These options have been issued
under a new stock option plan which is subject to shareholder approval at the next annual shareholders meeting which will be held on
May 27, 2009. As this approval is pending, there is no grant date for accounting purposes and, consequently, there was no financial
statement impact during this period. If approved, the accounting impact of these options will be material to the Company’s financial
statements.

Gas Contracts

MPAL’s major customer, Gasgo Pty. Ltd., a subsidiary of Power and Water Corporation (“PWC”) of the Northern Territory has
contracted with Eni Australia for the supply of PWC’s Northern Territory gas demand requirement for twenty five years. Eni Australia,
initially expected to commence sales in January 2009, is to supply the gas from its Blacktip field offshore of the Northern Territory. The
Blacktip development has encountered significant development difficulty and delay. One Blacktip well was plugged and abandoned in
March 2009 as non-commercial. MPAL and Santos (“Mereenie Producers”) will continue to supply PWC’s gas demand to augment
Blacktip gas. There is a possibility that all Amadeus Basin gas deliverability could be combined with the distressed Blacktip flow to
achieve efficiencies and savings for all Parties (producers and buyers) in the Darwin supply grid. There are significant unknowns with
regard to Blacktip capability, efficiency, and natural gas deliverability. MPAL may, or may not, be able to contract for the sale of our
remaining uncontracted reserves. Negotiations on this premise are active with ENI Australia, PWC, and with Darwin LNG Operator,
ConocoPhillips. Unless MPAL is able to obtain additional contracts for its remaining gas reserves or be successful in its current exploration
program, its revenues will be materially reduced beginning with 2010. Mereenie gas sales were approximately $15.5 million (net of
royalties) or 85% of total gas sales for the year ended June 30, 2008 and $8.8 million (net of royalties) or 84% of total gas sales for the nine
months ended March 31, 2009.

Forward Looking Statements

Statements in this release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby identified as, forward-looking
statements for purposes of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements about Magellan and Magellan Petroleum
Australia Limited (“MPAL”) may relate to their businesses and prospects, revenues, expenses, operating cash flows, and other matters that
involve a number of uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from expectations. Among these risks and uncertainties
are the likelihood and timing of the closing of the YEP investment transaction, pricing and production levels from the properties in which
Magellan and MPAL have interests, the extent of the recoverable reserves at those properties, the future outcome of the negotiations for gas
sales contracts for the remaining uncontracted reserves at both the Mereenie and Palm Valley gas fields in the Amadeus Basin, including
the likelihood of success of other potential suppliers of gas to the current customers of Mereenie



and Palm Valley production. In addition, MPAL has a large number of exploration permits and faces the risk that any wells drilled may fail
to encounter hydrocarbons in commercially recoverable quantities. Any forward-looking information provided in this release should be
considered with these factors in mind. Magellan assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements contained in this release,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Comparative, consolidated results for the three and nine month periods are shown in the following
condensed consolidated statements of operations:

Contact: William H. Hastings, President and CEO of Magellan, (207) 776-5616
Daniel J. Samela, Chief Financial Officer of Magellan, at (860) 293-2006

- more —



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited)
THREE MONTHS ENDED NINE MONTHS ENDED
MARCH 31, MARCH 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

REVENUES:

Oil sales $ 1,707,287 $ 4,442,241 $ 9,184,879 $ 14,062,782

Gas sales 3,291,615 4,433,188 10,600,544 13,195,352

Other production related revenues 523,611 660,634 1,348,058 1,973,843

Total revenues 5,522,513 9,536,063 21,133,481 29,231,977
COSTS AND EXPENSES:

Production costs 1,951,335 1,801,975 6,218,141 6,425,232

Exploration and dry hole costs 1,385,552 334,651 2,652,929 3,072,242

Salaries and employee benefits 386,450 395,685 1,200,435 1,216,034

Depletion, depreciation and amortization 1,130,134 3,989,223 5,691,415 12,763,443

Auditing, accounting and legal services 602,058 215,394 1,291,857 773,497

Accretion expense 118,206 180,461 396,482 526,849

Shareholder communications 179,674 98,762 392,846 300,050

Loss (gain) on sale of field equipment 211 3,209 12,072 (23,748)

Other administrative expenses 735,018 883,221 2,028,268 2,524,866

Total costs and expenses 6,488,638 7,902,581 19,884,445 27,578,465
Operating (loss) income (966,125) 1,633,482 1,249,036 1,653,512

Interest income 273,641 500,121 1,362,185 1,559,200
(Loss) income before income taxes (692,484) 2,133,603 2,611,221 3,212,712
Income tax benefit (provision) 1,083,101 (1,197,664) (1,237,487) (13,531,328)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 390,617 $ 935,939 $ 1,373,734 $(10,318,616)
Average number of shares outstanding

Basic 41,500,325 41,500,325 41,500,325 41,500,325

Diluted 41,500,325 41,500,325 41,500,325 41,500,325
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE (BASIC AND DILUTED) $ 0.01 $ 0.02 $ 0.03 $ (0.25)
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